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COMPANY SECRETARY
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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INFORMATION FOR STAKEHOLDERS
Em AER

SHARE INFORMATION

First listed on the Stock Exchange
13 October 1998

Place of listing
Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00166

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Financial Year End
31 December

At 31 December 2017

Number of shares: 8,865,482,988 shares
Closing price: HK$0.21 per share
Market capitalization: HK$1,861.75 million

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Principal

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch
Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

23 March 2018
2017 Annual Results Announcement

4 June 2018 to 8 June 2018
Book Closure for Annual General Meeting
8 June 2018

Annual General Meeting

August 2018 (tentative)
2018 Interim Results Announcement

INVESTOR RELATIONS
E-mail: info@nt-energy.com

WEBSITE

http://Awww.nt-energy.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Year ended
31 December

Revenue Uz 287,557 57,108
Profit/(loss) before taxation from SECEETEBRBANE TR, (E518)

continuing operations 95,260 (229,615)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHER, (E8) 101,697 (125,021)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREARF,(EE) B

(HK cent) (2016: restated) (ZZT—RF  &K&EY) 1.26 (3.09)

As at

31 December
2017

I
—EB—+F
+=A=+—H
HK$’000
THT

Total assets BE®E 3,783,649 3,065,429
Total equity E=BE 3,467,316 2,651,265
Debt ratio® B RO 8.36% 13.51%
Gearing ratio® BEAELLHEO 6.17% 12.51%
Net asset value per share® (HK$) FREEFEYCET) 0.39 0.45
Remarks: [CEE

(1) Debt ratio: Total liabilities divided by total assets (1 BIHELE : BELERNEELE

(2)  Gearing ratio: Interest bearing borrowings divided by total equity ) BESEBELE  HEEERIEREE

(3) Net asset value per share: Net assets divided by number of issued shares (3) SREETFE  AEFERUBBITRGEE

FERERARAA 5
—E—tEFR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (the “Company” or “New Times Energy”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual
results and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Overview of 2017

| am pleased to report that the financial strength of the Company has
strengthened significantly in 2017, benefiting from the generous support
of our investors through an open offer that raised HK$736.40 million.

The Company’'s operational environment in Argentina continues to be
difficult with increasing political, labour union, currency and of course
exploratory risks. In Q4 2017, the Group completed the drilling of the
EP.x-2001 exploratory well, having been delayed by approximately 12
months, due to successive unforeseen complications beyond its control.
Though, evidence of hydrocarbons were encountered during the drill, the
post analysis of petrophysical logs, sadly concluded the EP.x-2001 well
was incapable of being commercially viable for future development and
production by the Group.
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On a positive note, the EP.x-2001 exploratory drill was the Group’s first
ever campaign using its own rig and own set of rig crews. The EP.x-2001
well was successfully drilled with no non-productive downtime
attributable to any health and safety incidents, nor mechanical failure of
the rig itself. It enabled the Group to reduce its drilling cost, as well as
provide it with greater flexibility for future drilling and workover
campaigns.

Significant Strategic Highlights in 2017

During 2017, New Times Energy continued to deliver on a number of
financial and operational initiatives to better position the Company to
execute its future strategic plans, and manage its business risks according
to its latest outlook. The key strategic highlights in the year included:

o Fund raising

In April 2017, New Times Energy raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$736.40 million, following an open offer of
2,955,160,996 offer shares, on the basis of one offer share for
every two shares held. A total 84.36% of the available offer shares
was subscribed, whilst the remainder 15.64% unsubscribed shares
was underwritten by Max Sun Enterprises Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Group. The HK$736.40 million raised further
supplements the HK$557.23 million monies previously raised by the
Group in 2016 following the issue of subscription shares.

o Drilling rig

In November 2017, New Times Energy successfully drilled the EP.x-
2001 exploratory well using its own imported rig for the first time
in the Group'’s history. The drill was conducted free of any health
and safety incident, or rig mechanical failure. The deployment of
the Group’s own rig was the culmination of almost 3 years of
tireless effort, of which 18 months was attributable to the long
overdue release of the rig itself, by Argentinean customs authority.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

Looking ahead, the Group plans to deploy the rig for its next joint
venture exploratory drill in the Chirete Concession, as well as for
future workover campaigns beyond that. The imported rig has
provided the Group the opportunity to reduce its drilling cost,
added flexibility in its drilling campaigns, as well as a potential new
source of revenue stream from the provision of rig leasing services,
or packaged drilling services to third parties.

o Commodities Trading
In August 2017, New Times Energy re-entered into the business of
commodities trading with the aim to broaden its revenue and profit
base. The Group was previously engaged in commodities trading
pre-2008, where it acquired invaluable knowledge and experience,
as well as business partners.

o Cost Rationalization

Throughout 2017, the Group has continued to look for cost
rationalization opportunities. Initiatives have included bringing in-
house certain contracted services in order to reduce middleman
margins, as well as the consolidation of certain roles and
responsibilities for certain job positions, where practicable in order
to reduce the Group’s overall headcount. Though never easy, the
Group believes that such measures are necessary during the current
fragile business climate.

Looking Forward
New Times Energy continues to proactively manage and structure its
business to best serve the interests of its shareholders. The Group is
committed to maximizing shareholder value by exploring and developing
oil and gas prospects in a safe, environmentally, socially and ethically
responsible manner.

Looking ahead in 2018, New Times Energy shall be continuing with its
committed exploration plan in Northern Argentina.
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The Group is well aware of the importance to continually reassess and
diversify its current business and geographical portfolio to better position
itself for the future. Thanks to the financial support of its investors,
following the recent 2016 subscription share issue and 2017 open offer,
the Group is well funded to enable it weather through these difficult
trading conditions in Argentina, diversify into the business of commodities
trading, as well as more importantly, to seek and capture suitable
investment opportunities in the energy sector, wherever that may be in
the world.

Appreciation

Once again and in closing, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude
to the Board, the management team, and all staff members for their
efforts and dedication during the year. | am also much obliged to our
shareholders, investors, business partners, bankers, customers and
suppliers for their continued support.

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

GENERAL REVIEW

The Group is pleased to report a consolidated net profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of HK$101.70 million. This is mainly
attributable to the reversal of previously recognised impairment loss on
the Group’s exploration and evaluation assets for Tartagal Oriental and
Morillo Concessions, arising as a result of a decrease in pre-tax discount
rate driven by the lower country risk premium of Argentina and lower
systematic risk of oil and gas companies.

In April 2017, the Group raised net proceeds of approximately HK$736.40
million following an open offer of 2,955,160,996 offer shares, on the
basis of one offer share for every two shares held. A total 84.36% of the
available offer shares was subscribed, whilst the remainder 15.64%
unsubscribed shares was underwritten by Max Sun Enterprises Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Group.

In August 2017, the Group re-entered into the business of commodities
trading, with the intention to diversify and expand its revenue base, as
well as seek further sources of profit generation. The Group acquired
significant knowledge and experience in this business activity as a result
of its previous involvement in commaodities trading pre-2008.

On 13 September 2017, the Group's exploration permit in T&M Concessions
had formally expired. Following the Group’s timely application for its
extension, and repeated follow up enquiries on the progress of the
application, and receipt of numerous verbal assurances from officials, and
meetings with the local regulatory authorities in an attempt to find a prompt
resolution to a long overdue issue, the Group on 19 March 2018 was finally
issued the extension decree. The decree for a minimum 24 month term from
the Salta Province will be effective imminently, once it has been published in
the official local gazette by the regulatory authorities.

To date, the Group has temporarily suspended all major exploration
activities in the T&M Concessions, whilst it had been awaiting the formal
approval of the extension. This resulted in the major postponement of
previously committed works in Argentina, as well as a delay in the use of
proceeds for the Group’s raised capital in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition to the extension of the T&M permit, the Group’s exploration
permit in Chirete Concession situated in Salta Province which expired on
18 November 2017 was also extended for a minimum 12 month term.
Similar to the T&M extension decree, the Chirete extension decree will be
effective imminently, once it is published in the official local gazette by
the regulatory authorities.

In the meantime, the Group continues working closely with its 50%
participating partner, Pampa Energia in planning the exploratory drill of
LB.x-2001 well in Q4 2018. Thereafter, the civil engineering works will
commence, subject to the timely receipt of drill location and access road
permits.

The Group reported a loss of HK$35.54 million, being incurred for the
recent EP.x-2001 exploratory drilling, which despite the existence of
hydrocarbons, was sadly determined to be non-commercial for future
development and production.

With respect to Palmar Largo Concessions, the Group’s production permit
also recently expired on 23 December 2017. The Group to date has yet to
receive a formal extension decree from the relevant Formosa provincial
regulatory authorities. Negotiations are on-going with a view to reaching
a mutually acceptable investment plan/commitment, in return for the
granting of a minimum 10 year term. In the meantime, whilst
negotiations continue, the Group remains as the operator of the
production facilities in the concessions, for and on behalf of the Union of
Temporary Enterprise (“UTE"”) in which it has a 38.15% participating
interest.

SRR ES S

BRTRMET A BB HISN - RE B N IER S
Chirete RN T —+tF+— A+ N\ A
B R A RN EE R E D 12ME B - B
TAMEHES ML - FFEEBIEZHE AR
WwTUEE1% - Chirete BENES ST BIAERK -

B BF - 7K 5 B A 48 B3 H 50% £ B2 ¥ £ Pampa
EnergiaBZ&1E WER T - NFEMNZE
SR RE R BXx-2001 M FF o b8 + £ARTHE
1SR EGER S BT ERET -

AN B & HIREP.x-2001 BRI HE R B
B3554BEB T BEMSLEYNTEE
EEBET TR BEERERLEEZR -

BLPalmar Largo I ERME « AEBEMNEE
FABENRIN - E—tF+A=+=HE
W o ANEEE B AT R B AERE R RS B E0 P
BMEIERERES - B EE#EITH - UERE
RREFAIEZRIRERTE,FH - BEARY
SIK10F R AR o RNy - ARSI EEITH -
N % B B A1 & R & Union of Temporary
Enterprise ([UTE]) # 5 38.15% 2 B i m 1) 45
EREERENEEE o

; R Ul i

2 "
¥
1
'

MR EERBR /x Gl

11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

Whilst the expiry and delayed granting of the Group’s exploration permits
in T&M and Chirete Concessions has caused a setback to its original plans
and schedules, the Group is pleased that it can resume its efforts in the
planning and preparation works for these respective areas. With respect
to Palmar Largo production permit, the Group continues to push the
Formosa provincial authorities for a swift positive outcome. But in the
meantime, the Group has little option but to temporarily defer its
significant investments/expenditures, originally planned for the
second half of 2017, and for the foreseeable future until this issue is
first resolved.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s oil and gas participation during 2017 was solely in the
Northwest Basin located in the provinces of Salta and Formosa in
Argentina. During the second half of 2017, the Group was also engaged
in the business of commodities trading with the objective to broaden its
revenue base.

Northwest Basin, Argentina

The Northwest Basin is one of the largest gas producing basins in
Argentina. This basin is geologically and structurally complex because of
the superposition of four main basins and tectonic influences, including a
Late Jurassic to Early Cretaceous-aged rift extension and Tertiary-aged
Andean compression. The Group is of the view that the complex
geological structures create opportunities for the discovery of
conventional light oil and natural gas during exploration activities.

At 31 December 2017, the Group held the following concessions in the
Northwest Basin situated in Northern Argentina:

Participating Surface area

Concessions interest (in km?)
hREE

BHEE SR (FHFRAE)
Tartagal Oriental and Morillo 69.25% 10,583
Chirete 50.00% 897
Palmar Largo 38.15% 1,382
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exploration, Development and Production activities
Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M Concessions”)

The T&M Concessions (comprising of the Tartagal Oriental block and the
Morillo block) is located in the Province of Salta in Northern Argentina are
the Group’s core exploration assets. They cover a total surface area of
10,583 km? and have a net estimated Prospective Resources of 130.0
MMBOE.

EP.x-2001 exploration well:

After encountering successive unforeseen complications beyond the
control of the Group, including an 11 months delayed issuance of drill
location and access road permits by the regulatory authorities in the
Province of Salta, labour union interference in form of 4 strikes in 30
days, unseasonal weather conditions and prolonged importation
clearance of own drilling equipment that took 18 months, the EP.x-2001
exploration well was finally spudded on 9 September 2017, significantly
later than desired and planned. This was the Group'’s first prospective drill
in the T&M Concessions, since the CA.x-1002 and CA.x-1 wells drilled in
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

A target drill depth of 2,853 meters for the EP.x-2001 exploration well
was attained by the Group on 28 October 2017. Several hydrocarbon
bearing zones were intersected whilst drilling. But despite the initial
optimism created by the evidence of hydrocarbons, the Group’s post
logging analysis and further study of petrophysical logs concluded the
EP.x-2001 well was incapable to be commercially viable for future
development and production. Consequently, the Group plugged and
abandoned the EP.x-2001 well in early November, with the drilling
equipment re-mobilised to the Group’s own storage facilities at Palmar
Largo, before it is next deployment in either Palmar Largo or Chirete,
subject to the receipt of extension permits from the regulatory authorities
in Argentina.

It may be worth noting that the EP.x-2001 exploration well was drilled by
the Group utilizing its own imported rig from China. Although it spent 18
months being held by Customs, the rig performed successfully without
major down times or safety issues.

Exploration permit extension:

As previously disclosed in the 2017 Interim Report, the exploration
permits in respect of the T&M Concessions expired on 13 September
2017. The application for a minimum 2 years’ extension had been filed in
advance by the Group to the Salta provincial regulatory authorities.

The extension is required in order to enable the Group to fulfil its
outstanding work commitments on these concessions, which in part was
due to the time lost from the unreasonable and unexplained delayed
processing and granting of the drill location and access roads permits by
the Salta authorities for the recent EP.x-2001 exploration well.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 19 March 2018, the Group was issued an extension decree for a
minimum 24 month term on the T&M Concessions which it was
understood will be effective imminently, once it has been published in the
official local gazette. The long awaited extension was the result of much
effort by the Group in the follow up on the progress of the application,
and various extensive meetings with the local regulatory authorities in an
attempt to find a prompt resolution.

Despite the setback the delayed granting of the extension decree has
caused, the Group has already resumed its planning and preparatory for
the next exploratory drill in the concessions, which is presently earmarked
for 2019. This is subject to the timely application and receipt of the drill
location and access road permits.

The T&M Concessions are presently at an exploration stage with no
existing development or production activities currently being performed.

Chirete Concession

The Chirete Concession covers a surface area of approximately 897km? in
the Province of Salta in Northern Argentina, and has a net estimated
Prospective Resources of 4.3 MMBOE.

LB.x-2001 exploration well

During 2017, the Group made significant progress with its 50%
participating partner; Pampa Energia on the future development of the
Chirete Concession.

A consensus was reached for drilling of the LB.x-2001 exploratory well on
the same structure, approximately 2.9 km from the LB.x-1002 well,
previously drilled in December 2015. Based on 3D seismic data analysis, a
potential pay zone of approximately 100 meters was estimated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D
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The budget and schedule for LB.x-2001 was presented to, and approved
by Pampa Energia, thus confirming their commitment to fund 50% of the
exploration costs. To date, the Group has conducted extensive planning
for the LB.x-2001 exploration well with a view to deploying the Group’s
own drilling rig for the project. Soil analysis for access road and drill site
construction have also been completed.

The environmental impact study for our proposed exploration drill site has
also been prepared, and submitted to the relevant bodies within the Salta
provincial government for their review and approval. However, to date,
the Group has yet to receive its approval, or any feedback.

Subject to the timely granting of the Chirete extension decree by the
Salta authorities, followed immediately by the issuance of the associated
drill location and access road permits, the Group and Pampa Energia is
targeting to spud and drill the LB.x-2001 exploration well in Q4 2018.

Exploration permit extension:

The Chirete permit for the Third Exploratory Period expired on 18
November 2017, despite the Group’s timely application for its renewal
and extension by a further 12 months minimum.

Similar to the T&M extension application, the Chirete extension permit
which was pending the long overdue final approval of the Secretary of
Energy was finally issued on 19 March 2018. The Group understands that
extension will thereafter be effective imminently, once it has been
published in the official local gazette by the regulatory authorities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Up until 19 March 2018, the Group and Pampa Energia had taken the
stance to defer any significant expenditure, or sign any legally binding
and onerous contracts with suppliers and service providers for the
LB.x-2001 exploration well. With this uncertainty cleared, the Group is
now in a better position to resume its planning and preparation
activities, subject to the timely receipt of the drill location and access
road permits also.

The Chirete Concession is presently at an exploration stage with no
existing development or production activities currently being performed,
except for oils accumulated naturally from the LB.x-1002 well drilled in
December 2015 of approximately 414 barrels during the year.

Palmar Largo Concessions (the “PL Concessions”)

The PL Concessions comprise of three blocks, namely the Palmar Largo
block located in the Province of Formosa which holds the producing
fields, together with the Balbuena Este block and the El Chorro block
located in the Province of Salta. The concessions had a 25 year term
which recently expired on 23 December 2017.

Operations update

During the year, the Group conducted a number of slickline unit
interventions on a number wells in order to maintain their production
rates in this marginal and declining oilfield. No new workover
interventions was performed in 2017, due to the on-going negotiations
and delayed granting of a 10 years extended production permit by the
Formosa provincial regulatory authorities.

Average daily production achieved during the year for the Group’s
38.15% participating interest in the PL Concessions was approximately
338 BOPD (2016: 347 BOPD). The Group's share of oil production for the
year equated close to 123 MBBL (2016: 127 MBBL).

Due to lower oil productions and continued deterioration of local selling
prices experienced in early 2017, sales of crude oil from the Group's
38.15% participating interest in the PL Concessions contributed an
annual revenue of HK$43.47 million (2016: HK$57.11 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

QOil price

Following the recent lifting of the import ban of foreign oil into
Argentina, and the move to a free market oil economy by the incumbent
government; the premium that Argentina oil price once commanded over
international price has been eroded. In Northern Argentina, where the
Group produces and sells its oil, the change in government policy has had
a more detrimental effect on the oil price it has been able to receive. This
in part is due to the limited number of refineries/buyers in the region.

The impact has not only hurt the Group’s margins, but also other fellow
producers in the region. Consequently, the Group has lobbied its
concerns to the provincial government, and warned of the potential
irreversible damage to the region’s oil and gas industry and its
attractiveness, as a result of the refineries unfair practices being
experienced.

For the year, the average selling price the Group received was US$48.63
(2016: US$55.96) per barrel.

Production permit extension:

Being the operator of the PL Concessions, the Group initiated discussions,
and reached a general consensus with the UTE members during 2017 to
continue the running of the production facilities and oilfields located in
the Formosa block beyond the 23 December 2017 expiration date of the
existing permit. The Group accordingly submitted the formal application
for a 10 year extension to the Formosa authorities, and subsequently
received written communication in August 2017 that led the Group and
UTE to understand that in principle the extension was granted, except for
the issuance of the formal decree, which would occur following the
conclusion of the 2017 Argentine Legislative Election in late October 2017.

The Group to date has yet to receive the aforementioned formal extension
decree. Furthermore, the Group has been requested by the Formosa
provincial regulatory authorities in November 2017 to submit a revised
and improved investment plan, which had previously been accepted.

Consequently, the Group and the UTE members is convening for further
discussions on whether an improved and “economically viable”
investment plan can be tabled to the Formosa Province. In the meantime,
whilst negotiations are continuing, the Group remains as the operator of
the production facilities in the PL Concessions at the very least until 23
December 2019.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

HE

BE & R AR MBUSZE L O SNE Aom =
REZES  BRBMABTSEHE  FRE
MESBHERRERBHMO B TR - &
AREBAE K HE AHAMREILED - BT
RONEBERENTHNZEBCRELE - 1)
ER D A LI R ROM B, B R B AR

S BT ERETAKENEN  TEET %
WwEHNEBRREER - BE  ARECHE
BRI EES - WESLBRHMTLEEF
B B H) M RIT R R B R S| JER T AT
BEIMERE -

FR - AEENTFHEEAER48.63FT(Z
T — N4 1 55.96E7T) ©

AEFTAIEREER ¢

ERPLETRENLEE  AEER-_E—+
FEUTERK BETTH MR WEREALE  ©
RERRHA S —tF+T-HAZ+=A7UE
[EmBEECENNEBERRRANEERER
B o Bt - AEEREEREEIFIERE
B+FMEXRRE  BEERZTE—tFNAK
IEMOE  SAEBRUTERA ' RAILE
BHEH HERBEHERES  MERES
FBERZZE—tFTHTAN_Z—+FMIE
FENOEEBRARBEL -

2% AEBRAYE BREXEHES - It
h REER -_ZE—tF+ - ARBERER
EEBMAEREREETMAENRET R
HI 2R -

A
7

BE1R  AEBRUTERBETE - FIwRARN
R EEEER — I EBE R [ REE N |
HIRE TR - B - ARSI EETH A%
EEIR - E-NF+ A +=BANAPL
et EERBVELEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Based on the opinion of an Argentinean independent legal counsel, the
Group is considered to have a favorable chance of obtaining a further 10
year extension to operate the Formosa block of the PL Concessions,
subject to the conclusion of on-going and advanced negotiations
regarding a mutually acceptable investment plan. Until such time, the
Group has no intentions to authorise/incur any significant discretionary
investment/expenditures, such as workover interventions, where the
planning and required payback period demands a longer time horizon.

With respect to the Balbuena Este and El Chorro block located in the
Province of Salta, the Group is in continuing discussion with the UTE
partners and regulatory authorities with a view to relinquishing the blocks
to the Province of Salta without having to plug-in the four existing wells
and demolishing the production facilities. Negotiations with the Province
of Salta are on-going.

There were no exploration and development activities in the PL
Concessions during year.
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Expenditures incurred FrIEARX
Expenditures incurred in relation to the Group’s exploration and R - REBEFARFRZEAIL 20 ETT 2 HiF
production activities in the Northwest Basin in Argentina during the year  NAEEBES A X ¢
were as follows:
Tartagal
Oriental and Palmar
Morillo Chirete Largo
Nature of expenditure HXHE Concessions Concession Concessions Total
Tartagal
Oriental & Palmar
Morillo Chirete Largo
B R HEREE TR #st
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F#T) (F#7T) (FH&T) (F%mT)
Drilling rig expenses EHRE R 9,161 - - 9,161
Exploration rights B R 894 - - 894
Exploratory drillings BhiR i 4+ 33,739 - - 33,739
Exploration expenses (Dry Hole) HRE Y (82 4) 35,544 - - 35,544
Production costs EEMA - - 36,680 36,680
Total st 79,338 - 36,680 116,018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Drilling Rig

As mentioned earlier, the Group successfully deployed its drilling rig for
the EP.x-2001 exploration well in the T&M Concessions in September
2017. The Group is pleased to report that there was no productive
downtime attributable to any health and safety incidents, nor mechanical
failure of the rig itself during the drilling campaign.

The EP.x-2001 exploratory drill was the Group’s first ever project using its
own rig and own set of crews. The decision for the importation and
operation of a Group owned rig was primarily to address the issue of
drilling rig shortages, previously experienced in the Northwest Basin, as
well as to provide the Group greater flexibility in its future drilling and
workover campaigns. The decision was also a preventative measure of the
Group in response to the unpredictable nature and the inexplicable length
of time for Salta provincial regulatory authorities to historically issue drill
location and access road permits.

The rig was furthermore an opportunity for the Group to reduce its cost
of drilling, as well as to open another potential revenue stream, if
outsourced to third party exploration companies, as a standalone rig
lease, or as a packaged rig and crew drilling service.

The drilling of EP.x-2001 well using the Group’s own rig was the
culmination of almost 3 years of effort including detailed planning,
procurement, importation, and refurbishment. Over 18 months of that
time alone was the result of the rig being compounded by the
Argentinean Customs, for which no justifiable explanation has been
received for such unreasonable delays.

Looking ahead, the Group is confident that it can build on the success of
the EP.x-2001 rig campaign for the LB.x-2001 drill in Chirete, where the
rig is intended to be next deployed with a target spud date in Q4 2018,
which again is subject to the timely receipt of drill location and access
road permits.

Commodities Trading

In the second half of 2017, the Group re-entered into the business of
commodities trading with the aim to diversify its revenue and profits
base. The Group was previously engaged in commodities trading dating
back to pre-2008, where invaluable experience and business partners
were gained.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS GENERATED FROM OPEN
OFFER

The net proceeds from the Group’s Open Offer in April 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$736.40 million. As stated in the offering
memorandum of the Company dated 27 March 2017, the intended use
of the proceeds raised were for general working capital requirements of
the Group (including payment of overhead expenses for the Group's
Hong Kong office, repayment of loan, for operational requirements in
Argentina), and acquisition of suitable business opportunities.

Prior to the Open Offer, the Group had raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$557.23 million in 2016 following the issue of
subscription shares (the “Subscription Shares”) in the months of July
and November of that year. Of the monies raised, a total HK$68.77
million of the HK$320.07 million amount, earmarked for Argentina
operational purposes, was utilised to date as at year ended 2017. Whilst
the full amounts of HK$160.07 million, intended for the repayment of
loan in 2016, and HK$77.09 million monies raised and intended for
general working capital use was consumed as planned before the end
of 2017.

In respect of the total monies raised from the Group’s issue of
Subscription Shares, and the recent Open Offer, the usage of those total
proceeds during the year were as follows: HK$57.20 million for Argentina
operational purposes, HK$44.38 million for repayment of loan, and
HK$53.19 million for other general working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total unused net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$921.59 million. This comprised of
HK$251.30 million balance from the Subscription Shares and HK$670.29
million balance from the Open Offer. The Group's intended use for this
remainder balance shall continue to be for the same reasons as disclosed
in the above offering memorandum i.e. general working capital
requirements of the Group, of which HK$70.29 million balance is
available for payment of overhead expenses for the Group’s Hong Kong
office, HK$251.30 million balance for operational requirements in
Argentina, and HK$600.00 million unused funds to date, intended for
acquisition of suitable business opportunities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND DEVELOPMENTS

The objective of the Group is to maximize profitability and increase cash
flows for the purpose of funding its exploration and development
activities, whilst at the same time ensuring its obligations for health,
safety and the environment are not compromised.
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With the recent lifting of the import ban of foreign oil into Argentina by
the government, the premium that Argentina oil price once commanded
over the international oil price has been eroded. Taking this into
consideration, together with the challenging and complex business
environment of the country, Argentina is no longer as attractive and as
profitable a proposition as it once was. Consequently, the Group is
conscious of the need to continually reassess and diversify its current
business portfolio and geographical coverage.

The Group continues to actively pursue the immediate issuance of the
expired production permit from the Formosa provincial regulatory
authorities. Despite the assurances obtained from independent legal
counsels that there is a good chance for the granting of a 10 year
extension decree, subject to the conclusion of on-going and advanced
negotiations regarding a mutually acceptable investment plan, the Group
in the meantime is taking a prudent approach, and mindful about
committing to any significant investments/expenditures in the PL
Concessions.

Thankfully, due to the recent successful 2016 subscription share issue and
2017 open offer, the Group is well funded to enable it weather through
these difficult trading conditions in Argentina, diversify into the business
of commodities trading, as well as more importantly to seek and capture
suitable future investment opportunities in the energy sector, wherever
that may be in the world.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$287.56 million, as compared to
approximately HK$57.11 million in the previous year. The increase in
revenue from continuing operations was mainly attributable to the
revenues generated from commodities trading, following the Group's re-
entry into this business during the year. The revenue derived from
commodities trading for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$244.09 million (2016: Nil). Additionally, revenue
derived from the sale of oil products under the Group’s oil exploration
and production business in 2017 was approximately HK$43.47 million.
This represents a decrease of approximately 23.88% as compared with
the HK$57.11 million revenue generated last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the low oil price environment that continues to persist in
Argentina, as well as a decrease in the volumes of oil sold. In 2017, the
average selling price of oil products was approximately US$48.63 (2016:
US$55.96) per barrel. For the year under review, the Group reported a
gross profit from continuing operations of approximately HK$6.91
million, which represents a decrease of approximately 17.93% when
compared with approximately HK$8.42 million reported last year.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

B8 & B AT BIBURZE LB O SN i = P AR SE

TS PR E B E R E 2 S E A
DA TR o KB MU E R R ZEEX &
Mg ERBRIR - MREEK T ETBASR
BENRSI A RBAEED - Bt - NEE B
AT ENFERS T EARBEBEA R
W EESE -

AEBAEER S LR ERE REE APIZE
BHCEMEENE - BE B LDEAZER
SRIMEE - BIAF KR RE 10 FEHVA SR AL -
BEEFEERINREAINEEKHER
Mg AEEFAERKRRBENIE A

BUOBEPUSITRETMNEREARE XH -

HNVEHN T ERBERNBETL-F
—tFERAHABENRY  AREEESHRNAR
o SEBESIBMN AR E R B R
Bk WA DBEXRBERmES  URE
REENE  RERBEAZSKRILERER
TRZEERERSE -

Bt %5 [ 8

HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HILFE K&
EREFECEER NN AE28756H 85
T MEFBANSINBESBT - HELY
WEEMDAAEERFRNETNSEERE S
¥ FAXEREAERESKREE - HE
—T—+F+-_A=+—HIFE " FAES®
BN H B244. 098 BB (ZT—/NF
) o thih 0 T FERAAEEARBE
MEEZARERBEEWRENAE4347TEEE
T BEFEEAZWNASI N EBSETRLY
23.88% ° %A Ty E E B R R L AR (B IR
BREEREARBEGHNEER DA - =
Tt FHERTFHYIEELNETMAS.63ET(Z
T—RNF :5596%7) c AEEREEFE
BERHEBECEERTNN A6 AEB T
BREFHSNEEBTHAL417.93% °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income from continuing operations of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$16.25 million as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$23.00 million in the previous
year. Details of other income are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

General and administrative expenses from continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$63.33 million, representing a decrease of approximately 30.03% as
compared to approximately HK$90.51 million in the previous year. Within
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017; drilling
rig expenses, staff costs, and legal and professional expenses equated to
the following approximate percentages of this expense of 14.46%,
43.57% and 12.98% respectively. Drilling rig expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$9.16 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 59.74%, as compared with approximately
HK$22.75 million last year. Staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$27.59 million, representing an increase of approximately 37.61%, as
compared with approximately HK$20.05 million incurred in 2016. Legal
and professional fees for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$8.22 million, representing an increase of approximately
1.48%, as compared with approximately HK$8.10 million last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised a reversal
of impairment loss of approximately HK$248.04 million on the exploration
and evaluation assets of the Union of Temporary Enterprise in Tartagal
Oriental and Morillo Concessions. This compares to the recognition of an
impairment loss of approximately HK$102.69 million in 2016. Impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$19.43 million, versus an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1.70 million last year. No
impairment loss on other receivables was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017, as compared to approximately HK$1.05 million
recognised in the previous year.

The Group recognised a net investment loss in respect of financial
instruments of approximately HK$37.49 million for the year ended 31
December 2017; whilst a net gain of approximately HK$13.75 million was
recognised last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised exploration
expenses in relation to a dry hole of approximately HK$35.54 million. No
such expense was incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BEER WK D

AEEBE_T—tF+-_A=+t—RHLFE
KEBBEREEBHEMBANR16258E
B MEFRIEELD23.0088ET - Kty
WA BEEN A LR M MAMEG

BHE_ZT—tHF+-_A=+—HIEFE  &&
ERELEEBN —MEITHRMASZHA63.33
BEBIT REFHOSIEE BT LY
3003% cHE-_T—+F+-_A=1+—HIt
FEMITHRAS F - BHEER - BTHRANRE
BAREERIT O RETEREZM14.46%
4357% N 1298% - BHE-_FT—tF+=A
T —HILEFEMNEBERBRANAII6EER
TC o REFH22.75BEBILRALH59.74% ©
REFME TR AL E2759FE BT B
T —RNF#2005BE BT IMAI37.61% °
HE_Z—+FE+-A=+—HILtFENELE
MEEXBRNAS2EEBT  BEFLS.10
BEBITIEIMNA1.48% °

HE_Z—+FE+-A=+—HIFE &£
HL L FA Tartagal Oriental 55 5 7 [& & Morillo
5 FFHEE B Union of Temporary Enterprise £ &)
FERFHEERR L E AR ER1E4248.04
BEBT MZT—AFRERBEFEY
10269A8BTT - AEEHE_T—tF+=
A=+—BIHENTHHERENRESE
#1943 E BB MEFRAREEIBY
170888 T - REBEE-Z—+EF+=H
=+— B L FE 00 B E M FEGRIBRE R
RERE - 1A Bl 58 5 A JE WO IB R (B &S
BH1.0585887T -

HE_ZT—+HF+_A=1+—BILFE &&

EERAER T AEREFBIBFEN3I749E8EE
JC 0 MEFRIFERIN G FEEA13.75BBETT

BE_T—+F+_A=t—RHLEFE &

SEMEHER D IRFAL 35548 &EBTT
HE _Z-RF+_A=+—HILEFELE

EEZERX




24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$3.30 million on the
partial disposal of interest in a joint venture of the Group (the “Partial
Disposal”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Partial Disposal
was completed in January 2017 resulting in the Group'’s interest in the
joint venture being decreased from 42.10% t0 29.92%.

Finance costs from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$19.29 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 27.37%, as compared with approximately
HK$26.56 million last year. The decrease in finance costs was mainly the
result of the decrease in interest expenses on other borrowings.

Share of losses of joint ventures of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 were approximately HK$4.15 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 33.92%, as compared with approximately
HK$6.28 million in the previous year.

Income tax credit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$6.44 million, representing an increase of
approximately 6.98%, when compared with approximately HK$6.02
million last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a profit from
continuing operations of approximately HK$101.70 million, as compared
to a loss of approximately HK$223.59 million last year. The turnaround
from the loss to profit was mainly attributable to the combined net effect
in 2017 of the recognition of the reversal of impairment loss on
exploration and evaluation assets, the recognition of exploration expenses
in respect of dry hole, the recognition of net investment loss in respect of
other financial assets and the increase in impairment loss on available-for-
sale investments.

The Group's profit from discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2016, which included the upstream business in the United
States of America and the natural gas distribution business in the People’s
Republic of China was approximately HK$98.57 million.

Earnings per share from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately HK1.26 cents, as compared
to a loss per share of approximately HK5.59 cents (restated) in 2016.

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations from a
combination of working capital, short-term borrowings and proceeds
from the issuance of new shares of the Company. In April 2017, an open
offer of 2,955,160,996 shares of the Company (the “Offer Shares”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.25 per Offer Share, issued on the basis of one
Offer Share for every two Shares held was completed, raising net
proceeds of approximately HK$736.40 million. The net proceeds from the
issuance of new shares was used for (1) Argentina operational purposes;
approximately HK$57.20 million and (2) General working capital
requirements for the repayment of loan and payment of overhead
expenses; approximately HK$97.57 million. Of the monies raised from the
issuance of new shares, the Company as at 31 December 2017 had
approximately HK$921.59 million of unutilised proceeds. These monies is
intended to be used by the Group for general working capital
requirements including the repayment of loan and payment of overhead
expenses, Argentina operational purposes, and to strengthen and build a
lucrative and balanced oil and gas portfolio, when suitable opportunities
arise.

The Group adopted a treasury policy for the investment of surplus cash
not designated for use on projects or other specific purposes in the next
six months in the form of short term investments with expiration, maturity
or termination dates of six months or less. Short term investments of the
Group may include but not be limited to the purchase of liquid stocks,
term deposits and other high yield financial instruments which may
provide more attractive rates of return than bank saving rates. The
Executive Committee of the Company is responsible for approving and
reporting to the board of directors of the Company the Group’s short
term investment decisions. The Group considers those short term
investments that can generate steady income streams, and monitors the
performance of those short term investments periodically. Details of the
Group's short term investments using the surplus cash from unutilised
proceeds raised from the issuance of new shares of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Significant Investments”.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$1,217.66 million (2016: HK$701.31 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

As at 31 December 2017, current assets amounted to approximately
HK$1,308.18 million (2016: HK$783.19 million), of which approximately
HK$843.95 million (2016: HK$398.63 million) was cash and cash
equivalents, approximately HK$329.61 million (2016: HK$242.28 million)
was other financial assets, approximately HK$17.14 million (2016:
HK$17.52 million) was inventories, approximately HK$74.66 million
(2016: HK$124.37 million) was trade and other receivables, approximately
HK$42.69 million (2016: HK$35.79 million which was classified as non-
current assets) was promissory note receivable and approximately
HK$0.13 million (2016: HK$0.39 million) was current tax recoverable.

Current liabilities as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$90.52 million (2016: HK$81.88 million), of which approximately
HK$88.14 million (2016: HK$44.27 million) was trade and other payables
and approximately HK$2.38 million (2016: HK$37.61 million) was other
borrowings which were due for repayment within one year.

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2017 were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United States Dollar and
Argentina Peso.

As at 31 December 2017, total equity of the Group was approximately
HK$3,467.32 million (2016: HK$2,651.27 million). Net asset value per
share equated to approximately HK$0.39 (2016: HK$0.45). Debt ratio,
calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets, was approximately
8.36% as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 13.51%).

Borrowings

Total borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$213.78 million which comprised of debt securities in issue, whilst
total borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$331.76 million which comprised of other borrowings and debt
securities in issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The debt profile of the Group as at 31 December 2017 is detailed below:
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Financial covenants

Approximately HK$54.40 million (2016: HK$54.40 million) of the Group's
other borrowings are subject to the fulfilment of financial covenants
relating to the Company'’s assets/liabilities ratio and consolidated adjusted
net tangible assets of the Group, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to be in
breach these financial covenants, the Group’s other borrowings would
become payable on demand. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, none of the financial covenants relating to other borrowings were
breached.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

Fund raising activities during the year

On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 2,955,160,996 Offer Shares of
the Company pursuant to the open offer at the subscription price of
HK$0.25 per Offer Share on the basis of one Offer Share for every two
Shares held on 21 March 2017. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$736.40 million from the open offer was raised. During the 2017 year,
net proceeds of approximately HK$66.11 million from the open offer was
used for general working capital requirements including the repayment of
loan and payment of overhead expenses. As at 31 December 2017, the
Company had unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$670.29 million
raised from the open offer, of which (1) approximately HK$11.00 million
is designated for general working capital requirements including the
repayment of loan and payment of overhead expenses; (2) approximately
HK$59.29 million for Argentina operational purposes; and (3)
approximately HK$600.00 million for use by the Group to strengthen and
build a lucrative and balanced oil and gas portfolio, when suitable
opportunities arises.

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2017, gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of interest
bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was approximately 6.17%
(2016: 12.51%).

Charge on Assets
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any charge on its assets
(2016: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).

Capital Commitments
Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties including
business risks, operational risks and financial risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group re-entered the business of commodities trading during the
year, which creates exposure to development risk, as well as supply chain
risk. The Group mitigates these risk factors by developing its customer
base in order to achieve better operating performance on its commodities
trades, and also by expanding its supplier base to achieve a stable supply
of commodities.

The Group’s business activities in exploration, development, production
and sale of crude oil are susceptible to geological, exploration and
development risks. Uncertainties exist with regards to the extension of the
Group’s production permit in the Palmar Largo concessions. Details are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group
strives to establish and maintain comprehensive technical and operational
teams. Through detailed planning, analysis and discussion amongst the
teams, and with the support from experienced consultants and experts,
the Group is able to manage and mitigate the risks arising from changes
in the business environment to a reasonably acceptable level.

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, price risk arising from prices
fluctuation of crude oil and commodities, and equity price risk arising
from its investment in equity securities. Details of the financial risk
management of the Group are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition to the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, there may be
other risks and uncertainties which the Group has not identified, or is
aware of, or considers it to be of minimal impact to the Group presently,
which however has the potential to become significant in the future.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, United States Dollar and Argentine Peso. Most of these assets and
liabilities are in the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to foreign exchange risk is
primarily those from our exploration and production activities in Argentina
and investments in foreign companies. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group will monitor the foreign exchange exposures on an on-going basis
and will consider hedging instruments should the need arise.
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BEER W& D

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 51 (2016: 55)
permanent employees in Hong Kong and Argentina. Total employee
remuneration from continuing operations (including directors’
remuneration and benefits) for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$27.59 million (2016: HK$20.05 million). The Group
provides its employees with competitive remuneration packages relative
to their job performance, qualifications, experience, and prevailing market
conditions in the respective geographical locations and businesses in
which the Group operates.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, social communities and
governments in order to meet its objectives and long-term goals. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Business Review”, there was no material
or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders during the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed in notes 5 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt
effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving
and waste reduction. Details of the environmental policies and
performance of the Group are set out in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section of this annual report.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held available-for-sale investments
(see note 23 to the consolidated financial statements) and other financial
assets (see note 26 to the consolidated financial statements) amounting
to approximately HK$36.62 million (2016: HK$58.43 million) and
approximately HK$329.61 million (2016: HK$242.28 million) respectively.
Cumulatively, this represents approximately 9.68% (2016: 9.81%) of the
Group's total assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Details of the Group’s available-for-sale investments and other financial
assets are outlined below:

0]

(i)

Available-for-sale investments

The Group’s available-for-sale investments comprised of unlisted
equity investments in NordAq Energy Inc. (“NordAq") and Foothills
Exploration Inc. (“Foothills Exploration”) amounting to
approximately HK$31.24 million (2016: HK$33.63 million) and
HK$5.37 million (2016: HK$24.80 million) respectively.

NordAq is an oil and gas company based in Anchorage, Alaska and
is mainly engaged in exploration, appraisal and development of
hydrocarbon reserves in the State of Alaska, the United States of
America. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised a loss of approximately HK$2.38 million (2016: gain of
HK$8.39 million) on the change in fair value of the equity interest
in NordAq in the statement of other comprehensive income. Whilst
for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1.70 million on its equity
interest in NordAq in the profit or loss statement.

Foothills Exploration is an oil and gas exploration and production
company engaged in the acquisition and development of oil and
natural gas properties in the United States of America. During the
year, there was a decline in the fair value of the equity interest in
Foothills Exploration, thereby giving rise to an indication that the
investment was impaired. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$19.43 million (2016: Nil) was recognised in the profit or loss
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Other financial assets

The Group's other financial assets comprised of listed equity
securities at fair value, unlisted investment funds at fair value and
unlisted equity-linked securities amounting to approximately
HK$198.97 million (2016: HK$242.28 million), approximately
HK$100.78 million (2016: Nil) and approximately HK$29.86 million
(2016: Nil) respectively.

0]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER W& D

Listed equity securities at fair value represented shares in Beijing
Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6828) (“Blue Sky").
The principal activity of Blue Sky is investment holding and Blue
Sky’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales and distribution of
natural gas and other related products. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group recognised a loss of approximately
HK$39.53 million (2016: a gain of approximately HK$10.49 million)
on the change in fair value of the shares in Blue Sky in the profit or
loss statement.

During the year, the Group invested in unlisted investment funds at
fair value with the use of surplus cash for short term investment
purposes, pursuant to the Group's treasury policy on investment of
surplus cash. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised dividend income of approximately HK$0.73 million
(2016: Nil) on unlisted investment funds at fair value and a gain of
approximately HK$0.80 million (2016: Nil) on the change in fair
value of the unlisted investment funds at fair value. The Group
considers that the unlisted investment funds at fair value would
generate steady income stream and provide a better rate of return.

The unlisted investment funds at fair value comprised of certain
funds. The business coverage of the unlisted investment funds at
fair value included, but not limited to, investment in a global multi-
sector range of fixed income securities, investment in different asset
classes in emerging markets including equities, debt securities,
money market instruments and commodities, investment in
different asset classes in Europe including European equities,
European debt securities and European cash instruments,
investment in subordinated euro-denominated bonds issued by
financial institutions including higher rated bonds (investment
grade) on a diversified exposure approach, investment in worldwide
high yield bonds across a number of issuers, and investment in
money market instruments, worldwide bonds including government
bonds, investment grade corporate bonds and high yield corporate
bonds, and worldwide equities across a number of industries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the 2017 year, the Group invested in unlisted equity-linked
securities with the use of the surplus cash for short term investment
purposes pursuant to the Group’s treasury policy on investment of
surplus cash. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised interest income of approximately HK$0.66 million (2016:
Nil) on unlisted equity-linked securities and a loss of approximately
HK$0.14 million (2016: Nil) on the change in fair value of the
unlisted equity-linked securities. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting year, all of the unlisted equity-linked securities were early
redeemed by the issuer.

The unlisted equity-linked securities with a coupon rate of 10.00%
per annum and a maturity period of three months contain
embedded derivatives that are linked to the performance of pre-
agreed basket of underlying equity securities listed in Hong Kong.
During its tenure, as long as the unlisted equity-linked securities
have not been early redeemed or early terminated, the pre-agreed
fixed coupon will be paid at the end of each periodic fixed coupon
payment date, regardless of the performance of the underlying
stocks in the basket. The terms of the unlisted equity-linked
securities enable the issuer, on the maturity date, either to deliver
the worst performing underlying stock in the basket at the pre-
agreed strike price if the closing prices of all the underlying stocks
in the basket are below the pre-agreed strike prices on the valuation
date or cash settlement of the principal and the coupon if the
closing prices of all the underlying stocks in the basket are equal to
or greater than the pre-agreed strike prices on the valuation date.
The terms of the unlisted equity-linked securities also enable the
issuer, on a pre-set early redemption event observation date, to
redeem the unlisted equity-linked securities at its principal amount
plus the coupon if the closing prices of all the underlying stocks in
the basket are equal to or greater than the pre-agreed knock-out
prices.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES

MERERERFEERERZER

NORTHWEST BASIN, ARGENTINA

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M
Concessions”)

The prospective oil and gas resources in the T&M Concessions are as
follows:

At 31 December 2017
R=F—tH+=A=+—H

B AR 3£ Fa db 22 3

Tartagal Oriental &z Morillo 4% 5 # &
((T&MFFRE D
RTAMEF TR 2 2SR EREAT ¢

At 31 December 2016
RZZE—X~"F+-A=+—H

oil Gas 0] Gas

(in MMBBL) (in BCF) (in MMBBL) (in BCF)

rap: RAR A AAR

Prospective Resources BEER (BB%) (+HBYAR) (B&®) (+BIAR)
Category Gross (100%) BRI (100%)

Low Estimate &R 488.2 68.7 508.9

Best Estimate REEfEE 1,564.6 164.8 1,578.1

High Estimate S{SIRE 5,075.9 394.2 5,191.3

Notes:

(1

@

The technical report was prepared and updated by Netherland, Sewell & Associates,
Inc. (“NSAI"), an international independent qualified technical adviser, as of 1 January
2018 in accordance with the definitions and guidelines set forth in the 2007 Petroleum
Resources Management System (PRMS) approved by the Society of Petroleum
Engineers. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, a change occurred in the Group’s oil
and gas prospective resources and as disclosed in the table above. This change was as
a result of further data gained from the recent drilling of EP.x-2001 well which has
enabled the petrophysical parameter ranges included in the stochastic volumetric
calculations of the prospects to be refined.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using probabilistic
methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being made. Unrisked
prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil and gas volumes
assuming their discovery and development and are based on estimated ranges of
undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of prospective resources addresses the
probability of success for the discovery of a significant quantity of potentially moveable
petroleum; this risk analysis is conducted independent of estimations of petroleum
volumes and without regard to the chance of development. Principal geologic risk
elements of the petroleum system including (1) trap and seal characteristics; (2)
reservoir presence and quality; (3) source rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4)
timing, migration, and preservation of petroleum in relation to trap and seal formation.
Risk assessment is a highly subjective process dependent upon the experience and
judgment of the evaluators and is subject to revision with further data acquisition or
interpretation. There was no material change on the assumptions adopted in the
updated report in compare with the previous report.
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES
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Chirete Concession
The prospective oil and gas resources in the Chirete Concession are as
follows:

Prospective Resources BRER
Category Gross (100%) B RI# 5T (100%)
Low Estimate BIEfhET
Best Estimate =AM
High Estimate = fdEr

Notes:

)

3)

In July 2016, New Times Energy became a 50% participating partner in the Chirete
Concession having met all the conditions precedent as stipulated in the farm-in
agreement entered into with Pampa Energia S.A. (formerly Petrobras Argentina S.A.) in
April 2015.

The technical report was prepared by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (“NSAI"),
an international independent qualified technical adviser, as of 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the definitions and guidelines set forth in the 2007 Petroleum
Resources Management System (PRMS) approved by the Society of Petroleum
Engineers. As at 31 December 2017, a change occurred in the Group’s oil prospective
resources and as disclosed in the table above. This change was the result of further
information obtained from analysis and review of logging data obtained from the
recent drilling of LB.x-1002 well, whereby the data indicated a lower fracture porosity
than was previously modelled in the stochastic volumetric analysis of the prospects.
Due to the existence of insignificant quantities of prospective gas resources, no
estimate of this gas was made in NSAI's technical report.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using probabilistic
methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being made. Unrisked
prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil and gas volumes
assuming their discovery and development and are based on estimated ranges of
undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of prospective resources addresses the
probability of success for the discovery of a significant quantity of potentially moveable
petroleum; this risk analysis is conducted independent of estimations of petroleum
volumes and without regard to the chance of development. Principal geologic risk
elements of the petroleum system including (1) trap and seal characteristics; (2)
reservoir presence and quality; (3) source rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4)
timing, migration, and preservation of petroleum in relation to trap and seal formation.
Risk assessment is a highly subjective process dependent upon the experience and
judgment of the evaluators and is subject to revision with further data acquisition or
interpretation. There was no material change on the assumptions adopted in the
updated report in compare with the previous report.
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES

MERERERFEERERZER

Palmar Largo Concessions (the “PL Concessions”)
The following table sets out the Group’s net interest in 2P Reserves in the

Palmar Largo 455T# & ([ PLIFRFHE |)
TEREINAEEFANRPLEFT R Z 2PHEE

PL Concessions for the year: HRER
Volume to
end of field life
Y FH A SR ER
TRERZES
Qil
(in MBBL)
YN
(F#)
2P Reserves 2PH#EE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 648
Production/Consumption HE/ERE (113)
Discoveries & revisions IR KR 48
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 583
Notes: fiEE -
(1) The technical report was updated by J@R Consultora S.A., an independent qualified (1) BT 3R 2 B %8 2 A & 18 BT B S J@R Consultora

technical adviser, as of 31 December 2017 in accordance with Resolution 324/2006 of
the Argentine National Energy Secretariat and followed the recommendations and
guidelines established by the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

(2) The volume to the end of field life has been estimated based on the assumptions that
the Palmar Largo UTE will be able to extend the concession beyond its current expiry
date of 23 December 2017 for a further 10 years until 23 December 2027 and that it
will continue to operate the PL Concession to the end of the field life. It is estimated
that the 2P Reserves can be produced economically until 2024.
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Kam Chiu, Stewart, aged 63, was appointed as an
Executive Director in February 2008 and the Chairman in May 2009. Mr.
Cheng holds a Bachelor’s degree in Civil and Environmental Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the United States of America
(“USA"); a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of
California, Berkeley, USA; and a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Being a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr. Cheng is a
professional engineer with extensive experience in property development
and construction management. Mr. Cheng is a member of the Shunde
District, Foshan City Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since November 2006.

Mr. Cheng joined Hip Hing Construction Company Limited in 1984 as a
project manager and was subsequently appointed as director. From 1993
to 1997, Mr. Cheng was transferred to New World Development (China)
Limited as a director and an assistant general manager, overseeing
property development in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). He was
a director of NWS Service Management Limited from 1997 to 2006, and
was mainly responsible for the construction and the electrical and
mechanical engineering businesses and pursuing business opportunities
in the PRC. Mr. Cheng is the managing director of Cheung Hung
Development (Holdings) Limited, principally engaging in property
development in both Hong Kong and the PRC. He was an executive
director of International Entertainment Corporation from January 2008 to
June 2017, whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. TANG John Wing Yan, aged 65, was appointed as an Executive
Director in June 2017. Mr. Tang joined the Group as General Manager in
August 2015. He brought with him over 20 years of senior management
experience and had held top executive positions with various international
companies prior to joining the Group.

Formally trained as a structural engineer, Mr. Tang was a Chartered
Engineer in the United Kingdom (“UK") as well as a Registered
Professional Engineer in USA and Canada. Author and co-author of peer-
reviewed publications in several technical journals and conferences, he is
also the holder of U.S. Patent US6329589 pertaining to wireless
transmission of solar power for exterior curtain wall in buildings.

=588

HITES

BBEELE 635 R_TT/\F_AKZRMT
RBATESR IR _TTNFRARRERE
& o B AR A RBRET RN BERE L
ARERFETIZET2M - EBINNAE R
DREARTIRE TR - UAREBPXKRET
BERELSM -RATEIRMEBEEE -
BrREREXTRRM RNYEXERLTREER
STHREEELR BELEA_TETF+—
ARHETFBEARBGHAGRGBILTERES
IBfEmE 8 -

R—\E - B ENAGERESR AR
FETHEEKE HRBEZTAEE - R
—NAZFE—NNEEM - S0 EEE T
AER(PR)BRAF - HEEEHRPBLAL
B BEEERFEARKEME((HE]ZD
EBRER - PR NANEEE_TZTNFH
HEFREREEEERARCES 28
ERRIBRBETIRER ALY EHERE
B BEEARIER(EB)ERARICES
B FEREBRTENREDERET
- R BT N\F—AE_T—+FAF
MABRBRIREESR ARG ZHITES  ZAFZ
BHOREEHARSMAR AR ([BRAT) £
m e

B

WKBEE 6558 RZE—FNAEZT
BRITES - BAER-Z—AF/\AMAR
SEEFALCE - BEEREEBB-TFNS
WMEIRLE  WANMAREEREELRER
NEREITHEE °

B AT BB TIZANERE - DRI EE
AT TR - UWREERE K INE AR
BEETRM - BEELCUEAREMBASG
EF DN E T LM 8T KB R 18 3 K 21iTie
X BRENERERAESRITERETINGK
PBREEREATELEMTAL - WRIL AT
BSERFMEF (4R A US6329589) °

R BERA R A A
ZT—EFFR

37



38

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
E588

Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering, Magna Cum
Laude, from the University of Massachusetts, USA; a Master’'s degree in
Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley, USA; and a
Graduate-Level Diploma in Financial Engineering from Stanford University,
USA.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Man Kong, Peter, 885, JP, aged 69, was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director in May 2013. He acted as a Non-
executive Director from February 2008 to May 2013. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering (Naval Architecture)
from the University of California, Berkeley, USA. He was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and was an awardee of the “Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong”. Mr. Wong is a deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the PRC. He is also the standing committee vice chairman of
Hong Kong Pei Hua Education Association, the executive chairman of
China Chamber of Tourism, a director of Ji Nan University, and a senior
member of The University of Hong Kong Foundation for Educational
Development and Research.

Mr. Wong currently holds directorship in several companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, including a non-executive director of Hong Kong Ferry
(Holdings) Company Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Far East
Consortium International Limited, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, MGM
China Holdings Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited and Sun Hung Kai
& Company Limited. He is also the chairman of M.K. Corporation Limited,
North West Development Limited, Culture Resources Development
Company Limited, Silk Road Hotel Management Company Limited and
Silk Road Travel Management Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of Chinney Investments, Limited from March 2004 to
August 2017.
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Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen, aged 51, was re-designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director in May 2012. He acted as an Executive Director
and the Chairman from May to October 2006 and a Non-executive
Director from October 2006 to May 2012. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’s
degree with honours in Business Administration and a Master of Science
degree with distinction in Corporate Governance and Directorship. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is a
practicing certified public accountant and has extensive experience in
financial management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.

Mr. Chan is currently an executive director of e-Kong Group Limited,
Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited and Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Affluent
Partners Holdings Limited, Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited, China
Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited, Media Asia Group Holdings Limited
and Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an executive director of South East Group
Limited (currently known as “China Minsheng Drawin Technology Group
Limited”) from December 2013 to July 2015 and Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited from December 2014 to October 2015, and an independent non-
executive director of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited from January
2015 to October 2017 and U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited”)
from November 2010 to December 2017.

Mr. YUNG Chun Fai, Dickie, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in March 2013. Mr. Yung holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau. He is
a member of the Institute of Management and a fellow of the Chartered
Management Institute. Mr. Yung has been engaged in finance and
banking businesses for over 26 years. He was the chief executive officer
of Landbridge Holdings Limited, the deputy chief executive officer of
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited and an executive
director, deputy general manager and alternate chief executive officer of
Industrial & Commercial International Capital Limited (currently known as
"ICBC International Holdings Limited”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. CHIU Wai On, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chiu is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. He
possesses extensive professional experience in accounting and auditing
services. Mr. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive director of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SHREEAEEHR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Mr. LAM Hon Hing, aged 46, joined the Group in February 2017 as the
Assistant Company Secretary. He was appointed as the Company
Secretary in June 2017. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor’s degree in Social
Sciences from Lingnan University, Hong Kong, a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from Baptist University, Hong Kong and a
Bachelor of Laws degree from University of London, UK and he is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the UK.
Mr. Lam has over 18 years of professional experience in the company
secretarial field.

Regional Financial Controller

Mr. MAK, Peter Kwok Ming, aged 41, joined the Group in October
2015 as a Project Manager. Mr. Mak holds a M.A. Honours degree in
Business Organisation from Heriot-Watt University, Edinburgh, UK. He is a
qualified Chartered Accountant of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales (ICAEW), with over 19 years professional
accounting and auditing experience. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mak
gained over 6 years relevant oil and gas industry experience in his previous
roles as audit manager with KPMG and financial controller with
Schlumberger, where his last posting was with WesternGeco in Penang,
Malaysia.

Exploration & Development Manager

Mr. MOUG, Duncan Gareth, aged 39, joined the Group as an
Exploration & Development Manager in January 2017. Mr. Moug holds a
Bachelor’'s Honours degree in Applied & Environmental Geological
Engineering from the University of Birmingham, UK. He has over 19 years
of upstream oil and gas experience in areas covering directional drilling &
formation evaluation with Halliburton Energy Services & Geology, drilling,
exploration and project management with Chevron Corporation. He is a
member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers, The South East Asia
Petroleum Exploration Society (SEAPEX), Petroleum Exploration Society of
Great Britain (PESGB) and Geological Society of South Africa (GSSA).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (the “Company”) submits herewith their
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the above
sections, no important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
end of the Year. Certain financial key performance indicators can be
found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group's relationship with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance are
included in the sections headed “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company for the Year.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the Year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 4
June 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 8 June 2018.
During this period, no transfers of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 June 2018.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 223 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURE
There were no issue of bonds or debentures of the Company during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders
of the Company, under the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws") or the
laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities. If the Shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to the Company’s
securities, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 35(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Pursuant to the
Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company’s
contribution surplus of HK$740,880,000 is currently not available for
distribution. The Company’s share premium account of
HK$4,881,035,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Details of the above are set out in note 35(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for 100% and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 51.12% of the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations for the Year. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 72.08%
and the largest suppliers accounted for approximately 62.26% of the
Group's total purchases from continuing operations for the Year.

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

During the Year, the Group conducted the following transactions:

Connected Transaction

Proposed Open Offer

On 13 February 2017, the Company proposed an open offer (the “Open
Offer”) on the basis of one offer share for every two shares (the
“Shares”) held on 21 March 2017 at the subscription price of HK$0.25
per offer share. A special general meeting was held on 15 March 2017
whereby the Shareholders had approved the arrangement that any other
Shares not validly applied for by the Shareholders were not available for
application by other Shareholders in excess of their assured allotments.
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On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 2,955,160,996 Offer Shares of
the Company pursuant to the Open Offer at the subscription price of
HK$0.25 per offer share on the basis of one offer share for every two
Shares held on 21 March 2017. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$736.40 million from the Open Offer was raised.

Max Sun Enterprises Limited (“Max Sun”), being the substantial
Shareholder and underwriter, was beneficially interested in
3,516,537,544 shares, representing approximately 59.50% of the issued
share capital of the Company before the completion of the Open Offer.
Accordingly, Max Sun was a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Therefore, the
Open Offer constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2014, Jumbo Hope Group Limited (“Jumbo Hope”)
entered with New World Tower Company Limited (the “Landlord”) into
the following documents:

(i) an offer letter of the tenancy (the “Tenancy Offer Letter A”) in
respect of the lease of the office unit at Room 1402, 14/F, New
World Tower I, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 15 March 2014 to 14 March 2017 (both dates
inclusive), at a monthly rental of HK$57,155 (exclusive of services
charges and government rates); and

(i)  an offer letter of a tenancy renewal (the “Tenancy Offer Letter B”)
in respect of the lease of the office unit at Room 1401, 14/F, New
World Tower |, 16—18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2017 (both dates
inclusive), at a monthly rental of HK$174,155 (exclusive of service
charges and government rates), to be equally borne by Jumbo Hope
and Cheung Hung Development (Holdings) Limited.

The Landlord is a wholly-owned subsidiary of New World Development
Company Limited, which Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is the
controlling shareholder. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is
100.00%-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Since the Landlord
is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, which was also the
substantial Shareholder of the Company since the change in shareholding
of Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited on 21 December 2015 and is the
controlling Shareholder of the Company, the Landlord is therefore a
connected person of the Company and the transactions under the
Tenancy Offer Letter A and the Tenancy Offer Letter B constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company (the “CCT") under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Board, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, has
reviewed the CCT and confirmed that the CCT were:

(i)  entered into by the Group in its ordinary and usual course of
businesses;

(i)  conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

(i) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing the CCT

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, also
confirmed that:

(@)  the aggregate amount for the period from 1 January 2017 to 14
March 2017 did not exceed the annual cap amount of HK$230,000
for the rent and the services charges paid by the Group under the
Tenancy Offer Letter A as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 February 2014 and 11 March 2014;

(b) the aggregate amount for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31
May 2017 did not exceed the annual cap amount of HK$500,000
for the rent and the services charges paid by the Group under the
Tenancy Offer Letter B as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 February 2014 and 11 March 2014; and

() the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the CCT in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant. The
Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCT by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Save as disclosed above, certain amounts of the transactions as set out in
note 37(c)(i) and (ii) to the consolidated financial statements fall within
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules and each constitutes a de minimis
transaction which were exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed above, the remaining related party transactions for the
Year as set out in note 37(c) to the consolidated financial statements
under the heading of “Material related party transactions” did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Kun (resigned on 9 February 2018)

Mr. Tang John Wing Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 30 June 2017)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (re-designated on 30 June 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 39 of this
annual report.
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RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, Mr. Tang John Wing Yan was appointed as an Executive
Director with effect from 30 June 2017. In accordance with Bye-law 86(2)
of the Bye-laws, Mr. Tang John Wing Yan shall hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election as an Executive Director for a term of
three years at the AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws and to comply with the
code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart and Mr.
Chiu Wai On shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as an Executive Director and an Independent
Non-executive Director respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Warrants

On 16 July 2012, pursuant to the conditional warrant subscription
agreement dated 29 May 2012 entered into between the Company and
Max Sun, the substantial Shareholder of the Company, a total of
100,000,000 unlisted warrants was issued by the Company to Max Sun
at an issue price of HK$0.02 conferring the rights to subscribe for an
aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$1.05 per share. Upon the completion of open offer in January
2015, the exercise price of the unlisted warrants was adjusted from
HK$1.05 to HK$0.86 per share. As a result, the rights attached to the
unlisted warrants to subscribe ordinary shares of the Company were
adjusted from 100,000,000 ordinary shares to 122,093,023 ordinary
shares. Such unlisted warrants were lapsed on 15 July 2017.

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2011,
the Shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme
adopted on 30 August 2002 (the “Old Scheme”). No further share
options may be granted under the Old Scheme upon its termination and
share options granted and unexercised prior to such termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the Old Scheme.
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The Share Option Scheme is adopted under the relevant requirements of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and its purpose is to provide incentives or
rewards to the eligible participants thereunder for their contribution or
would be contributions to the Group and/or enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group. Eligible participants include any Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director),
employee (whether full time or part time), any supplier of goods or
services to the Group, any customer of the Group, any agent or
consultant that provides research, development, technological support or
other services to the Group, any shareholder or any member of the Group
or any holder of any securities issued by the Group. The Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from the date of coming into effect.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the limit and such limit may be refreshed by the Shareholders
in general meeting. In addition, the total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
share options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme to each eligible
participants (other than an Independent Non-executive Director or a
substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates) in any 12-month period up to and including the date of the
latest grant of share options must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at
such date. Any further grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under the Share Option Schemes, any grant of share options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of the Company, or
any of their respective associates are subject to approval by the
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to an Independent Non-executive Director or a substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
share options already granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and
(i) having an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of share options
by the Board must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting of
the Company.

The period within which share options may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options and that the Board may at its discretion
determine the minimum period for which the share options have to be
held before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto.

The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of such share options; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of such share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.

During the Year, no share options were granted nor cancelled under the
Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no
other outstanding share options.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the Directors of the Company nor a
connected entity of the Directors had any beneficial interests, whether
direct or indirect, in any significant transactions, arrangements or
contracts to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the Year.

None of the Directors had any service contract, which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") in respect of
information required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange by the Directors and/or chief executive of the Company
pursuant to the SFO or to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (or any other applicable code), there were no
interests, whether long or short positions, held or deemed to be
interested by any of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), nor
had there been any rights to subscribe for any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations held or
deemed to be interested by any of them as at 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors and their respective associates was considered to have any
interest in any businesses that competes with or is likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position of substantial Shareholders’ interests in

ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Shareholders

BREREH

Max Sun (note (i)
B3 (FIEEG))

Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited
("CTFNL") (note (ii))

BAXREREAEBRAG(EARAEREAD
(HF3EGI)

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
("CTFHL") (note (iii))

FAXREER) BRAR([AXEER])
(B Gii))

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
("CTFC") (note (iv))

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ([ CTFC])
(B EE(iv))

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
("CYTFH") (note (v))

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(TCYTFH ) (FiFE (V)

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited
("CYTFH-1I") (note (vi))

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited
(TCYTFH-I) (B 3E (vi))

Elberta Holdings Limited

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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Capacity/
Nature of interests

54 EatE

Beneficially owned
BEnlER

Interests in a controlled
corporation
S AE R

Interests in a controlled
corporation
SEAE R

Interests in a controlled
corporation
SEEE R

Interests in a controlled
corporation
SEEE RS

Interests in a controlled
corporation
S AE R

Beneficially owned
BEnlER

TERRREAQBEERZEFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary total issued
shares held share capital
HE T

FsEE RA< 2
RDEE BHABEDL
(note (vii))

(B & (vii))

5,737,129,098 64.71%
5,737,129,098 64.71%
5,761,900,848 64.99%
5,761,900,848 64.99%
5,761,900,848 64.99%
5,761,900,848 64.99%
794,850,000 8.97%



Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entire issued share capital of Max Sun is legally and beneficially owned by CTFNL.

CTFNL holds 100% direct interest in Max Sun and is accordingly deemed to have an
interest in the shares held by Max Sun.

CTFHL holds 99.80% direct interest in CTFNL and is accordingly deemed to have an
interest in the shares of CTFNL.

CTFC holds 81.03% direct interest in CTFHL and is accordingly deemed to have an
interest in the shares of CTFHL.

CYTFH holds 48.98% direct interest in CTFC and is accordingly deemed to have an
interest in the shares of CTFC.

CYTFH-II holds 46.65% direct interest in CTFC and is accordingly deemed to have an
interest in the shares of CTFC.

The approximate percentage of interests held was calculated on the basis of
8,865,482,988 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other interest recorded in the register
that is required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2017.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information on Directors of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, has retired as an independent non-
executive director of Chinney Investments, Limited (Stock Code:
216) with effect from 25 August 2017.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, has resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 397) and
U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited (currently known as “Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited”) (Stock Code: 627) with
effect from 20 October 2017 and 1 December 2017 respectively.

Mr. Zhang Kun has resigned as an Executive Director as well as a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company with effect
from 9 February 2018.

Mr. Cheng Ming Kit resigned as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 13 April 2018.

Bt

q

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
55 to 71 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG.

Messrs. KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG as
independent auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

New Times Energy Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) strives to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs of its
businesses and the best interests of its stakeholders. The board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company believes that
effective governance is essential to the maintenance of the Group’s
competitiveness and to its healthy growth. The Company has adopted
and applied the principles of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Company was in compliance with the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year"”) and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the CG Code, save and except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officers (“CEO") should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Given the corporate structure of the
Board, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, was assuming the role of CEO of the Company,
responsible for the strategic planning and day-to-day management of the
Group during the year under review.

For the purpose of complying with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the Board has appointed Mr. Tang John Wing Yan as an Executive
Director and CEO of the Company with effect from 30 June 2017. The
Board considers that, given the current Board structure, a clear division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO has been achieved to
ensure effective running of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the businesses of the Group.
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TRERBRE

Code Provision A.4.1

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. During
the Year under review, all Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term. They were,
however, subject to the requirements of retirement and re-election at
least once every three years at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws (the "Bye-laws”) and code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures were taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices were no less
exacting than those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should attend general meetings. During the Year under review, two
Independent Non-executive Directors were unable to attend the general
meetings of the Company due to other business engagements. Details of
the attendance are disclosed under the section headed “Number of Board
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” below.

Code Provision C.1.2

Under code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules. During the Year under review, the management of the
Company did not provide monthly updates to all members of the Board
as required by the code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, as all the
Executive Directors were involved in the daily operations of the Group
and were fully aware of the performance, position and prospects of the
Company, and the management of the Company has provided to all
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Board
quarterly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
prior to the regular board meetings of the Company. In addition, the
management of the Company has provided all members of the Board, in
a timely manner, updates on any material changes to the performance,
position and prospects of the Company and sufficient background or
explanatory information for matters brought before the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTOR'S SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised three Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, Mr. Zhang Kun and Mr. Tang
John Wing Yan; one Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Ming Kit
and four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Man
Kong, Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu
Wai On.

Number of
Directors
EEAY
8

7 Executive

Director

6 WITES
5
4
3
2
1
0

Gender Designation Ethnicity
1551 TR 75 IR 3
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The Directors have brought a balance of valuable and diversified business
and professional expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board for the efficient and effective management of the Company’s
business.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Information on Directors” in this annual report which demonstrate a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

Relationship amongst Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart is the uncle of Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (who
resigned from the Board on 13 April 2018).

Save as aforesaid, the Board members do not have any financial, business,
family or other material and/or relevant relationships with each other.

Board diversity

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional and industry experience, skills, knowledge, and any other
factors that the Board might consider relevant and applicable.

The Nomination Committee has set the measurable objectives based on
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and skills and knowledge for the implementation of Board
diversity of the Company.

The Nomination Committee and the Board will review the Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Having reviewed the Policy and taken into account the measurable
objectives, the Nomination Committee and the Board considered that the
Board’s composition has complied with the requirements of the Policy
during the Year.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and collectively responsible for promoting success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board also
formulates objectives, overall corporate strategies and business plans, and
oversees the financial and management performance of the Group. Day-
to-day functions and authorities are delegated to the management, which
include the implementation of objectives, strategies and plans adopted by
the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There are established procedures for the Directors upon reasonable
request, to seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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Corporate governance functions

It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate
governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to
ensure processes and procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s
corporate governance objectives.

The duties of the Board performing corporate governance functions
under the CG Code include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (in any) applicable to employees and Directors
of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance.

Number of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year for the reviewing
and approval of the Company’s financial and operating performance, as
well as the consideration and approval of the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board meetings, the
Board met on other occasions where necessary. Throughout the Year,
Directors also participate in the consideration and approval of routine and
operational matters of the Company by way of circulating resolutions.

During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings. To facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and to provide opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for the Board meetings, notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the
regular meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other
meetings. Meeting agenda together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are normally given to all Directors no less than 3 days
prior to each Board meeting to enable them to make informed decisions.
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Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company's general meetings ZARARINAEERITIREAGLNERESS
and the regular Board meetings held during the Year are set out below: eE2ESHEBRFEBHEHIMT

Meetings attended/held

EREE BT
Regular Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
EREEE RERBE R4 B
Name of Director EENR = N A2
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(FH3E) (FH3E) (F3E)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart EREB RS A 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Zhang Kun SRS
(resigned on 9 February 2018) (R=ZZF—NF=-HNHEF) 4/4 iVal iVAl
Mr. Tang John Wing Yan Bk B A N/A N/A
(appointed on 30 June 2017) (R=F—+FENA=THEZ(F) 1/2 TEm TER
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit ERAGE S A4
(re-designated on 30 June 2017 (R=ZF—+FNH="1HHF
and resigned on 13 April 2018) KRR =—F—NFPYH+=HET) 0/4 0/1 0/1
Independent Non-executive BUKHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F RS E 4/4 171 0/1
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREE L& 4/4 11 11
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SiR\BLE 4/4 01 11
Mr. Chiu Wai On HREZRE 4/4 11 11

Note: The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director it : HEABMAEER _T—+tFFELTES2HEH
was entitled to attend during his tenure as a Director during the year of 2017. WA E 2 BRI ERE, e3R8 -

To further maximise the contribution from non-management Directors, a A —F<SIHEEREESEHEAER  =F
separate meeting between the Chairman and Independent Non-executive ~ SUB Y IEHITERTR T —+F + - F8B177
Directors was held in December 2017 to address business and related —XBY S @ SHwmASEEELEBAE
issues of the Group. H-

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FRERITBAR

The roles of Chairman and CEO are held by Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu,  E/&RITHRAE AE D B A E IR %L 4 KEK
Stewart and Mr. Tang John Wing Yan respectively. Their respective ~ BIEEEF - HERB 2 BED WL LA
responsibilities are clearly established and defined. JE °
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The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and is accountable to the
Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the lead to encourage Directors to
make active contribution to the Board’s affairs and ensure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Company.

The CEO represents the management of the Company and is accountable
to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing the
implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies, and
monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations as well as the operating and financial results of the Group'’s
businesses.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The number of Independent Non-
executive Directors on the Board is four and meets the one-third
requirements under the Listing Rules for the Year.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Man Kong,
Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai
On, of their independence pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of them to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Board retains the functions for the selection and approval of
candidates to become Board members. Under the Bye-laws, all Directors
who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. In addition, one-third
of the Directors, who have been longest on the Board since their last
election, must retire from office by rotation but then be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting of the Company. As such, no
Director has a term of appointment longer than three years.
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INDUCTION, INFORMATION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive an induction package
covering the general understanding of the Group and its businesses and
operations. Meetings are also arranged with the Company'’s external legal
adviser on directors’ legal role and responsibilities. During the Year, a
board meeting was held for the environmental, social and governance
training to the Board.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. Timely updates on the Group's
financial performance, businesses and developments are also provided to
the Directors. They also have full and timely access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice at all times whenever
deemed necessary.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development (the “CPD")
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, the
Company encouraged all Directors to attend training courses, seminars or
conferences which were relevant to their respective duties and
responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided relevant
materials and updates for their reading. According to the records
provided by the Directors, the Directors participated in the following CPD
programmes during the Year:
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Directors’ Training in 2017
by Type of CPD Programmes
EER-_F-tFREREEX
BRI 82 ZI (RERE D)

Attending
training
courses, Reading
seminars or materials or
conferences updates
HEFIRE FHEERD
Directors BE EHRERNEH RIHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman) BB EE (FE) 4 v
Mr. Zhang Kun (resigned on 9 February 2018) RZ LA (R —ZF—F - AL HEHE) v/ v
Mr. Tang John Wing Yan BB S A v v
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TIEC#E%])
(appointed on 30 June 2017) (RZF—+FNA=+HEZF)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit BRAAAGE S A v
(re-designated on 30 June 2017 (R—F—+FNA=F+HFATE
and resigned on 13 April 2018) RZF—/NFYA+=HEHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter FHM L& 4 v
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREEE A v/ v
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SR LA 4 v
Mr. Chiu Wai On HBIELRLE v/ v/

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are currently 4 committees of the Board (each the “Committee”)
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Committees are
established with defined written terms of reference setting out their
respective authorities and duties, which are available on the Company’s
website. The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi Yuen,
an Independent Non-executive Director, with the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and
Mr. Chiu Wai On as members.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the
senior management of the Company. Details of the authority and duties
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting to
review the remuneration packages of both of the new Executive Director
& CEO and the Non-executive Director. Members and their attendance
are as follows:

Name of Director EEHE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) PRERLE(EE)
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart B A

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter et i ptaa

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SR A

Mr. Chiu Wai On BREZRE

The remuneration of the members of senior management of the
Company by band for the Year is set out below:

FreE

Range of Remuneration

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi Yuen,
an Independent Non-executive Director, with the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and
Mr. Chiu Wai On as members.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst other things,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
considering the re-appointment of Directors, reviewing the Board's
diversity policy and relevant implementation of the diversity policy, and
making recommendations to the Board in respect of the aforesaid
matters. Details of the authority and duties of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee convened two meetings to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and to
nominate a new Executive Director & CEO and to consider the re-
designation of Non-executive Director. Members and their attendance are
as follows:

Name of Director EEHE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) PR E A (L)
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart EERFR LA

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter FE LA

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRIB A

Mr. Chiu Wai On REREE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chiu Wai On, and its
other members are Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess the relevant qualifications, experiences and skills to
contribute to the financial, governance, internal controls and risk
management of the Company.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
consolidated financial statements and reports and considering any
significant or unusual financial items; overseeing the relationship between
the Company and the external auditor; and reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial controls and risk management
and internal control systems. Details of the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee are on the Company’s website.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings, inter alia, to
review the 2016 annual results and the 2017 interim results of the Group
and to review the Group’s internal control system including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. In addition, the Audit
Committee met the external auditor once without the presence of the
management to discuss any areas of concerns. Members and their
attendance are as follows:

Name of Director EEHA

Mr. Chiu Wai On (Chairman) REZTE(ERE)
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter et pataa

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRERSE

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRS E

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 30 August 2017 and is
currently chaired by Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, and its other
members are Mr. Zhang Kun (who ceased as a member on 9 February
2018) and Mr. Tang John Wing Yan. The Executive Directors involved in
the daily operations of the Group and are fully aware of the performance,
position, and prospects of the Company.

The main duties of the Executive Committee include overseeing the
general management and day-to-day operations of the Company,
monitoring the execution of the Company'’s business strategy as approved
by the Board, approving any changes to the scope of authority delegated
to the senior management and any other matters specifically delegated to
it by the Board.

During the Year, the Executive Committee held two meetings, inter alia,
to approve the treasury policy of the Group and the relevant investment
plans. Members and their attendance are as follows:
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Meetings

attended/held

Name of Director EENSR BEHE BITRE

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman) EERFBEE (FE) 2/2

Mr. Zhang Kun SRBE %A 172
(ceased as a member on 9 February 2018) (R—ZE—NE-_ANLEFBAKE)

Mr. Tang John Wing Yan oK B A& 2/2
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and other applicable regulatory requirements, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Directors such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management based on estimations of future
revenue from sales of crude oil, future production costs, committed and
planned capital expenditure and the availability of financing, which cover
a period of twelve months from the reporting period end date. They are
of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due and committed future
capital expenditure within the next twelve months from the end of the
current reporting period.

Save as disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events of conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor, Messrs KPMG
("KPMG"), are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 90
to 98 to this annual report.
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service charges
of the non-audit services performed by KPMG and considered that such
services have no adverse effect on the independence of their audit works.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for the
Year and their corresponding remuneration is as follows:

RS

Nature of services

Audit service for the year ended 31 December 2017

EZIRTS

Others (including review of interim results, review of
preliminary announcement of annual results,
tax consultancy and other non-audit services)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the assets of the Group. The
Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board to review the risk
management and internal control systems.

Procedures have been designed to (i) safeqguard assets from inappropriate
use; (i) maintain proper accounting records; (iii) ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations; and (iv) manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. To safeguard confidentiality, information
access is managed on a need-to-know basis. Use of computers, especially
access to the Internet and e-mail systems, is similarly regulated with a
view towards security.
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The risk management and internal control systems of the Group provide
a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material misstatement of
the financial statements are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in the course
of arriving at the Group’s objectives are properly managed. It could only
manage, rather than eliminate, all risks of material misstatement, errors,
loss or fraud.

The Group maintains its internal audit function through its outsourcing to
independent advisors. During the Year, the Group engaged independent
advisers to conduct reviews over the Group’s internal control systems in
order to assist the Board in reviewing its effectiveness. The reviews,
normally performed once a year, covered all material controls, in the
areas of finance, operations, compliance and risk management, with a
focus on the core business of the Group (i.e. the upstream business in
Argentina). Relevant reports from the independent advisers were
presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board. Based
on the results of internal audit reviews for the Year and the assessment of
the Audit Committee thereon, no significant irregularities or deficiency in
the risk management and internal control systems were drawn to the
attention of the Audit Committee, but appropriate recommendations for
further enhancing the internal control systems have been taken. The
Board therefore considers that the Company has maintained appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Lai Chi Fung resigned as the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Group on 30 June 2017. Mr. Lam Hon Hing
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on the same
date.

The Company Secretary directly reports to the Board. Minutes of all
meetings of the Board and the Committees, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company
Secretary, and are open for inspection by the Directors upon request.

For the Year, Mr. Lam Hon Hing confirmed that he has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communications with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
the Company’s Shareholders and investors, and maintains ongoing
dialogues with them through various channels. The formal
communication channels between the Company and the Shareholders
are announcements, circulars, press releases and interim and annual
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the Company’s
website. During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents. An up-to-date consolidated version of the Bye-
laws is also available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in annual general meetings
and other general meetings of the Company which provide a useful
forum for the Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll, if necessary.

Shareholders’ rights

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, can at all times request a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for addressing specific issues of
the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of such requisition
to the Company’s head office address in Hong Kong.

The Group recognises Shareholders’ rights in exercising control
proportionate to their equity ownership. The Company has been
conducting voting at the general meetings by way of poll, which is
conducted and scrutinised by the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Procedures for conducting a poll are explained by the
Chairman of the Board in the general meetings prior to the taking of the
poll. Poll results are announced and posted on the websites of both the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

BRR

BERRZEE
EXEERRARARREREEEBTRARE
REFBBARSBEHEZEZN - A& B
K FTER L HEFERE AR ERR
ZREZEBRRE - A ERRBAIG AR
ARBMUER - RAFE - ARBEEXN
BEED - ARFRHINQANAARARAD
LHEARBERTERG RGEEMERABZ
S

PR S B2 B RIBF AR RN R A A AR
RAE RERRHEEZERHRERZEMR
AT ARAEFEREREREBSHE
PR ZBRM - W A AR B R R TTIR AR

BRERARZIEF ©
IR R AR

REBARMR REZ2ERBRTEFTEXIR
AMEZAMBAETORARB#MEBRZ
0%BRAZIKRE - IBREZEREART
EREMERIOUZARF2IARN BR2
KEEEAFRBRFIIARE - UBRA QR
EFHE -

AREBERRBRTTE B E I E A AR 2 1%
B R o ARBMBERAE EREESTN
ETRR YHARFB 2BERDBPELS
RAETRZY - BT FERETRORA - R
BRAREG LREETREZRF - RRERD
FIRARRIREER D RERMBRARZH
SN MER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders’ enquiries and proposals

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, in
person or by post. Contact details are set out in the “Information for
Stakeholders” section to this annual report.

Enquiries and proposals by Shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Hong Kong head
office address of the Company.
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THE SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD OF THIS
REPORT

This is the third ESG report of the Group, highlighting its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG") performance, with disclosure made
by reference to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Guidance set out by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in the exploration, development, and
operation of oil and gas projects. In accordance with reporting principle,
materiality assessment of the Group’s ESG aspects identified the
subsidiary, High Luck Group Limited (“HLGL") as the key business for
disclosure in this reporting year, by virtue of its carbon footprint in
relation to that of the Group. This ESG report covers the Environmental
and Social performance of the HLGL business operations in Argentina for
the year ended 31 December 2017, unless otherwise stated.

During the year, the Group re-entered the business of commodities
trading, via a subsidiary, Grand Rich Trading Limited. For 2017 ESG
reporting purposes, this was excluded from the 2017 ESG reporting scope
on the grounds that the business of commodities trading has limited
consequential environmental and social impacts. Furthermore, the daily
physical business operations of the commodities trade itself such as the
operation of the warehouses/storage facilities were outside the direct
control of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group has engaged in regular meetings and events to communicate
with various stakeholders to obtain information, relevant comments, and
feedback from the participants to understand their expectation in the
development of the Group'’s business portfolio and sustainability.

In order to identify the most significant aspects of the Group for ESG
reporting purposes, key stakeholders including investors, shareholders
and employees have been involved to identify the areas of attention, to
facilitate the Group in setting the overall direction of the report.
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The Group is planning to further involve and engage its stakeholders in
an effort to further improve the usefulness of its reporting. Our
concession partners are also periodically engaged in UTE operational
committee meetings for their views. Whilst in general, stakeholders will
be able to locate ESG information through the following channels:

o Annual general meeting and notices

° Annual reports, interim report, consolidated financial statements
and announcements

o Corporate website
o Investors briefings
o Notice and Circulars

o Bilateral contracts and supplier agreements

Code of conduct
STAKEHOLDERS’' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our Environmental, Social
and Governance initiatives via email at info@nt-energy.com.

THE GROUP’S MISSION AND VISION ON
SUSTAINABILITY

Mission

As an oil and gas exploration and production company, the Group
operates under the ethos of ‘Health & Safety as the First Priority’ by
adopting best practices to ensure the health and safety of its employees,
contractors, customers and communities. The Group strives to
continuously improve its health & safety management practices with the
goal of achieving an injury-free workplace.

The Group is committed to ensuring all its plant and equipment are
operationally safe and free of hazards. Furthermore, the Group is
committed to ensuring its employees are properly trained in safe working
practices and that they have a clear understanding of their responsibilities
for taking positive steps to improve health and safety.
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Vision

The Group is committed to its Corporate Social Responsibility, Health and
Safety, Environmental Protection, Human Resources and Labour Practices,
and Community Involvement and Sustainable Value Creation policies
when conducting business activities wherever the Group operates in.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1. Environmental Impact and Legal Compliance

As an oil and gas exploration and production company, it is
well-aware of the impacts and potential risks that the Group'’s
field operations pose to the environment and the surrounding
ecosystem. The Group adopts an Environmental Management
System (EMS) in its management of the environmental risks
arising from Group’s operations. The Group strictly complies
with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in each
of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates in.

(i) Type of Emissions
During the year, the Group’s main emission sources
were from diesel fuel, electricity, water, and paper
consumption. With regards to emissions, our business is
strictly regulated under the national laws and
regulations of Argentina.

2. Greenhouse Gas Emission

There were 999.1 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO,-eq) greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane,
and nitrous oxide) produced by the Group in the year. The
Group's gross annual production was 295,815 barrels (bbl) of
crude oil. The calculated carbon intensity of scope 1, 2, and 3
combined was 0.0034 tCO,-eq/bbl. Our HLGL operation in
Argentina accounted for most of the Group’s carbon
emissions during the year.
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Due to Scope 3 emissions from paper consumption and
wastewater treatment being determined as less than 0.5% of
total greenhouse gas emission from the 2016 reporting, these
items were excluded for 2017 reporting purposes by virtue of
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based on the International Standard.

Combined margin emission factor (average) of 0.518 t-CO,/MWh was used for
purchased electricity in Argentina.

B -

their insignificance. —tEFmEZIN -
Scope of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions Emission Sources Emission  Total Emission
BERBEHEREE BERURIR B E BT HEHE
(in tonnes of
C0,eq) (in percentage)
(CO,eq AR (ERL)
Scope 1
EiE1
Direct Emission Consumption of Diesel fuel by the Group 33.09 3.31%
BB and its Contractors Fleets (180,000 litres)
&R K HoA B R Sm B
(180,000 A7)
Scope 2
£iE2
Indirect Emission Consumption of Purchased Electricity 921.00 92.93%
I HER (1,656,000 kWh)
FTEEE 178 #% (1,656,000 T FLEF)
Scope 3
£E3
Other Indirect Emission Business air travel 45.01 3.76%
E Bk S ZE kT T
Total 999.10 100%
&5t
Notes: fiEE -
The calculation methodology of CO, emission of diesel fuel in Argentina is FABA AR RE 500 7 — S AL R BERR 2 TH R R BB

EEMIREFEE N AN GHBR PR A

%=(TF19)A0.518 t-CO,/ JKEL K

Emissions from business air travel were calculated using online tool provided by RBMZERITOFRERRBERERBAMZE

International Civil Aviation Organization.
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3.

Emission Sources

0)

(i)

Fuel Consumption

The Group utilises vans, pickup trucks and cars for
transportation. All motor vehicles operate using diesel
fuel. In 2017, the Group’s annual consumption of diesel
was 14,480 litres. When selecting vehicles, the Group
considers factors such as safety, reliability, maintenance
cost, fuel efficiency, in addition to the primary
determining factor of cost.

During the 2017, the Group’s own diesel powered
drilling rig was deployed in the exploratory drilling of
the EP.x-2001 well in the Tartagal Oriental & Morillo
Concessions. A total of 132 litres of diesel was
consumed for that campaign and also for the year.

Air emission including nitrogen oxides (NO), sulphur
oxides (SO)) and respiratory suspended particles (PM)
from fuel combustion of all vehicles operated by the
Group contributed the following: 11.95 kg of NOx
emission, 0.24 kg of SOx emission and 0.88 kg of PM.

Electricity Consumption

Electricity consumption by the Group was 1,778,000
Kilowatt-hour (kWh), with an energy intensity of 5.1338
kWh/bbl. To achieve the energy use efficiency initiative,
the Group encourages its staff to minimize energy
consumption where practicable. For example, the Group
encourages the switching off of unnecessary lighting
and electronic appliances when not required and not in
use. Furthermore, the Group has a procurement policy
of purchasing energy efficient equipment.
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(iv)

(v)
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Water Consumption
Water consumption by the Group was 25,299 cubic
meters (m3). The Group supplies its water from nearby
existing wells, and the electricity consumed to pump the
underground water is converted to GHG emission which
is included in Scope 2.

Paper and Packaging Material Consumption

Paper consumption was insignificant to the Group'’s
operation. No packaging material is used during the
production of crude oil, as this is stored in large oil
tanks until customers purchase, whereupon it is
delivered by oil tanker trucks.

Hazardous Waste Produced

During the process of oil production, hazardous waste
may be generated from possible spillage, replacement
of spare parts and lubrication oil, discarded gloves and
other materials. A total of 4.56 tonnes of hazardous
waste was generated during the reporting year.
Appropriate preventative measures adopted by the
Group included the following:

o Scheduled inspection and maintenance of plant
and equipment

° Re-injection of water from oil-water separation
process into fluid disposal wells

o Transportation of contaminated water to
appropriate treating facilities

° Training and education of employees

o Conduct pre-job briefing

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)

(vii)

o Spillage prevention programs and remedial action
plans

° Close supervision
° Continuous improvement plans

The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are separated
at origin. For hazardous waste, the treatment, collection
and final disposal is managed by qualified professional
handlers.

Non-hazardous Waste Produced

During the year, the Argentina operation generated
50.44 tonnes of organic and inorganic waste. Inorganic
waste includes plastic and glass, whilst organic waste
was mainly the by-product generated from the site
catering facility. The Group provides directive
procedures for segregation and classification of non-
hazardous waste to aid recycling initiatives. For non-
hazardous waste treatment, the organic waste is buried
and composted, while the inorganic waste is
incinerated.

Industrial Wastewater Produced

The Palmar Largo production facility operates a
wastewater treatment plant, managing an annual
discharge of 11,239 m? of wastewater. Wastewater is
chlorinated in its final treatment and accumulated in a
maturation lagoon from where it evaporates.

At Tartagal Oriental & Morillo, a total 9,000 m? of
wastewater was discharged from third party contracted
treatment plant, restaurant and catering services. These
were collected and deposited In a controlled
environment within Tartagal municipality by certified
handlers.
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4. Environmental Conservation Initiatives
Sustainability initiatives and green culture permeate through
the whole Group. We strives to operate in an environmentally
friendly manner by adopting practicable green office practices
including:

Using recycled paper
Printers are configured to print double sided by default

Return of used toners to manufacturer for recycling and
reuse

Switching-off lights, computers and office equipment
when not in use

Replacement of energy efficient alternatives

Adjustments of air conditioning settings to reduce
power consumption

For replaced furniture and computer equipment, the Group's
practice is to first offer these items to employees for personal
use, before it is disposed of or recycled.

B. SOCIAL

1. Employment and Labour Practices

0}

Employment

The Group fully recognises its employees are a critical
resource of the entity. Therefore, the policy of the
Group is to hire and retain employees with professional
skills that enable the Group to achieve its strategic
objectives. This is based on the following recruitment
principles:

° Respect and trust at all levels, in all circumstances
without exception

RIR HERERERE

RIBRERK

Al EERER MG ESEEFAR
Elﬁl B o HPIBUIPARIRE
FREE  HAJTHRERPIAE
ﬁﬁ“%-

o (EREYAR
o HTEIMREREmSH

s REMAMBHMALRERD
Y /5

o HETEARREEEE BEER
N

i

B BRI ER

?4”5

i3

§E = /ﬂiﬂi%j}/éﬁ%

HREBROERANERRE A%
B EREERELCWATEIER
B amm 8 TREEBEAES -

=

=]

BAREIESR

(i &A
AEELEERDER /AN
SWHERER AU AKH
MBREEAREEAMEA
REXIEMNBET 4K
EERHEKER A5 H
MBI RAAT

s FBAEMEMARRE
NEEREERRRA
BEHIIMER

$ES B R A 7
T LETH



80

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R H8kERME

o Transparency and honesty in professional
relationship

a.  Effective communication
b.  Emphasis of transparency
° Willingness to cooperate and help others

Recruitment and compensation is based on
qualification, experience, skills and performance. The
Group offers competitive compensation and benefits
packages in line with the local market rates for
comparable roles and responsibilities in the industry.
The Company’s hiring practice is to recruit locally, with
the exception of certain key managerial, technical or
professional posts, where it may not be possible or
appropriate to fill locally.

Promotion and Performance Evaluation

Promotion and salary increase, outside of the Group’s
discretionary annual inflationary increase, is subject to a
responsibilities and performance evaluation. An
individual’s promotion and remuneration is closely
correlated to their job responsibilities and performance.
The Group operates a policy of internal promotion,
where possible.

The Group ensures that its employees are evaluated on
their job performance through the application of
objective measures. The Human Resources Department
(HRD) coordinates and verify the performance of each
employee, in relation to mutually agreed objectives
established at the beginning of each appraisal year. The
performance evaluation is carried out once a year by the
employee’s immediate supervisor.
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Dismissal

The Group may at any time, terminate an employee
when his or her behaviour or attitude is not satisfactory,
or does not meet the performance standards established
for the position. In all cases, termination procedures will
strictly adhere to minimum requirements established by
the Law in the Labour Code or relevant local laws.

Employee Turnover Rate

During the year, there were five staff turnover to report.
These persons left on amicable terms and for reasons of
personal development elsewhere.

Workplace Rights and Competitive Compensation

HLGL operates in accordance with the Argentine Labour
Contract laws regarding salaries, working hours,
overtime and benefits. In addition, the company offers
medical benefits and life insurance coverage similar to
OSDE 210 medical coverage.

Equal Opportunity

The Group is proud to be an equal opportunity
employer and believes in fair treatment of all existing
and prospective employees, regardless of their age,
gender, marital status, family status, disability,
pregnancy, nationality, ethnicity, sexual orientation,
religion and culture, or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law.
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Furthermore, the Group does not discriminate against
or deprived of such opportunities in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job
advancement, and compensation and benefits. The
Group’s Codes of Ethic adopts a strict zero tolerance
approach to any forms of discrimination or harassment
in the workplace.

Workforce by Age Distribution

S AREER R -
KB R ~ BB T A K B
Ko 48 M) 77 T 3 B A AT SR
MEXNEREEUHETHEN
REA o ANER B HY i 32 T B B
TS E AT A B EER
IRERDERNTERE
[ o

Workforce by Gender

RERIMHE D WEEEE BRI Bl 2 M E B B
18-25 (%)
56 and above 2%
(56BR M A E) Female 224
17% 24%
26-35 (3%)
32%
46-55 (5R)
20%
- Male B4
36-45 (5%) 76%

29%

As of 31 December 2017, there were 41 full-time
employees in HLGL, across its Salta and Palmar Largo
locations. 10 female and 31 male employees.

RZE—tF+ZA=+—
H - =& (& ® B &Palmar
Largodth [& ) H41%E & B &
B10BAMEIR3IIES

HET -
56 and
18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
Employee’s Age Distribution ~ EEF# 21 18-255% 26-355% 36-45 5% 46-555; S56E &AL
2017 Tt F 1 13 12 8 7
Female Male
Employee’s Gender Distribution EEMEI 5 M geg i3 B
2017 —E—+F 10 31
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Workplace and Corporate Communication

The Group adopts an “open door” policy to encourage
open communication, feedback, and discussion with its
employees. Through this “open door” policy, the Group
aims to create a culture of mutual trust, respect and
understanding, to foster strong, cooperative working
relationships. Routine emails and regular meetings are
held to circulate information and provide updates to all
employees.

Health and Safety
Health and Safety is a key priority of the Group given
nature of the business.

Laws and Regulation Compliance

Fundamental to all oil and gas operations is rigorous
and robust H&S. The Group adopts best practices in
health and safety management and is strictly in
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations
governing H&S, in the jurisdictions it operates in.

A policy of open communication is encouraged whereby
employees can raise and share any H&S concerns that
they encounter with the team and management.

Health and Safety Measures

The Group is committed to ensuring a safe and healthy
working environment for its employees, and actively
promotes a strong H&S culture and mindset. Examples
of these measures include:

o Internal employees and external parties are subject
to H&S orientation at the beginning of their
employment or engagement

° All visitors of field operations are subject to safety
briefing of the site
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Dedicated H&S specialists on site are responsible
for performing risk assessments, and developing
safe working practices

On a daily basis, and prior to commencement of
field operations, H&S briefings and planning
meetings are conducted with participation by all
employees including management team

On a weekly basis, employees participate in H&S

review meetings to discuss important H&S events

On a quarterly basis, all field and office staff
receive free health check service

Dedicated 24 hours’ nurse arrangements on site
to deal with any first aid or medical emergency.

Road Transportation Safety Measures

Employees are trained and encouraged in the art
of defensive driving

Company vehicles are installed with GPS
monitoring systems to track journey and driving
behaviours

The Group’s driving policy restrict employees to
only drive during daylight hours, where possible,
and to consider the necessity of any journey,
before embarking
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Safety Incident

The Group monitors its H&S performance via a number
of metrics, including injury and fatal incident rates,
injury free work hours, and sick days. There were no
injury or fatality incidents during the reporting year.

Contractors are also subject to the same stringent
Group H&S standards. Proof of adequate H&S training
and certification are requested before the Group
engages and endorses a contractor to operate on its
exploration or production facilities.

Occupational Health and Safety Data

Work related fatality

Work injury cases >3 days
Work injury cases <3 days
Lost days due to work injury

Development and Training

The HRD coordinates training activities according to the
needs identified in the staff performance evaluation, or
when the position requires. All training requirements
channeled through the HRD, follow the conventional
training procedure set out in the Human Resources
Policies.

The Group offers external training courses as well
internal on-the job training and peer coaching. Example
of courses attended by employees during the reporting
year included business administration, communication
and negotiation, leadership, conflict management,
accounting, safety, project management, oil and gas
engineering related subjects.
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A total of 441 hours was spent on external training in

A Y SNERIE 31 B Btk 441

the year. /NBF o
2017
Training Data EZHEE —B—tF
Total Number of Employees EE#AH 41
Training Hours, Staffs —RRE T 2153 E 189
Training Hours, Middle Management PAREIRRE 2 ETIRE 236
Training Hours, Senior Management SRERE 2B 16
Total Training Hours AR 8 441
Average Training Hours Per Employee BRREE Z PR 10.75
Sum of Training Hours by Employee Category
RIEBERIE 5 MBI AT R
Staff =BT
189 Middle
Management
RAREREE
236
Senior Management
SREEE
16
(iv) Labour Standard (iv) BIE

Governed by fair employment practices, the Group
strictly complies with requirements of local Labour Laws
and regulations, and strictly prohibits the use of any
child and forced labour, or any forms of illegal labour in
the Group operations.
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Operating Practices

0)

(ii)

(iii)

Supply Chain Management

The Group has a standardized procurement procedure
in the selections of its suppliers and vendors, which
includes technical and commercial evaluation.

During the year, the geographical location of HLGL's
suppliers covered 13 regions within Argentina. 42
suppliers originated from Salta, with 12 suppliers from
Formosa. The Group believes by purchasing locally, it
can minimise its carbon emission in relation to logistic.
The Group’s second largest supplier location was
Buenos Aires.

Product Responsibility

Consumer Data Protection

The Group is engaged in the business of crude oil
production and sales, as governed by the terms and
conditions of the agreements with its customers.

Quality Assurance and Complaints

The quality and quantity of crude oil sold is subject to
the IRAM or ASTM international standards. The Group
received no product or service complaints in the year.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to managing its business
without undue influence, and in an open, honest and
fair manner. All employees are required to strictly follow
the Group’s Code of Ethics to prevent potential bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. Employees are
regularly reminded about the Group’s anti-corruption
policies and strict adherence.
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Whistle-blowing procedures on misconduct and
malpractice (including corruption) are also established in
the Group’s Anti-corruption policy. When a suspected
case is received, the Group undergoes investigation
procedures with strict confidentiality. The Group has
established a whistle-blowing escalation scheme, the
procedure is to report any suspicious activities and
incidences to the whistle-blower’s immediate supervisor.
If the matter involves the immediate supervisor, then
the whistleblower is advised to report the management.
Alternatively, the matter may be reported via the
Group’s whistle-blowing and ethics hotline.

C. COMMUNITY

Potentially disruptive social impacts from the operations of drilling
projects and production facilities on nearby local communities are
mitigated by maintaining open channels of communications, with
affected landowners and local communities, to develop and
maintain a harmonious co-existence.

1. Community Liaison
The Group has a dedicated community liaison officer who
works closely with any affected indigenous people. The Group
maintains regular dialogue to ensure operational transparency
and to understand and resolve any affected communities’
concerns.
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2. Community Advancement

At the Palmar Largo facilities, the Group positively contributed
to the standard of living by improving the quality of the
access road from tribal villages to the main arterial highway.
Furthermore, the Group was able to “give back” by
connecting these local communities to the national telephony
network. The Group also assists with small community
projects aimed at promoting and improving their self-
sustainability.

During 2017, a key project delivered by the Group was the El
Pacara Community Health Center to better meet the basic
medical care needs of the local community. The Group
contributed construction materials as well as manpower in
the reconditioning of existing facilities. The improved health
center was officially re-opened on 27 December 2017 with
the Salta Provincial Governor in attendance.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS TOWARD SUSTAINABILITY
DEVELOPMENT

Going forward, the Group plans to extend its community engagement
activities and find more ways of “giving back”, by exploring how the
Group can also contribute in non-financial ways, such as volunteering,
school talks, and donating of used computer and office equipment. For
environmental initiatives, the Group is preparing to develop a recycle
program to handle domestic waste.

CONCLUSION

The Group has conducted the ESG reporting in accordance with the HKEx
Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules), all the ESG information available for the reporting year
are included in this report. The Group is committed to continuing the ESG
reporting on a regular basis and to improve on policies and procedures
for the management, measurement and monitoring of ESG related
strategies.

RIR HERERERE

2. HEXRES

A Palmar Largo £ E =i - AEE

FRNE B PENTBTEHEN

BRERIEFEMANEFKE -

BEoh - AEBBEZEFHRES

B s AR AR B RO A [ 88 | 4T

E TRAE BF IR k17 B /N AU A [ TR
CBTERARREREL RN A

iﬁ%jj

—tFH AEERFH—E
EKIE B ZEl Pacara#t [& i 5
R DATE 0T B & A 8 A AR
BEFK - AEEEEERERME
FERATZEVBMAL - B4
BHREERF LR ZE—+tF+=A
Tt BHEREHFN - BERE

AFEERAARRTG @

J?&%H%PK AEBEFEHEEREL S RGH

WHREZ[EE] A ZPIERRD
H—JWFﬂﬁ%ﬁ‘tﬁﬁﬂiE wE TR - 8
RERERBHEERRMERAERE - HIRIRE
HEJE - ANER IR AT SRR IR SR R RE M 0 [B]
WEtdl

E

AEBREBFERZACRE LB REAR
FE5D) (EMRAIMNER27) ETTRE - &Rk
am#&ttlf’ﬁ BEFEANMERE &

RERBERENARER - NEBH N EH
FEETRE HelkeEams  LXEER

R HE@RERRBNER  FFEMERER
REREF -
%"\HM ‘Tﬁﬂq/w

—tFFW

89



90

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENRE

lcnac

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of New Times Energy Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 99 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

ASSESSMENT OF THE GROUP’S ABILITY TO

CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements on pages 108

to 109.

The Key Audit Matter
RREEREE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENRE

FAREZER

FRREZFEERERMNEXZHE - K8
AHEG AV BHREANERRAERNFHE
FELERAERMERERGAMBHRERIEA
BRARETRE HMATSHELIRIEHE
BOER -

HEEBFEKSE R DN

2(b) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BN EZNAEREZEE

The Group's activities are principally focused on oil and gas
exploration and production in the Northwest Basin in
Argentina.
EEENEBEESPRMBRERIL 2N AHFMRAR
BRI A o

Except for the participating interest in the Palmar Largo
Concession in Argentina which contributed revenue of
HK$43,467,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
majority of the Group’s oil and gas assets were in the
exploration and evaluation phase as at 31 December 2017.
BE_Z—tFTA=1T—HLEFE ' RMARZEPalmar
Largo f 7T [ #) 2 B i 55 /3 B & B 75 2R € 43,467,000 78
TEWSN EEENAIT S ARMRRAREER _T—+
F+ZA=1+—BNERER LT ERE -

The Group’s net operating cash flows generated from its
existing business are limited and may not be sufficient to
fund its ongoing exploration and development activities.
Consequently, the Group is reliant on raising funds to finance
its future exploration and development.
EEERAEBELNFRERSREAR - AIRe TR
REFEETOHHRIAZEDREES - At E5E
KEBEEEHERKNERLFAELY -

Our audit procedures to assess the application of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements included the following:
BAEGRHEGS M BRRERA G HELE G ERITE
AHEZEFBREATEIEA :

o challenging the key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projection prepared by management (which
included forecast crude oil prices, forecast production
and sales volumes, forecast production costs and
committed and planned capital expenditure) by
comparison with the market and other externally
available information, the actual production and sales
volumes during the current year, and the financial
budget approved by the directors of the Company;

e HERERENBSRETEAFEANARRERET
ER(BERANRAER HANEESMEESE -
TRRIEEE R AN A KA EIME AL ) - HH
5 R EHAMINB AT B E R EITHLY - ARERFEER
NEEEMHES  BERRESHENMBEEET
LLER

o evaluating the sensitivity of the projected available cash
by considering possible downside scenarios against
reasonably plausible changes to the key assumptions;

e RBREBERBRZINSERTEL  ZEREAIENTT
BRAHETRATARESHBRE

HESRERERA A
T LFFER
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The Key Audit Matter
BREESSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWERNTEEZER

Management prepared a cash flow projection based on
estimations of future revenue from sales of crude oil and
other products, future production costs, committed and
planned capital expenditure and the availability of financing.
The directors of the Company reviewed the cash flow
projection and concluded that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due and committed future capital expenditure
within the next twelve months from the end of the current
reporting period.

EIRBRBARRRD R EMEMHERA - RREEKR
HeE RETEI B AT A RBE ARG RRRER
WER - ERRESEEHNRSMBABHEE SR EHE
BERAMNEZER  REMNERI MO BEEAE - W&
EERREHARE T AR RNNRKRERRX

We identified the assessment of the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern as a key audit matter because
the Group currently has limited cash-generating assets and
finite cash resources to fund its ongoing exploration and
development activities and because the ability of the Group
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
and committed future capital expenditure is dependent upon
the generation of future net cash flows and raising new
sources of finance, both of which can be inherently
uncertain.
BHMPRRIEEEEFELSE N —ABRNEZEE
ARESEEEAMRARERNRCELEEERARNE R
RAREEEETHMHRMBEEHIREES  WHAARE
SEED AR ETHM A T8 N A REGBERRRER
XHEARERKEFRERNEEMNBEEFTNES IR - M
EMENE FHETHER -

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

inspecting lending agreements to identify financial
covenants and other key terms and conditions therein
to which the Group was subject and considering the
impact of these on the cash flow projection;
BREERBHEAREESBAENMBRY - URE
FR B ) B B S IR AR M - B R 2R - &
FEREMEBRANZE

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the going concern assumption
and the key considerations of the directors in deciding
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
SLERTGTEANNER - B MBmRPERFE
KEBRRBBNBRBARESEURFELE RERR
RS BMRENEAREBEZETIE -



ASSESSMENT OF IMPAIRMENT/REVERSAL OF

IMPAIRMENT OF EXPLORATION AND
EVALUATION ASSETS

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 124.

The Key Audit Matter
HARELBE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENRE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRAWEZNEEZSEE

As at 31 December 2017, exploration and evaluation assets,
which totalled HK$2,303,481,000, principally related to the
Group's exploration rights and the exploration and evaluation
activities for the Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions
("T&M Concessions”) in Argentina. The exploration permits
in the T&M Concessions expired on 13 September 2017 and,
in March 2018, the Group obtained a decree for extending
the exploration permits to 13 September 2019.
RZZE—+F+A=+—HB FZEREEEEMRE
Tartagal Oriental A Morillo % 5T & ([T&M 4FFFHE R |) B #
REARBRMFAEEDEENDRLFEEELER
2,303,481,000/8 7T ° T’MAFRFERAEIRFFAI R —F—t
FRAT=BIH R N\F=ZRAESEESESH
AR RIERE—_E—NFNLAT=H -

The Group recognised an impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets totalling HK$1,409,086,000 as at 31
December 2016 as a result of continuing weaker crude oil
price forecasts.

HRRHRRERSREESS  EEER S —RF+=
A=+ —B®RYRREEERES #£1,409,086,000
I o

Our procedures to assess the impairment/reversal of
impairment of exploration and evaluation assets included the
following:

B E SR K EEERE S RERBNRETEEUT

I :

o assessing the design and implementation of key
internal controls over the preparation and review of the
impairment assessment;

o  HREMBLRENE 2B ATIZES R LB
TR |

o evaluating management’s methodology applied in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecast with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards, taking into account business
changes during the year;

o ZERTEHEANER  UZERAFEEBNEL
BR - HERERGMBERSRERANRRBHITE
EITAE

o assessing the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent appraisal firm engaged by the Group
to estimate the recoverable amounts of exploration
and evaluation assets and evaluating whether the
methodology adopted by the independent appraisal
firm was consistent with recognised industry standards;

o YHEREBEFRRDRLVEEETDRSREAGEN
BN AME ARG E N - BN FEBILETE - A
REHEBIZHE R BRAN G EETETE ARHTTE

#rE B R AR A A
—EFER
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BMWERNTEEZER

The carrying amounts of exploration and evaluation assets
are reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. With
reference to the valuation reports issued by an independent
appraisal firm, the recoverable amount was estimated by
discounting expected cash flows to be generated by the
exploration and evaluation assets to their present value. The
preparation of a discounted cash flow forecast involves the
exercise of significant judgement, particularly in forecasting
production volumes, crude oil prices, production costs,
capital expenditure, remaining life of the oil fields and in
determining an appropriate discount rate.
BEHHBRATIHEEN RAEETSS  WHESH
R KA A O RREERETRIERE - WAR
Ex AW E g BmaEEHEAN S - ARESESEE -
R2EZFIUMERARLENMGERSE  AIRESETE
BEMRRIHEEEANTERRSRENRZHLRMEM
HETEE - METRBRESREBRAN S RERHAE - 5=
ERRES - ROMER £EKE EAXH - mAFER
B AREEAZNFTRET@E -

As at 31 December 2017, on the basis that the extension of
the exploration permits in the T&M Concessions could be
obtained in a reasonable period of time, an impairment loss
of HK$248,040,000 was reversed for the exploration and
evaluation assets, which is close to their estimated
recoverable amounts. The reversal of impairment loss was
mainly attributable to a decrease in pre-tax discount rate
driven by the lower country risk premium of Argentina and
lower systematic risk of oil and gas companies.

A _Z2—+F+_A=+—H8 aARAREEBHARANER
TRMFEF IR B BN ERFF P RE R - i B B iR S sP B E Y
B EI 1R 248,040,000 8 7T » 7% ® &R B E {5+ AT Bl & 24
Ao BODREBEEZ2EHPMRER R KEREE IR
ARERARRBNEFERBREBESHH AR ETE
PTEK »
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challenging the key assumptions adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast, which included forecast
production volumes, forecast crude oil prices, forecast
production costs and forecast capital expenditure by
comparison with market and other externally available
information, historical production information,
prospective resources of the T&M Concessions shown
in technical reports issued by independent qualified
technical consultants and internal exploration and
exploitation plans;

BEEMBMEMINERIRER  EREEEH - B

APREERFAHERA R AR RN T EETE
b SRR ERERAPRANBRER(BREE
ESTER - ROaERER - EERANERREARTH
BADETESE ¢

assessing specific inputs to the determination of the
discount rate applied in the cash flow forecast with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists, including
the risk-free rate and country risk premium together
with gearing and cost of debt, and benchmarking such
inputs against similar companies in international
markets in which the Group operates;
FHMEENEEEZER B T HEER SR ETEAR
PRGN Z BRI R E I A BUE - Hh B ERE R
X -EREBREARABEMEBKE - W &
B EMAERBRE TS EOALUR R Ll AR E
TEESNT

evaluating the sensitivity of the outcomes of the
impairment assessment by considering possible
downside scenarios against reasonably plausible
changes to the key assumptions, which included lower
crude oil prices, a higher discount rate and delays in
the exploration work schedule, and considering the
possibility of management bias in the selection of the
assumptions;

RARBARRRNSEAIITEM L - ZRATALH T
BR - HPEREEENRMER ESMRE - §
RIMEERNTE UNEREEEEEERREA
BEF IR R AR AR E LA RBURE
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BMWERNTEEZER

We identified the assessment of impairment/reversal of
impairment of exploration and evaluation assets as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainties involved
in estimating the recoverable amounts of exploration and
evaluation assets and because the selection of the various
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast
could be subject to management bias.

MR R G ER R R EERERED T —HRR
WEZEE  ARERMGHRAIEEE WL ERE
EHAETETES  URERRRSRERUHZERS
BROERAESTINETEBRINTE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

o comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s forecasts prepared in the previous year
to assess the historical accuracy of the management’s
forecasting process; and

s RAFEMNERGEREETEE F —FRENTBAETT
i - ARHEE R ETRARR FRIREERN &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the impairment assessment
and whether disclosures about the sensitivity of the
outcome of the impairment assessment to changes in
key assumptions properly reflected the risks inherent in
the assessment, with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.

o ZERTEAEANER  ZREEUBHERTER
BB EAIHRER - LA RORET G AREBERERRE
BB E B BR R A IE R IR AR T 2T I B R o

mEMBHRR R BATRE
SNVE R

EEFHHEHMEHRAR - R0EHEBETHER
FHRANZIER - ETBREEEMEHRE R
B ZBRED RS -

BHEGEEMBBRRNBERL MR EEME
B BPT T HZEEMEMBEREATARN
EBEw o

SEFEEEMBHRERNELMS - BHAINE
TREEBEMER - HItBiET  TREME
R EGEMBRRIBPIEETZBEF A
TRNBENFEEAEEREUFFEERE
RERAEIER -

HERMEREATHTIERR/EMERTE
BEAHERRIL - BHMIFEREZEE - EEN
o RFPRBE RS -

HESRERERA A
T LFFER
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

B HENRE

ERB(EEBEREDETERNBRES
BPERTERHE - Ri5TEREREE -
BAITL
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Kwok Keung Raymond.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
melEmk

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAE LYK )

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&xT T
Continuing operations: FEREXRE
Revenue W25 4 287,557 57,108
Cost of sales SHE KA (280,651) (48,689)
Gross profit EF 6,906 8,419
Other income HA A 6 16,250 (22,995)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHAS (63,332) (90,513)
Reversal/(provision) of impairment B (5Hie) EEREEE
loss of assets 7(c) 228,611 (105,442)
Exploration expenses IR 7(e) (35,544) =
Net investment (loss)/income & (E518) WA F 58 7(d) (37.492) 13,753
Gain on partial disposal of interest in HEPHEEDEERZ
a joint venture g 19 3,304 -
Profit/(loss) from operations LR, (EE) 118,703 (196,778)
Finance costs B & R AN 7(a) (19,293) (26,557)
Share of losses of joint ventures JE(h& & EER (CRED)] (6,280)
Profit/(loss) before taxation from B EREEBRBIA
continuing operations wmA(EE) 7 95,260 (229,615)
Income tax Fris#i 8 6,437 6,021

Profit/(loss) from continuing

RBESEEBER,(BR)

operations 101,697 (223,594)
Discontinued operations: ERIEREEL
Profit from discontinued operations, BRI EER S -

net of tax MBRFRIE 5(c) = 98,573
Profit/(loss) for the year FEpREF(BE) 101,697 (125,021)

FERERERAR
—T—tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meBmE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIR)

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FER FAT
Attributable to: PEAL
Owners of the Company: BATEBA :
Profit/(loss) for the year from FRFELEERS
continuing operations wHL(EE) 101,710 (223,209)
Profit for the year from discontinued FRE RIS
operations ES Y 99,860
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to KARHEE AEBIEEA
owners of the Company @ (ss 101,710 [ (123,349)
Non-controlling interests: IR ¢
Loss for the year from continuing FRRBBELLES
operations & (385)
Loss for the year from discontinued FARABRIMEEER
operations BB (1,287)
Loss for the year attributable to IR R R SE N
_______ momeoniolingieress B (13) IR
Profit/(loss) for the year ERERN(FE) 101,697 (125,021)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF(&E)
(2016: restated) (ZZE—RF  gEF7)) 12
Basic (HK cent) B GEALD (3.09)
Diluted (HK cent) g (OBL) (3.09)
Earnings/(loss) per share — continuing SR ZEX|, (&)
operations (2016: restated) — BEKSEER
(ZB—ARF: REY) 12
Basic (HK cent) AR GBI (5.59)
Diluted (HK cent) 58 (BL) (5.59)

The notes on pages 107 to 222 form part of these financial statements. R E 107 BE 5222 B 2 it AARH B RE
Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are set out in 7 —&% - BEAENAATHEE AR EH
note 35(b). HBEE35(0)

1 OO NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year (after tax and reclassification
adjustments):

[tems that may be reclassified

LeBmRkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+=-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAE LYK )

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#&xT FHET
FRmRBR) 101,697 . (125,021)
FREMEEKE
(BB EEH S EAE) :

11
HEmgEEM o BEBay

subsequently to profit or loss: IHR :
Exchange differences on translation REBINRFE AR FENE
of financial statements of overseas ([ E]) & A R BT
and the People’s Republic of WMEREECZERER
China (“PRC") subsidiaries (19,660) (35,029)
Available-for-sale investments: Tﬁ—ﬁﬂj%?ﬁﬁ 3
net movement in the fair value DR EEREEEFE
reserve (2,383) 8,393
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (22,043) (26,636)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEKZETE
for the year (151,657)
Attributable to: FE1h :
Owners of the Company iN/NGIE =N 79,667 (149,982)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M e ((E)) (1,675)
Total comprehensive income EREENEEE
for the year 79,654 (151,657)
The notes on pages 107 to 222 form part of these financial statements. HRNE107EEE 222 B2 T RATBHRE
285 o

FERERERAR
—T—tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2017 R - —+F+—-F=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T5117R)

2017
—E—+tF
Note HK$'000
= THET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Exploration and evaluation assets WIEN A EEE 14 2,303,481
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 15 49,301
Intangible assets EEE 16 16,296
Goodwill EES 17 234
Interest in joint ventures RELDEZ RS 19 18,104
Promissory note receivable FEWF H B4R 22 =
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 23 36,617
Prepayments, deposits and BAFHIE - EZER
other receivables H i fE U B 25 40,286
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE = 33(b) 11,149
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 2,475,468
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 17,144
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 55 AR 5k K HL At FE UL SR IB 25 74,659
Promissory note receivable e N =R 22 42,687
Current tax recoverable AT U o] BN ERFR 18 33(a) 133
Other financial assets Hit S & E 26 329,610
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEY 27 843,948
Total current assets REBEEHAE 1,308,181
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B E 5 BRI R H b e FE 28 88,142
Other borrowings Hinfg s 29 2,380
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 90,522
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,217,659
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARE EXLER P

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED

Annual Report 2017

2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
T

2,066,901
45,478
21,776

270
28,675
35,786
58,429

18,684
6,240

2,282,239

17,515
124,367

394
242,281
398,633

783,190



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+ 4+ =-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
= THET FAT
Non-current liabilities FnBEMF
Other borrowings Hithfg & 29 211,400 294,154
Other non-current liabilities HIEmndaE 30 - 21,361
Provisions B 34 14,411 16,766
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEHERE 225,811 332,281
NET ASSETS EEBE 3,467,316 2,651,265
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR
Share capital P& 35(c) 88,655 59,103
Reserves EE 3,427,346 2,640,834
Total equity attributable to AABHEE AELER
owners of the Company HIE 3,516,001 2,699,937
Non-controlling interests JEIARAERS (48,685) (48,672)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,467,316 2,651,265

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March EZ&@fR_-_ZT— \F=A - +=HH#ENF
2018. T -

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart Tang John Wing Yan
PR KR
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 107 to 222 form part of these financial statements. HREI107BEEF 222 B2 F AR HIRE
28D o

FRREERER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAREEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T5117R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAAER
Share-based Non-
Share Share  compensation Capital Exchange  Fairvalue  Contributed Warrants ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests equity
RiEE MEE ELivES Fk

B Rt B ERBR  NEGR U L] B EtER it B BEfE
BRSO HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HK$0
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR i T T T T

Balance at 1 January 2016 R-B-7E

-B-R&H B0 3649214 83 9591 (360,964) - 740,880 1801 (1748 291493 (49138) 2200355

Lossforthe year ERElR - - - - - - - - I3y (1339 167 (125021)

Other comprehensive income Efh2EkE - - - - (35,006) 8393 = = = (26,633) 6] (26,636)
Total comprehensive FREENEEE

income for the year - - - - (35,026) 8393 - - (B39 (149%8) (1675 (151,657)

Shares isued under subscription B EREE TR

{note 35(¢iv) (P 3500) B s3I - - - - - = - 3 S
Shares issued under share REERET
option scheme (note 35(ci) ki
(W 35(ofi) 3 1883 (640) - - - = = = 1236 - 1236
Lapse of share options granted 5B R iEE1E)
under share option scheme Bt 2 BRiERR - - (03) - - = - - 03 - - -
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAR = - - - @ - - - - @ 24 2058

Balance at 31 December 2016 W=F-#E
T2A=T-REH 59,103 4174190 - 9591 (39,033) 8393 740,880 1,801 (1,897,988 2,699,937 (48672) 2,651,265

Balance at 1 January 2017 RoB-tE

-f-R&H 59,103 4174190 (396,033) 8393 740,880 1,801 (1,897,988) 2,699,937 (48672)
Profitloss) for the year gt/ (58) - - 101710 101710 (13)
Other comprehensive income 2k (19,660) (2383) - (2.08) -
Total comprehensive EhEEREEE
income for the year (19,660) (2383) 101,710 79,667
Sharesissued under open REARRERT
offe note 35 15 (0t 35c1) B 0685 736397
Lapse of warrants (ote 35(c)vi)) ~ EAERK A
(HizE35(d)i) (1801)
Balance at 31 December 2017 W=F-t%
TZR=t-RE# 4,881,035 9,591 (415,693) 6,010 740,880 - (1,794,477) 3,516,001 (48,685) 3467316
The notes on pages 107 to 222 form part of these financial statements. HNFI107BEEF 222 A7 5B RRE
Z—EBD e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T51)7R)

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FHT
Operating activities REEK
Profit/(loss) before taxation from BB SRR RDER,
continuing operations (F8) (229,615)
Profit before taxation from BRI & E SRR T AT
discontinued operations S Al - 98,574
95,260 (131,041)
Adjustments for: TEE
Depreciation e 4,881 6,040
Amortisation of intangible assets B8 2,905 3,755
(Reversal)/provision of impairment ([E18),FHREEERERE
loss of assets (228,611) 105,442
Exploration expenses BRE S 35,544 -
Interest income K2 YA (15,362) (3,693)
Interest expense IS 19,293 26,557
Net foreign exchange loss YINGE [E5E F Ea 4,840 3,788
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR Z WS 13(c) (19,230)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MEE QR 2 W= 5(e) (86,399)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HER—HEELE 2D
in a joint venture W 2 Wam -
Loss on disposal of convertible &S R AT 1R 2
notes receivables il 25,058
Net fair value gain on derivative PESRMIEZ AR EE
financial instruments Wz F 58 (3,267)
Share of loss of joint ventures e S EEE 4,150 6,280
Operating cash flows before changes EEESEHAH
in working capital KL (80,404) (66,710)
Changes in working capital: EEESED
Increase in inventories ZEEm (1,803) (10,123)
(Increase)/decrease in HihSpb&E (38), 5
other financial assets (57,329) 4,536
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEWE ZRA R EAM
other receivables FEMRIE R A (35 00) 8,750 (21,652)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BN E SRR R EM
other payables FEAT R IEE I, Ok ) 44,178 (12,911)
Cash used in operations LEERFTAIR S (86,608) (106,860)
Interest paid BEAFE (25,848) (31,120)
Interest received BEYFIE 8,461 206
Income tax paid ERETEH (11) (12)
Net cash used in operating activities EEEBFHARSZE (104,006) (137,786)

FERERERAR
—T—tFFR



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T5117R)

2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FHT
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of exploration BEHREMTHEESN
and evaluation assets 208 (34,633) (10,232)
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BEREEZ
plant and equipment 2 RIH (9,076) (5,835)
Payment for purchase of BEEMEREE CHIEA
other financial assets (30,000) -
Net cash outflows from disposal HENBARE SR
of subsidiaries JREE 13(d) (211)
Proceeds from disposal of & T RREEME
convertible notes HIB 48,727
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BMENMREBE
plant and equipment HIB 72
Net cash (used in)/generated from BRETZH (FTA) Fre
investing activities HEFEE (73,709) 32,521
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from other borrowings Hnfg B ATSKIE - 61,115
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE 27(b) (111,843) (114,821)
Repayment of promissory note payable BEEMNELER - (30,000)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, BATER P15 0E
net of transaction costs (MBRRZHA) 736,397 558,469
Net cash generated from financing MEFTBMEESE
activities R 624,554 474,763
Net increase in cash and RERBELESEYIEM
cash equivalents HEE 446,839 369,498
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZHER
1 January Re%EY 398,633 29,582
Effect of foreign exchange rate R BE S
changes (1,524) (447)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT=-—A=1t—HzBEK
31 December REEEY 27(a) 843,948 398,633
The notes on pages 107 to 222 form part of these financial statements. HNE107EEE 222 A2 T RATBHEK
285 e
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

New Times Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its registered
office and principal place of business are Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Room 1402, 14/F.,
New World Tower |, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company is an investment holding company. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

EREH

FRRERERAR(ARF]) ARA
REFAMK L2 ERAT - Exfors
BE N2 °F B EE 4 BT 72 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda X BB E2FAEF 16 = 185%
HRAE—H 14121402 F - XA AR
EBBMER AR AR (BT E
REM - RABABREERAR - AR
AMBRARMNEZERF BN T
18 °

EXRSFTEE

(a) &HEH
ZEVERREBEMEEAES
B HmEER (BB AT BT KR
LR piEREeMAE(H
BEETEAE ) B2 FTE EAE
RIB S IERE %R - BB FAE
BI(TEEesTER ) rRE) &
BERBRMN ST RAULEAE AR
1&B) 2 BEARERS o R HEHRE
MMESTHMR RS EmARR (T Em
A 2 BAEEE - AEBEEK
FAREXRSETBEREENT -

FEGFMASDEME TRAE
B ANRRE R BB EREXK
A R R R 2 HT AT R IERT &
B IR E LR o M EE2(0) I
RERZEEAREERIRATS
FHHIRA B 2 M 52 R R B R AR
BRRARR 2 EFRY -

#rE B R AR A A
—EFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
investments, financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition or
as trading securities (see note 2(g)); and

— derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

— non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell (see note 2(y)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(9]

(Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management based on estimations of future revenue from
sales of crude oil and other products, future production costs,
committed and planned capital expenditure and the
availability of financing, which cover a period of twelve
months from the reporting period end date. They are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due and
committed future capital expenditure within the next twelve
months from the end of the current reporting period and that
there are no material uncertainties in this respect which
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, additional disclosure has been included
in note 27(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

2 EARETTHEX#)

(b)

(9]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes 2(p) or 2(q) depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (see note 2(y)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Joint arrangement and associates

The Group is a party of joint arrangement when it exercises
joint control over arrangement by acting collectively with
other parties and decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The
joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture
depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangement.

In relation to interest in joint operations, the Group
recognises: (i) its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly, (ii) liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly, (iii) revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation, (iv) its share of the
revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operations,
and (v) its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note
2(y)). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group'’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group'’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Joint arrangement and associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group'’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2(9)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note
2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading or financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on
these investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in notes 2(v)(ii) and 2(v)(iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group has the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Financial instruments are designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

. the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

o the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

o the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

o the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or
the net payment and the carrying value is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend
income from equity securities and interest income from debt
securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in notes 2(v)(ii) and 2(v)(iii), respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of debt securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting periods, the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge
the net investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

()

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)), no
depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during the
exploration and evaluation phase. Exploration and evaluation
costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Costs directly
associated with an exploration well, and exploration and
property leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised until the
determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs are
recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified
as either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.
These assets are assessed for impairment, and any impairment
loss recognised, before reclassification.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4-5 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Depreciation of oil production assets is calculated on unit of
production method based upon the estimated proved and
probable oil reserves to write off the cost of each asset, less
any estimated residual value.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (Continued)
Amortisation of rights on oil sharing and oil exploration rights
are calculated on unit of production method based upon the
estimated proved and probable oil reserves to write off the
cost of each asset, less any estimated residual value.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

2 EARESTEER®
(k) EREE (BEBRM) (B

)

AMAZE R AmE RS U
TEHELREE IR ERTE
KRB T EMH R R EEZ A
RMAERSREEFTE -

AEEHE BRI AETEE
=B -

B EENER REBERAE
RERFITHIE - BVEERS
BEEERAERFHZEREEF
mE WREEEHRIEAREHE
XFRREERBERAERFY
ZFHE - ARSI M E AL ES
B R ERERFERERERS
BRZE%  2aE2HERAERLE
XFEERR AR AR A ERFH
ZEEE < BSHBUR BN

HEEE
HASKEIRE —BLZ SRR E
BHAAKEEEEREEEREH
BRI —FSERFIA - AIBRE
—HERGRERERFGZERLYE
REBE—BHE - ZRRTE IR
BREENELBHEL - M w&IA
ZHRERBEE AR -

() PAFREHEEEZSE
HARBEREEQTE - M
Hp@AEo RN EE#E
ClkBEFRAREIEETD
BAREREEANTE - T
TRAKEER RIS R
aRERRELRZBO TN
BREEHEA -

R BERA R A A
—T—tFFR

119



120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(m). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

0)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 2(e)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)(iii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(m)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEARETHEHE )

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued) (m) EERE#E)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) EEREZIHFRENHM

securities and other receivables (Continued) FEWFEZBEE)
—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative — HRAHEEZES

loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit
or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment
loss whenever one of the following events or changes
in circumstances indicates that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable:

—  the period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

—  substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

— exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation assets is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(m)(iii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(m)

(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— lease prepayments;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 2(m)(i), 2(m)(ii)
and 2(m)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(u)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Employee benefits

0)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model or binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

. different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

0}

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(u)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(v) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or collected by the customer which
is taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(ii) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange difference relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

0]

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained
below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets and
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures). These assets, even if held
for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held for
sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see 2(y)(i) above), if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

2 EARETTHEX#)

(y) BEHEZHRRBEERER
IEEE R ()

(ii)

BERIEREXEY

ERLEREXRBRARER
Hz—8n HEERRS
i A] B KSR [ H A K SR
B BRR-BREHNL

WEED 2B EEET -
FAEREE —HREB M
BEODCBLETEEH 28

—HEE D B
MR AR R8s & U iE 2 T &8
NCIID

2 B B R A T B
HETEE 28 () (R
EX20)0) - A BB K
IR o HE R
EREBTESBAKILE
B .

WEXRB BRI BERILE
2 lleRNBaRRE—H
MEF EPREE:

— DBRUIEER %%%Z%\m
& AR

— BBRERLEEEXEH
ZEEHHEMAR - &t
ERNBEBHEERA
S B R R 2 BR R
&\ -

ERER AR
—LEEH

BB 18

137



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEARETHEHE )

(z) Related parties (2) BAE®RH
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@ WEBIATAL  BIZZALEK
related to the Group if that person: ZALTZORERNEEEH
P
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () ek K R A S
3
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) UAXEBHEEATE
VAR

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AAEEITEEFA

the Group or the Group's parent. R ETBEIEEKS -
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) HEFETHEMMES BT
conditions applies: A EEARE -

() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZELHAAEEBR-—
same group (which means that each parent, SEZKE AR (A&
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the SRaE  WEBRAR &R
others). EQny YNGRl ARk =l

) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HEBARS—EBEN
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a GERNRIH A EDE
member of a group of which the other entity is a (KEZ—EBEBREKER
member). AIZEEETKE AR

ZEERNERAEED
%) o

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (iy MEERBHAR-—%=
party. THEERE -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBRE=7ESL
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. MELELE mMB—F

BAEZFE=-HERBMNE
/NS

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ERAAEENHEAE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or BE@ECERIES
an entity related to the Group. ) 25 3% 37 RO BB 4R A FT

gl -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (i) EEEXZ2@)a)FT#ERA
person identified in 2(2)(a). TAE Bk S RIEH o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2)

(aa)

Related parties (Continued)
(vii) A person identified in 2(z)(a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Note 36 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Oil and gas properties and reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's oil and gas resources
and reserves are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are
authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated oil and gas reserves can be
designated as “proved”. Proved and probable reserves
estimates are updated at least annually and take into account
recent production and technical information about each field.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year,
the estimate of proved and probable reserves also changes.
This change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

()

(ii)

Oil and gas properties and reserves (Continued)
Future dismantlement costs for oil and gas properties are
estimated with reference to engineering estimates after
taking into consideration the anticipated method of
dismantlement required in accordance with industry practices
in similar geographic area, including estimation of economic
life of oil and gas properties, technology and price level. The
present values of these estimated future dismantlement costs
are capitalised as oil and gas properties with equivalent
amounts recognised as provisions for dismantlement costs.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined based
on estimated proved and probable reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing properties
(the numerator). Producing properties’ capitalised costs are
amortised based on the units of oil and gas produced.

Impairment losses of non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include exploration and
evaluation assets, property, plant and equipment, lease
prepayments, intangible assets, goodwill and investments in
joint ventures and associates, recoverable amount of the asset
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to items such as level
of sale volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
sales volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment losses of available-for-sale financial
investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale
investments and recognises the movement of their fair values
in other comprehensive income. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the aging of the receivable balance, debtors’
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, other
than oil production assets, oil exploration rights and rights on
oil sharing are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual values, if any. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives and the residual values of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortisation expense to be recorded during
any reporting period. The determination of the useful lives
and the residual values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expense for future periods are adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

3 BIHERGET @

(vi) Income tax

(vi) FRG%

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong Kong, PRC,
Argentina and the United States of America (“US"”) where the
Group entities operate. Judgment is required in determining
the provision for current and deferred tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises tax liabilities
based on the historical experience and with reference to the
tax rules and regulations enacted at the reporting period end
date. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that are initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERISIHHE

(a) Revenue (a) Wz

Continuing operations

The principal activities of the Group are (i) exploration,
development, production and sale of natural resources; and (i)
commodities trading.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers.

Sales of oil products under oil
exploration and production

Sales of non-ferrous metals under
commodities trading
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA=BASN FiE £ RBHABTLIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

The Group’s customer base includes four (2016: one)
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue. The transaction amounts of individual
customer are disclosed as follows:

Customer 1 zHE—
Customer 2 z2E_
Customer 3 BTE=
Customer 4 =P

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from customers
are set out in note 36(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group's chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

Details of the Group’s reportable segments as follows:

o Upstream: This segment is engaged in the exploration,
development, production and sale of crude oil. It is
further evaluated on a geographic basis. Currently the
Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in
Argentina. Upstream activities carried out in the US
were disposed of on 30 December 2016 and were
classified as a discontinued operation (see note 5).

o Commodities trading: This segment includes trading of
non-ferrous metals and other products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

0}

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
chief operating decision maker monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates and joint ventures, available-for-sale
investments, deferred tax assets and unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all the
liabilities with the exception of unallocated corporate
liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
Segment revenue and expenses include the Group's
share of revenue and expense arising from the activities
of the Group's joint operation.

Segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss resulted by
each segment without allocation of provision for/
reversal of impairment of non-current assets, share of
losses of joint ventures, unallocated interest income and
expense and other net expense in corporate head office.
This is the measure reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 2(aa).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

4 WHERDIBHE 2

(b) ZEEFHE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) 2EXEE BERAEBE)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments FRRBETFAEEFTEZ
as provided to the Group’s chief operating decision BERRERIEERESBEE D
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and MBI REFBZ2HRS
performance assessment for the year is set out below: EERAT

Upstream
L
us
Argentina (discontinued operation) Sub-total Commodities trading Total
E:
FIRE (BRILEEER) it BREs @zt

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
25 Bkl —F-t5 Bkt —2-tF Bl —T-tF Bkl S8t Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax TET FAT TEx Fax TAT FAT TER Fax TAT
Reportable segment revenue (note) 7] £ ¥k 2t (M) 43,467 57,108 53 43,467 57,161 244,090 287,557 57,161
Reportable segment loss 2R HER (67.419) (50,835) (7,055) (67,419) (57,890) (108) - (67,527)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHE 7,570 7,570 7,570
Exploration expenses RS 35,544 35,544 35,544
Interest income FISHMA = - . f
Interest expense FlaRx 36 36 36 48
(Reversal)/provision of (B%)/:HREE
impairment loss of assets REEE
~ exploration and evaluation —HRRIREE
assets (248,040) 102,694 (248,040) 102,694 (248,040) 102,694
Additions to non-current segment  ERIEREI D BEEELM
assets during the year 43,690 63,627 43,690 63,627 43,690 63,627
Reportable segment assets NERHPEE HILRPER 2,262,827 2,469,723 WNIIEIY 2,469,723 WNIIENY
Reportable segment liabilities 2R HEE (47,601) (78,905) (47,601) (78,905) (47,802) (78,905)
Note: Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated fiaE - EXXFRERZ D EBU R TE R B M
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from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
during both the current and prior years.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDE®E @
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7wy (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) TEFRIBUERERE &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREEZHER
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue U 2=
Reportable segment revenue A 2 5o B 287,557 57,161
Less: discontinued operations W BRI TS - (53)
Consolidated revenue e s 287,557 57,108
Loss EB
Reportable segment loss Al 25 &R (YAYY)) (57,890)
Unallocated interest expense AOBRFEFRT ((EPLY)) (26,509)
Reversal/(provision) of impairment Bl (5HR) B EREEE
loss of assets 228,611 (105,442)
Other net expenses in corporate YNCIFEEISSE b e
head office (45,721) (40,549)
Share of losses of joint ventures JEihaLhEZEE (4,150) (6,280)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HER—HEELE 2D
in a joint venture ez 2 W 3,304 =
Add: reportable segment loss from  fll © B 4% IE L HE TG
discontinued operations Al 235 2BEE 7,055
Consolidated profit/(loss) before B E FETEBRBLAT
taxation from continuing operations 44 % F/(E18) (229,615)
FREREERER QA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaRDTIHHRE =2
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7wy (&)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) ATE2FoHFUERERE B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) EREEZHERE)
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A2/ HEE 2,469,723 2,262,827
Interest in joint ventures REEDRFE s 18,104 28,675
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 36,617 58,429
Deferred tax assets EEF IR A B 11,149 6,240
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRCEEE
— Cash and cash equivalents - e RIRESZEEY 833,451 383,258
— Other financial assets -HEMeREE 329,610 242,281
— Promissory note receivable — FEE G =B 42,687 35,786
— Other receivables - Hith fE Y RIR 41,810 47,567
— Others —Hty 498 366
Consolidated total assets e BEMRE 3,783,649 3,065,429
2017 2016
—EB—tE —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&x FHET
Liabilities =F
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2HoEaE (47,802) (78,905)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEAE
— Other borrowings -HiEE (213,780) (331,759)
— Deposit received - Bz e (48,880) =
— Other payables — Hh fE T3R8 (5.871) (3,500)
Consolidated total liabilities IREAaERE (316,333) (414,164)

1 48 NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaEKkoBEE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7wy (&)
(iii) Geographical information (i) HEEHR

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets other than available-for-sale investments and
deferred tax assets (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the Group’s revenue is based
on the locations of customers. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
(i) the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and exploration and
evaluation assets; and (i) the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets, goodwill, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables. In the case of interest in joint ventures, it is
based on the location of the operation of such joint
ventures.

Revenue from external
customers

REANBEF z Wi

TR () A K E R B 5
BEREzEE: RAEEZ
FRBEE  TEEAHL
ERERRERAEEE ([
EFRBDEEDMWEMEZ
BR o AN B ek /Y 3 3R (L
BENEREFPMAEN - BT
FERMENE B Z T T TA()
YE - BB RREREBRF
LRFBEEMS BEARSH
frpg 2 3H + k(B E
E BE AMRE R
REMEBUHEMS @ KE
BNl zEEMR - BN E
BhEzERmE - AIAZK
BEBEEBAEMIRE

Specified non-current
assets

BEFRBEE

2017 2016 2017 2016

TEtF bRl — T+ F Eeiaacs

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT F#&T FHT

Singapore N3 52,882 - _
Hong Kong B 191,208 1,541 37,009
PRC ey - 16,733 27,818
Argentina FA] AR 52 43,467 yRULEYYM 2 152,743
us e - 53 - =

287,557

57,161

2,427,701 2,217,570

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(@) Shine Great Disposal

On 7 October 2014, Shine Great Investments Limited (“Shine
Great”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and Goldlink Capital Limited (“Goldlink”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited"”)
(“Blue Sky”) entered into a subscription agreement pursuant
to which a total of 1,453,790 subscription shares of Shine
Great representing approximately 14.54% of the enlarged
issued share capital of 10,000,000 shares shall be subscribed
by Goldlink at a cash consideration of HK$37,800,000
(“Subscription”).

On 7 October 2014, Total Belief Limited (“Total Belief”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
parent company of Shine Great, and Goldlink entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“Shine Great Agreement”)
pursuant to which Goldlink conditionally agreed to acquire
and Total Belief conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interest in Shine Great (“Shine Great Disposal”). The Shine
Great Disposal would be completed in two transactions as
follows:

Transaction I: sale of 36.46% of 10,000,000 enlarged shares
of Shine Great to Goldlink

Transaction II: sale of 49.00% of 10,000,000 enlarged shares
of Shine Great to Goldlink

The consideration for Transaction | should be satisfied by a
cash consideration of HK$17,000,000 and the issue of
convertible notes by Blue Sky to Total Belief in the principal
amount of HK$77,805,000 upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions precedent.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(@) Shine Great Disposal (Continued)

The consideration for Transaction Il should be satisfied by the
issue of convertible notes by Blue Sky to Total Belief in the
principal amount of HK$135,240,000 upon the fulfilment of
certain conditions precedent. The principal amount of
convertible notes in Transaction Il would be adjusted in case
of any shortfall between (i) revenue guarantee as defined in
the Shine Great Agreement (”“Revenue Guarantee”) and the
actual consolidated revenue of Shine Great for the year ended
31 December 2015 (“Actual Revenue”), and/or (ii) profit
guarantee as defined in the Shine Great Agreement (“Profit
Guarantee”) and the actual consolidated profit of Shine Great
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Actual Profit”). The
principal amount of the convertible notes would be adjusted
from HK$135,240,000 to HK$133,888,000 if the shortfall
was within 20%. Otherwise, the principal amount of the
convertible notes would be adjusted from HK$135,240,000
to HK$132,535,000.

On 22 December 2014, the Shine Great Disposal was
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Subscription and Transaction | were completed on 24
February 2015. Upon completion of the Subscription,
1,453,790 subscription shares of Shine Great were subscribed
by Goldlink at a consideration of HK$37,800,000, of which
HK$35,880,000 was credited to non-controlling interests and
the balance of HK$1,920,000 was credited to the
accumulated losses account.

The Transaction Il was completed on 4 July 2016. Upon
completion of the Transaction II, the Group ceased to hold any
interest in Shine Great and its subsidiaries (“Shine Great Group”).
Since the Actual Revenue and Actual Profit of the Shine Great
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 cannot
satisfy the Revenue Guarantee and Profit Guarantee respectively
and resulted shortfall was over 20%, the consideration for
Transaction Il was adjusted to HK$132,535,000 and convertible
notes in principal amount of HK$132,535,000 was issued by
Blue Sky to Total Belief.

Shine Great Group carried out the Group’s operation in
distribution of natural gas business segment. Accordingly, the
Shine Great Group was presented as a discontinued operation in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) US Business Disposal

On 30 December 2016, Total Belief and Foothills Exploration
Operating, Inc. (“Foothills”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“US Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
sold the entire equity interest in Clear Elite Holdings Limited,
Prominent Sino Holdings Limited and Value Train Investments
Limited (“US Business Group”), which were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Total Belief, to Foothills (“US Business
Disposal”).

The US Business Disposal was completed on 30 December
2016. The consideration for the US Business Disposal
included:

(i)  cash consideration of US$750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,816,000);

(i) 2,083,334 shares (“Common Stock”) issued by Foothills
Exploration, Inc., (“Foothills Exploration”), the indirect
holding company of Foothills;

(i) a non-interest bearing promissory note with a principal
amount of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$46,560,000) (“Promissory Note") issued by Foothills
to the Group, which has a repayment term of 18
months.

The US Business Group carried out the Group’s operation in
US. Accordingly, the US Business Group was presented as a
discontinued operation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

Results of discontinued operations

5 CRUEKEER®)

(0 CBRIEEEXKEE

2016
—T—RHF
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue U %5 53
Expenses s (7,108)
Loss before taxation FRELATE 1B (7,055)
Income tax Frig#t (1)
Loss for the year FREE (7,056)
Gain on Shine Great Disposal BARHEEHEFE IR
Transaction Il (note 5(e)) R 52 Wz (F3E5()) 86,399
Gain on US Business Disposal ETHEKHEEE 2 W 19,230
Profit from discontinued operations, BRI REEKRR
net of tax HBRPBLIE 98,573
Attributable to: FE(g :
Owners of the Company RAREEA 99,860
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (1,287)
98,573
Earnings per share (restated) SRER (E5)
Basic (HK cent) B GEALD 2.50
Diluted (HK cent) #5E (B 2.50

H R AR ERA T
—TtEER

153



154

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5 BRIELKEERK R
(d) Cash used in discontinued operations (d BRIEKLEXEKFTAZRS

2016

—E—ARF

HK$'000

FAT

Net cash outflow for the year FRIHEmLFRE (76)

(e) Assets held for sale (e) BEHEEE
Upon completion of the Subscription and Transaction | on 24 RZZE—RAF-A=+WHATKR
February 2015, the Group’s 49% retained interest in Shine BEEMFE-BRHE  NEER
Great Group was accounted for as an associate, which was BAREE Z249% REBEZRIE—
classified as assets held for sale since 24 February 2015 till the MEtE AR WEBZZT—HFZ
completion of Transaction Il on 4 July 2016. AZ+HBRSEAIFIELEER
E EEF_ERHGN_T— F
+ AMmM AR °
The details of the gain on disposal of the assets held for sale HERELHEEEZREFABTIN
was analysed as follows: NN

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

FAT

Consideration received* UWERARAE * 217,352
Carrying amount of the assets held for sale** e EEEZEMmE (130,953)

Gain on disposal HEMEKRE 86,399

* The consideration was satisfied by issuing of convertible notes by Blue
Sky to Total Belief in the principal amount of HK$132,535,000 (see note
5(a)). The fair value of the convertible notes on 4 July 2016 was
HK$217,352,000 which was determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
appraisal firm, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited.

*x The fair value of the 49% retained interest in Shine Great Group *x

assumed on 24 February 2015 was determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
appraisal firm, Roma Appraisal Limited.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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OTHER INCOME

Continuing operations

Bank interest income

Interest income on convertible notes
receivables

Interest income on promissory note
receivable

Other interest income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

6 HaWA
BRCEER

2017
=F-t#F
HK$'000
TET

ERITH S WA 6,804
FEUR AT A AR 4 2 A B U A

& W R iR 2 B B

Total interest income on financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss

Net foreign exchange loss

Loss on disposal of convertible
notes receivables

Others

6,900
HF 2 UA 1,658
SEE BB AR R BEYIRD

SRVEEF B ABEE 15,362
V& e 1R F R (4,840)

HERWATRREERER

Hib 5,728

16,250

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@) Finance costs
Continuing operations

A) THIEIE :

(a) BEKA

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FAT
231
3,445

17

3,693
(3,788)

(25,058)
2,158

(22,995)

7 BRBADEF,(BR)

BRBADEM, (B BEENR (G

2017 2016

—E—+tF A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Interest on other borrowings HaBEF S 19,293 25,632

Interest on promissory note payable FER A B 2 T B - 925
Total interest expenses on FEBIBRARAREETIRZ

financial liabilities not at CRBECFERT B
fair value through profit or loss 26,557
FREREERER QA

—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)

(c)

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED

Continuing operations

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plan

Fro o ERREAMER
FE BB FURRE BIfHER

7 BRBAER(BR) @

(b) EIRAF(BREEEHE)

FEREERR

2017

e
HK$'000
FiER

23,536

4,053

27,589

(Reversal)/provision of impairment loss of assets

Continuing operations

(Reversal)/provision of impairment

loss of assets

— exploration and evaluation

assets

— available-for-sale investments

— other receivables

(B, sHREBREE
- BREHEAE

- AHHERE
- Rt YR

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T

15,949

4,096

20,045

(0 (B8 FREERESR

BEREEK
2017
—E—tF
Note HK$'000
B = TET

14 (248,040)
23 19,429

(228,611)

Annual Report 2017

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

102,694
1,698
1,050

105,442



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7 BRBIANER(EE) @)

(d) REEE(KA)FE

(d) Net investment loss/(income)

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Listed equity securities at fair value AR EESRz EHRANES 39,532 (10,486)
Unlisted investment funds at fair value AR A BEFEZIF EHEE

- (1,524) -

Unlisted equity-linked securities FE_E TR AN BN E 5 (516) -

Derivative financial instruments TESBMTE - (3,267)

37,492 (13,753)

(e) Other items (e) HMIER

Continuing operations

FEKERE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets B EES 2,905 3,752
Depreciation of property, W - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 4,881 6,009
Operating leases charges: KEHEER -
minimum lease payments REBEERK
— leasehold land and buildings -FAELHNIETF 2,759 2,875
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl
— audit services - BZARTE 2,520 2,950
— other services - HAib AR 889 115
Cost of sales (note) SHERA (FFEE) 280,651 48,689
Exploration expenses (see note 14(c))  EhRF Sz (R 14(0)) 35,544 -

e © SHERANBIEE IARA - T8 R
AX ZeETeERRSELER
AR EXRMZE70) A IREZSE
BEEN HERALEBBEFLD
3,981,000 7T( — T — X #:
7,318,000 7T) (18 E M 47 & R iH
FX) °

Note: Cost of sales includes staff costs, depreciation and amortisation
expenses, which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 7(b) for each of these types of
expenses. Included in the balance of cost of sales is approximately
HK$3,981,000 (2016: HK$7,318,000) which represents depreciation
and amortisation expense.

#Es R AR R A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 MEBRRANZFE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) FEBRRAZBIIEE:
or loss represents:
Continuing operations BEREEK
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong BIEASIE — EEMBH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year FEE -
Current tax — overseas BNHARIIE — @ oh
Provision for the year FANRE 11
11
Deferred tax ELEBHE
Origination and reversal of PRl =88 2 E A R L
_ temporarydifferences ... 6032)
(6,021)
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the BEAREREBREZHS ([HE
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Company and its subsidiaries BRREE ) ZRBIRER - ANAF]
incorporated in Bermuda and the BVI are not subject to any REME R BN E R RBEFEY
income tax in Bermuda and the BVI for both the current and BAMMNARERRBRZHSE
prior years. RIFFAS R ©
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the FRN - ARAEEREB 2 X0
Group's operations in Hong Kong had no assessable profits EERTRN - M EEHRE AR
for the year. The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2017 BUBE N —tF - BEFN
is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated BB ETIREEAN 2 G ER
assessable profit for the year. = A AZ165% ( = F — X F -

16.5%) Z B KetE »
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

BEBERAZEHR @

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) HmEBBERAZHEIE: (&)
or loss represents: (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

Subsidiaries of the Group in Argentina are subject to
Argentina corporate income tax (“CIT") at 35% (2016: 35%)
and minimum presumed income tax (“MPIT”). MPIT is
supplementary to CIT and is chargeable at the applicable tax
rate of 1% on the tax basis of certain assets. The tax liabilities

of the Group in Argentina are the higher of CIT and MPIT.

BEKEEK(E)

AN E R AR L 2 M B A R AR
35% ME(ZZT—/NF :35%) H
MPARECEMEH(EEME
i 1) R HERI B AT1S R ([ HE A & (K
FBHil) - HRARIEKASH AL
SRz ms  WETEEZH
EIZ1% BEBREREBK - AEER
FRE 2 FIEABE A EMREH &
HAREERZESE o

AEBEEMBING B QR 2 BIRIE
MERABIR Rt 2 RITEE B R UK
HX °

Taxation for other overseas subsidiaries of the Group is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
the relevant countries and regions.

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b) BEEREGTERN (FHE)
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: REABRZHE !
Continuing operations BESEER

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrEL A E A, (E51E) 95,260 (229,615)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BRERBALER,(BER) 2
taxation, calculated at the rates HEBIE - ERANEE
applicable to loss in the jurisdictions B e A REIR I RTE
concerned 109 (7,791)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERFRIMA 2 TR TG & (42,426) (6,966)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIH 5 2 2 i 75 o 2 24,500 8,485
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised — RIERFISE B 2 TS 2 9,842 3
Tax effect of temporary differences AERZ B =B BRETE
not recognised 18 248
Effect on deferred tax balance resulting &% & & &) 3| #E ~ IR L5 18
from a change in tax rate e -
Actual tax credit BERBHHER (6,021)
FRREERER AR

—T—tFFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9 ES=HM

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

FFRHIRIEEE QARG 5 383(1) 1K
FARI(HWEEEFZER) R A2

160

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

HRERBEMT

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2ER EY/N
EEHd BENER WA STEIN @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT THET TR TR
Chairman ES
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart BiRLE
Executive directors HITEFE

Mr. Zhang Kun (appointed on
12 December 2016 and resigned

on 9 February 2018) —E—\FZANABHT)
Mr. Tang John Wing Yan (appointed &k Bt (R - F—+4F
on 30 June 2017) (note) NH= T HEZF) M)

Non-executive director

Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (re-designated
on 30 June 2017 and resigned
on 13 April 2018)

Independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREREE
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZREE
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter &ML
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SiRELE

REEE(R-F—F
TZATZAEEFERR

HHITEE

HRREE (R-F—t#F
ANA=THBERR
ZF-\FHAT=A8&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

9 DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)

9 EEFHMe

2016
—ERE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
o 2R RIK
EEk BEiER BIEAL R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FHIT T THL THL
Chairman e
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart HERLs = 1,836 150 18 2,004
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (re-designated ~ BBER{ESE A4 (R —F—+4
as a non-executive director on NA=ZTHAER
30 June 2017) FHITEE) - 816 150 18 984
Mr. Zhang Kun (appointed on RBEAE(RZE—NEF
12 December 2016 and resigned TZA+=HEZERR
on 9 February 2018) —E—\EZ AL AEEHF) - 32 - - 32
Non-executive director FHITEE
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln BRETE(R=_F—NEF
(resigned on 4 March 2016) Z Al AEHT) 35 = = = 35
Independent non-executive directors B FE#iTEE
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BEREL 200 - - _ 200
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZEE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter THAIEE 200 - _ _ 200
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SIRELELE 200 _ _ _ 200
835 2,684 300 36 3,855

Note: Mr. Tang John Wing Yan was appointed as an executive director of the
Company and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 30
June 2017. The emoluments from 1 January 2017 up to the date of
appointment as an executive director were HK$1,251,000. He was one of the
five individuals with the highest emoluments of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 with total emoluments of HK$2,199,000.

Mzt : MXBALECEZTARNARRTESRA
ARITHRER AT —+tF~~A=1+HE
AW BT —tE— A BHEEZEZTA
BMITEE 2 HWE B A1,251,000% 7T © #
ABE-E—tE+-A=+—HIEER
SERNBRFMALTZ— FHAEA
2,199,000 7T °

HE R ARA
—ELEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 &S HMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2016: ﬁ{ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ@ﬂ/\i%ﬂf] C AL ZE—R
one) are directors whose emolument are disclosed in note 9. During ) AEE HBES R Fow
the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate of the BoBE_T—tF+-A=+—HL
emoluments in respect of the other three individuals (2016: four) FE HH=M(ZT—RF: @) A
were as follows: TZAEEMemT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He EZEEREYER 2,283 5,122
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 553 233
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGHEIHE R 27 520
5,875
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the emoluments of the BHE-Z—+tHF+-A=+—HILHF
three (2016: four) individuals with the highest emoluments were B =M (ZF—RNF : Of7) &= 5o
within the following bands: AT ZMEHBELLT
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N
HK$500,001-HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 & 751,000,000 /57T -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t -1,500,000 78 7T 3
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 772,000,000 7 7T 1
11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 Htb2mEkEs
Other comprehensive income does not have any tax effect for the HE_Z—+FT-_A=1T—HILFE -
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil). EmermBa T ETAREFE(ZET

/\¢ 5 7/%713)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(i) Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the

Company (basic)
Profit attributable to ViN/NEIE ¥ =N
owners of the Company il

(Loss)/profit attributable to  ZANRAFIEEA AE(L
owners of the Company (E18), &= 7

12 BRERN(&i8)
@) SREXERF(&E)

() F2BEAAEMGER)R
A, (E518)
2017
—E—+tF
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
=R’ e&1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT THExT FTHET
101,710 101,710
2016
—T—REF
Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations Total
& Bk
REE REXET et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET
(223,209) 99,860 (123,349)

HE R AR AR A A
Sz irrg| 103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (cContinued) 12 BREFN (&)@

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(basic)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of shares issued under open
offer (note 35(c)(ii))

Effect of bonus element on shares
issued under open offer

Effect of shares issued under share
option scheme (note 35(c)(iii))

Effect of shares issued under
subscription (note 35(c)(iv))

MR—A—BEZBTLER

BEAREEMBITRG 2
2 (M 5E 35(c)(i))

BB AREEMETRG
AR D 2 8

RR AT BB TR 2
S8 (B 35(c)(iii))

BERBEITRND 2L
(H$7E 35(c)(iv))

Weighted average number of ordinary A+ A=+—H2Z L BEK

shares (basic) at 31 December

(EA) hnigF1a 2

Note: Comparative figures for the weighted average number of

ordinary shares for 2016 have been adjusted retrospectively for

the effect of the open offer made in April 2017.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

(b)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, basic and
diluted loss per share was the same as the effect of the
potential ordinary shares outstanding was anti-dilutive.
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() BREXEF (FHE)#E)

HBER(EX) mEFEH
2016
—E-RF
‘000
TR
(Restated)
(ge=51)
5,910,322 2,497,026
2,145,528 —
43,098 103,574
3,269
1,391,120
8,098,948 3,994,989

MisE : BT —REZEBRINE
FHEZLEBEFER =T
—tFENAETZARBEZ
FEEHEYPRHE -

SREBERFN (&FHE)
BE_Z—tFR-ZT—X"F+=
A=1+—HIEFE  BEITBEEL
BRAEREEYE  MERER
MEESERIEAR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

13 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As disclosed in note 5(b), the US Business Disposal was completed

on 30 December 2016.

(a)

(b)

13 HEMB AT

KT EESO) AT EE - XEEBHESR

ER-ZZ-RF+-A=1tHxEK "

Consideration (a) MRfE
The following table summarises the fair value of each major TREMSEEARERHERH
class of consideration at the disposal date: ZAREE:
2016
—ERE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration receivable JEYIR BB 5,816
Common Stock (note 23(b)) 3w A% (B sE 23(b)) 24,802
Promissory Note A E 35,769
Total consideration REBERE 66,387
Details of net liabilities in respect of the US Business (b) HEBEEKKEEXREZEFERZZE
Group over which control was lost BEREFE
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BB R 19,795
Intangible assets mEEE 36,544
Trade and other receivables U E 5 R % H b fE U Zk I8 9,773
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA CEEY 211
66,323
Trade and other payables FERT B 5 BR 3k I ELAth FE < FRIE (12,599)
Amounts due to holding company FERHER A RS (202,425)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE (8,665)
(223,689)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBETFE (157,366)

370 R 8RR A 7]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

13 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Gain on US Business Disposal

13 HEMBAT &)

(0 XEXRBHEBHEZWEH

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration (note (a)) RAB (FF5E @) 66,387
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEREFE 157,366
Assignment of amounts due from DEEEKHE ARz 58 (M5 ()
subsidiaries (note (b)) (202,425)
Non-controlling interests e (2,141)
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of B SR B T A E A F i o
the net liabilities of the US Business Group EFoEEEEZ
reclassified from equity to profit or loss EREKEBBEFEZ
on the disposal date ZtELER 43
Gain on disposal S s 19,230
Notes: B E
(a) Cash consideration of US$75,000 (equivalent to approximately (a) RZE—tF—ANBER=ZT—+tF

HK$582,000) and US$675,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,238,000) were received on 4 January 2017 and 17 January 2017,
respectively. The Common Stock was issued by Foothills Exploration to
the Group on 30 December 2016 (see note 23). The Promissory Note
was issued by Foothills to the Group on 30 December 2016 (see note

—A+tB 55K ER S K(E 75000
x (48 & M #582,000% T ) &
675,000 7T (16 & 7 495,238,000 7%
L) o EBRENR =T —RFE+=A
= + A H# Foothills Exploration % 1T F

22). AEE(RWFE23) - AEEERERZ
T — X%+ = A=+ B H Foothills
TFASE(RHFE22) -
(b)  According to the US Agreement, upon the completion of the US b) BEEEHGRE REBREKLEHEEE

Business Disposal, the debts obligations of the US Business Group due

to the Group of HK$202,425,000 was discharged.

(d) Net cash outflow resulting from the US Business

TR EEEBESERNAEEZ
&7 202,425,000 8 T2 R -

(d) XEXBHESHEZBELRLFHE

Disposal
2016
—ERF
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration RENE -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B BEHEReKREEFEY (211)
Net cash outflow on disposal HEEAZRESRE T 211)

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

14 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

14 BERRFEEE

Exploration Exploratory Geological

rights drilling studies Others Total
R BN ReEH it BT Hit “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FET FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—R"F—HA—H 3,229,438 105,878 123,642 35,398 3,494,356
Additions NE 1,870 17,733 932 - 20,535
Exchange adjustments M 5 (1,809) (18,022) (18,170) (903) (38,904)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
+=-—A=+—H 3,229,499 105,589 106,404 34,495 3,475,987
At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—t&—A—H 3,229,499 105,589 106,404 3,475,987
Additions NE 894 33,739 - 34,633
Write-off (note (c)) s (M EE ) - (35,544) - (35,544)
Exchange adjustments b R (1,222) (10,920) (10,210) (22,856)
At 31 December 2017 R-T—+F
+=-—A=+—H 3,229,171 92,864 96,194 3,452,220
Accumulated impairment  ZiHE{E
At 1 January 2016 R=_Z—X"&—A—H 1,159,623 16,687 123,642 35,398 1,335,350
Impairment loss (note (b)) HEERE (5 (D)) 101,762 = 932 = 102,694
Exchange adjustments b R = (9,885) (18,170) (903) (28,958)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
+=-—A=+—H 1,261,385 6,802 106,404 34,495 1,409,086
At 1 January 2017 R-—ZE—+&—F—H 1,261,385 106,404 34,495 1,409,086
Reversal of impairment loss [ 6 (E 548 (Ff 5 (b))

(note (b)) (248,040) - - (248,040)
Exchange adjustments (ER ek 200 (1,793) (10,210) (504) (12,307)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&F

+=-—A=+—H 1,013,545 5,009 96,194 33,991 1,148,739
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F

+=-—A=+—H 2,215,626 2,303,481
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+—R=+—H 1,968,114 98,787 - - 2,066,901

KRR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

14 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

(a)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group holds 69.25% interest in
the Tartagal concession and Morillo concession (collectively
the “T&M concessions”) which are the concessions in the
province of Salta in northern Argentina, through an Union of
Temporary Enterprise (“T&M UTE"). Exploration permits were
granted for oil and developments of hydrocarbons in the T&M
concessions for an initial period of four years starting from 29
December 2006 and additional extensions up to an aggregate
of nine years may be obtained. The Group submitted
applications to the Secretary of Energy of Province of Salta,
Argentina (“Salta SOE") for extensions of the exploration
permits and obtained the approvals in July 2010, July 2011,
December 2013 and March 2016 respectively. On 13
September 2017, the exploration permits expired and in
March 2018 the Group has obtained the extension of the
exploration permits to 13 September 2019 which will be
effective imminently once it is published in the official local
gazette. If successful hydrocarbon discoveries are made, the
exploration permits can be converted to exploitation permits
for a term of 25 years with a possible extension of 10 years.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

14 BRRFAGHEE @)

(a)

—E—+F+-A=+—H ' &&E
% i Union of Temporary Enterprise
([T&M UTE ) #5745 Tartagal 557 # 1@
Kz Morillo 45 5 HE & (%278 [TRMHFFT
R | PR SELL ZBiE R A Y
R ATHEIR ) 69.25% B 25 © T’RM
RN 2 A R s b & R &
BRG] - BZEEREF+Z
A+ h ARV ARMEE - W]
BINEH - ZREEHNE - KNEE
E MR EEREE R ([5E
RIBA BRI R ) B B ERFT AT
HERF TolR_FE—FF
A Z2—%tH ZF—=%F
TZARZE—RF=RAESGH
E-RZE—tFNAT=R "
RErAEEm  AEERZZ-N
FZARGHEWRFAIEE_Z
—NWFNA+=AMNESR —B%E
gy A A& A IR ER -
IR &b &Y - BRTT A
BESREE I A R HA 25 FRYFERET AT -
A AT REREER 10 4F ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

14 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, on the basis that the extension of
the exploration permits in the T&M Concessions were to be
obtained in a reasonable period of time, the Group reversed
impairment loss of HK$248,040,000 (2016: impairment of
HK$102,694,000) for exploration and evaluation assets in
respect of T&M UTE. The reversal of impairment loss was
provided based on the calculations with reference to a
valuation report issued by an independent appraisal firm,
Roma Appraisals Limited. These calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial forecasts prepared by
management with reference to technical reports issued by
Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc., an independent
qualified technical consultant.

The cash flow projections cover the remaining life of the oil
fields for a 22-year period for Tartagal concession and a 23-
year period for Morillo concession. Pre-tax discount rates of
25.23% (2016: 29.90%) and 25.00% (2016: 28.64%) for
Tartagal concession and Morillo concession respectively have
been applied in the cash flow projections. The reversal of
impairment loss was mainly attributable to a decrease in pre-
tax discount rate driven by the lower country risk premium of
Argentina and lower systematic risk of oil and gas companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, exploration and
evaluation assets of HK$35,544,000 in respect of an
exploration well in T&M UTE which was determined to be
non-commercial and has been expensed as dry hole.

As at 31 December 2017, if pre-tax discount rate had
increased by 1% from the management’s estimates with
other variables constant with the expectations, the reversal of
impairment loss of exploration and evaluation assets of the
Group would decrease by approximately HK$166,920,000.

14 BRRFAGHEE @)

(b)

RZZB—+tF+=—A=+—H &
7 E BRTRM 5 57 # [ &) R 57 7l #%
REBRIBRNES  AEERTAM
UTE B9 B IR & 5147 & B 8 BB B
$8248,040,000 87T (ZF — /R4 -
BB 102,694,000 7T ) ° B{EEE
BODRELEBYAHARES
BB FH AR AR B HM A ERS
ERRIETERHR - 257 ERAE
REBELL2ERB LA BRI
BE [ Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. % H 7 F T ¥k & m
R BETEAREMNIESRETEN -

IR & 7% & T8 OB K 2 Tartagal 5 57 1
EH BB TERSFHR2F R
Morillo 45 57 # [ &4 '~ {55 A3 4F 27 23
£ o Tartagal 5 5T # [& 1% Morillo %
HFRERORSREENS HER
25.23% (ZZF—7F : 29.90%) &
25.00% (ZZF—7"1F : 28.64%) K
BRFLATEAIRER - BERIRERIEEZE
A 2 P AR S B K B 2R LB 2 18
HRARRERFIERRHESR - B
TR ARG IR R N FRFTEK

HE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—H1F
FE FHETATEAREMED
T&M UTE #iRF R B ik R EE =
35,544,000 70 BEEAFLH X
§H ©

RZZE—+tF+_A=+—8 i
B 5% i R 2R 2R &2 IR E ik 518 00
1% @ MEAMEERF S RHRRE T
g AARKENHEMFEEEN
mOE BB E KR DD
166,920,000 7T °

HESRERERA A
T LFFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 9% - BERRHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Oil production  Construction
improvements Machinery equipment vehicles assets in progress Total
& RER
HENEEE BeE iNE RE  AHEEEE ERIR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Fir FiEx THx TB7 TAL THT
Cost 7%
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E—A—H 639 377 2,232 9N 89,195 1,030 94,384
Additions RE = 57 836 = 659 47,658 49,210
US Business Disposal (note 13) FEEBMESE(WE13) - - - - (76,891) (891) (77,782)
Other disposals HibtE - - @ - (4,955) - (4,959)
Transfer [ - - - 202 - (202) -
Exchange adjustments %A = (79 (410) (197) (1,846) (5,079) (7,611)
At31 December 2016 RZZ-"E+t-A=t—-H
At 1 January 2017 R=Z2—+5-A—H 42,516 53,242
Additions AE 8,862 9,076
Write-off sy - (44)
Transfer [ 51,356 (51,356) -
Exchange adjustments ERAE (551) (890) (22) (1,884)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+=-A=t-H 51,160 5,272 60,390
Accumulated depreciationand  BIHHTERFE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"E—A—H 260 120 1,3% 349 64,753 - 66,876
Charge for the year FEREY 159 51 786 215 4,829 = 6,040
Written back on US Business FEEBLESHAR
Disposal (note 13) (Hz£13) = = - - (57,987) = (57,987)
Written back on other disposals HihHERR - - (4) - (4,883) - (4,887)
Exchange adjustments B AR = (29) (319) (90) (1,840) - 2,278)
At31 December 2016 RZZ-"E+t-A=t-H
At 1 January 2017 R=Z2—t+5-A—H
Charge for the year FRR% 2,784
Written back on write-off R -
Exchange adjustments B AR (329)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&+-A=1+—-H 2,597 11,089
Net book value EHEE
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+&F+-A=1+-H 48,563 49,301
At 31 December 2016 R=Z-A"E+-A=t-AH 220 213 797 442 1,290 42,516 45,478

1 70 NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January 2016

US Business Disposal (note 13)
Exchange adjustments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

16 BEE

Rights on oil Oil exploration

sharing rights Total
B R E AmERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIT FBT FHBIT

(note)

(Bf=E)

AR

RZE—R"E—H—H 39,649 156,717 196,366
EREBHEEE(PHFE13) - (156,724) (156,724)
[E 5 g (7,630) 7 (7,623)

At 31 December 2016

R_E—R"E+-A=+—H

At 1 January 2017

R—Z—tF—H—H

Exchange adjustments BE 5, S0 B
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+E+=-A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation and R BERRE

impairment
At 1 January 2016 R-Z—X~"F—H—H 8,533 120,177 128,710
Charge for the year FRRX 3,752 3 3,755
Written back on US Business FEEKHESEER

Disposal (note 13) (BF=E13) = (120,180) (120,180)
Exchange adjustments b i R (2,042) = (2,042)
At 31 December 2016 R_E—R"F+-A=1+—8H
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—tF—HF—H 10,243 10,243
Charge for the year FRRX 2,905 2,905
Exchange adjustments Rk (1,688) (1,688)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+E+=-A=+—H 11,460 11,460
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=1+—H 16,296 16,296
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RE+ZA=1+—H 21,776 = 21,776
Note: It represents the rights on oil sharing relating to the Palmar Largo concession BisE : 5%78 15 A B Palmar Largo 45 #F & 15 2 A R 5

areas. Amortisation is calculated using the unit of production method based

i - BREEEREEREERGER

upon the estimated proved and probable oil reserves.

HEERTERYR#EEEME -

#Es R AR R A A
“x—raeg | /]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% SA #BA5N FiE & 5B TTIIR)

17

18

2017
—B—tF
HK$'000
TR

GOODWILL 17 B8
Cost: B

At 1 January m—H—H

Exchange adjustments M 5 AR

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows:

Name of company
PR

Total Belief Limited
BEERAF

Jade Honest Limited

Absolute Champ Limited
BEERAF)

Ace Diamond Trading Limited
Big Trade Investments Limited
Bright Rise Group Limited

BREEERAA

Cheer Profit Group Limited
REEEERAF
Discovery Operating LLC

ET-LA, LLC

First Apex Global Limited

Place of establishment/
incorporation and
business

R/ EMRYLK
M

B
RERIES

B
RBRIES

Hong Kong
&R

BVI
ERRLES

B
RBRIES

B
RERAES

B
RERAES

Us
26

us
8

B
RBRIES

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERTR
HRBRARFE

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1RERAEE I ET 2 LRk

2,700 ordinary shares of US$1 each
2,700 RERAE 1R ERA

1 ordinary share at HK$1 each
1RERAEE BT LRk

100 ordinary shares at US$1 each
100REHREE 1 £ LAk

1 ordinary share at US$ 1 each
1RERAEE I ET 2 LRk

1 ordinary share at US$ 1 each
1RERAEE I ET 2 LRk

1 ordinary share at US$ 1 each
1RERAEE I ET 2 LRk

Nil paid

T

Registered capital of US$500
FHRERS00%T

100 ordinary shares of US$1 each
100REHREE 1 £ LAk

18 REIBLARZRE

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET

335
(65)

270

R-ZE—tF+_A=+—HARAZ

MEBLARFENT
Proportion of ownership interest
gt 4 3+
Group's

effective  Heldbythe  Held by the
interest Company subsidiary
KEEZ AR WEARE
ERER fisaE fisaE
100% 100% -
100% 100% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Principal activities
TEER

Investment holding

REZR

Dormant

ONEAE

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Dormant

AEEBED

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 NHMB AT ZRE ®)

Proportion of ownership interest

gt 2 -0y
Place of establishment/ Group's
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Heldbythe  Held by the
Name of company business and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
RI/ERRLE BRTR FEEZ AR WEAH
AGIEL B HRRAFR ERER fiEaE fisEE TEEH
First Continent Holdings Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EERAES 100 RERARE 1 Zrs ERR REER
Giant Perfect Holdings Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EERAES 100 RERAE 1 Zrs EBR REER
Grand Rich Trading Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding/
Commodities trading
EEEHERAR RRRAES 1REREE 1 ZT EBR RERR/ HnES
Happy Light Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
HEEBERAR RRRAES 1REREE1ZT EBR RERR
High Luck Holding (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BEAR(ER)BRAT h 1REREE1 BT ERBR RERR
High Luck Group Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding
BESEARATA KBRS 100 REREE I FT s EBR RAR
Jumbo Hope Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
HiEEERRAR h 1REREE1 BT ERBR RERR
Novastar Capital Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$ 1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
RERAES 100 REREE 1 FTz EBR RERR
Power Jet Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100%  Dormant
RERAES 1REREE 1 R EBR AEEBRE
Techno Wealth Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
EERRAA KBRS 1REREE 1 R EBR RERR
United Oil & Resources Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100% = 100%  Dormant
HARRERESARAR h 100 R BIRAE 17872 BRAk AEEBRE
FTEGRESERAR PRC Registered capital of US$1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
H &R 1,000,000 REE
High Luck Group Limited Tartagal Argentina Not applicable 69.25% = 69.25%  Exploration of oil
Oriental and Morillo — UTE and gas
PRE TER ARGR
United Resources Trading Limited BVI/Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 51% - 51%  Trading of oil products
WA RESERAA ABRAEE/BA 100 REREE 1 FT2 Thk EERRBER
S Wholly foreign owned enterprise established under the PRC law & BIEPBEEEFMAIEBEE RS
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19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

DEEEFE

19

REEhRER

2017 2016
—¥—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
18,104 28,675

Details of the Group’s interest in joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements, are as follows:

Form of Place of incorporation
Name of joint venture business structure  and business
REDERR SBREYA AR R & i B
Smart Win International Limited ~ Incorporated BVI
HEERERAR Ealilav KBRAHE
Full Charming Limited Incorporated BVI
BaiifZav SRRAHE
Hong Kong Qil Development Ltd.  Incorporated Hong Kong
BERMERERAT Al BB
BRETBAEXERAA Incorporated PRC
("Shuguang”)*
BAETEAEEERAA A HE
(T8 )=
* Limited liability company established under the PRC law

The Group'’s joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities

quoted market prices are not available.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

BERASERE SR (RREERN
RAEMBHREAR) ZFHBNOT

Proportion of ownership

interest
ig=t 1 =441
Group's
Particulars of issued effective Held by
and paid up capital interest  asubsidiary  Principal activities
BRTR rEEZ —ZHE
HERAFE BiRRL: AR TEXHB
200 ordinary shares of 50% 50%  Investment holding
US$1 each
200 BRARE1XTZ RE#R
EEk
1 ordinary share of 29.9% 29.9%  Investment holding
HK$1 each
1REREE BT RERK
1 ordinary share of 29.9% 29.9%  Investment holding
HK$1 each
1REREE T REBR
el
Registered capital of 28.4% 28.4%  Provision of oil services

RMB6,000,000
AMEAARE
6,000,0007T

whose

SRALRH AR

* REHBEREEMAEREEAF

AEBZAEEEARETARER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Full Charming Limited and its subsidiaries (“Full Charming Group”)
is determined to be a material joint venture. Summarised financial
information of Full Charming Group, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

19 REELEZER®)

Full Charming Limited X L Fff/& 2 &) ([ Full
Charming& B ) 8 E—HEX& &1
% o N EFull Charming & 2 81 7%
ERME (BERSBRAOTAERETT
AR KRB E M BRERRAECEE
DT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT

Gross amounts of Full Charming Group’s Full Charming B> 8 £ 4
Current assets MENEE 15,563 20,693
Non-current assets FERBEE 47,131 51,726
Current liabilities i)=Y (2,207) (2,544)
Equity = 60,487 69,875
Included in the above assets and liabilities: st A L& E R A E :
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESZEEY 99 113
Revenue W25 = _
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEBEE (14,586) (14,352)
Other comprehensive income HEa2mEmas 5,198 (5,793)
Total comprehensive income ZHWR T BRE (9,388) (20,145)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in B2 EE B A Full Charming S E Y

Full Charming Group DR
Gross amounts of equity attributable to Full Charming &2 BB A &G

the owners of Full Charming Group R BeE 57,155 66,075
The Group’s effective interest AEEKER RS 29.9% 42.1%
The Group's share of equity attributable to  Full Charming £ B A& A

the owners of Full Charming Group FElEAREE R 17,101 27,818
Elimination of unrealised profits on i ERR SRS R T

upstream transactions (368) (518)
Carrying amount in the consolidated e R mAREE

financial statements 16,733 27,300

In January 2017, Total Belief entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which Total Belief agreed to dispose of, and the
Purchaser agreed to acquire, the 12.18% equity interest in Full
Charming Limited and the receivable (the “Shareholder’s Loan”)
due from Full Charming Limited to Total Belief (the “Partial
Disposal”) at a total consideration of approximately
HK$21,362,000. Completion of the Partial Disposal took place in
January 2017. The Shareholder’s Loan was assigned to the
Purchaser, and a gain on the Partial Disposal of approximately
HK$3,304,000 was recognised in the profit or loss.

RZZ—+F—F BEE-—EBUSE
=HTEADIYEE RS Bt - 5
FERELHEMmE F R E WK EFI
Charming Limited 2 12.18% B% # K Full
Charming Limited & B (= B 5/ IE ([ IR R
ERXRD(HOHESE]  BRED
21,362,000/ 8T - BOHLEFER_-F
—tF-ARK - -BRREREAREHEZE
77 MEbo HEE B EL) 3,304,000 %
TR B R N FERR o

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually

19 REELEZER®)

FERIEANE ZDEEMLER

material:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually 434 B #SIR&X T ERIZEE A
immaterial joint venture in the AEPERMBESE
consolidated financial statements 1,375
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share ~ AEBEEEZAEDERSH
of the joint venture's:
Loss from continuing operations REKEEB 2 EE 3)
Total comprehensive income FHEIN =B 3)
20 INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION 20 REEXRB o EE
Significant joint operation  Country of operation  Principal activity 2017 2016
BEREEER EEMEER TEER —E—+tF —ERF
Palmar Largo UTE Interest Argentina Exploration, development and 38.15% 38.15%
exploitation of hydrocarbons
Palmar Largo UTE #25 R AR AE maba Mg - RERFR
On 26 February 2014, the Group acquired 38.15% participating R-ZZE—WE-A=-+/,"B ' KEBER
interest in Palmar Largo Union of Temporary Enterprise (the “Palmar f# Palmar Largo Union of Temporary
Largo UTE Interest”). The Palmar Largo UTE Interest consists of (i) Enterprise #938.15% £ £ ## z= ([ Palmar
rights and obligations arising from the joint venture contract that Largo UTE#E z% |)  Palmar Largo UTE #
aims at the exploration, development and exploitation of HEEO)EECERNEEDR BR
hydrocarbons in the Palmar Largo concession area and (ii) interest in I [ # Palmar Largo 557 1 12 M ik & 16
the production equipment and facilities required to perform and EW RN RE AR )R EERRT
execute the exploitation work. The hydrocarbons exploitation rights FRRIEZEMTE 2 A ERE NE MR AL
on the Palmar Largo concession area have a term of 25 years from Tz o Palmar Largo 5 arigER 2 i&(L &
23 December 1992 to 23 December 2017, extendible for another MBEEEN AP -_TRE 58— hh=
10 years up to 23 December 2027 upon the unanimous decision of F+-_A=Z+=HE=ZZT—+tF+=A8
the Palmar Largo UTE parties and the approval of the relevant local —+=H8 ' ®Parlmar Largo UTEZ E5
government. — BURE R AB & b BT B 1% B] 2E AR
+EE_FE_+E+_-_A=-+=H-
On 23 December 2017, the exploitation rights have been expired NRZTE—+E+-B=+=H - #iFE#E
and the Group has initiated the application process with the BRI MAKBEERMBEZEEES
Secretary of Energy of Province of Formosa, Argentina (“Formosa BRI R(REEEERIR])RR A
SOE") for further extension of the current exploitation rights. At the AR DUk —PIEHIR B HRE - R
date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the REMBHRERAEER  BBENLET
application is still in progress. oo
NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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20 INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION (Continued)

21

In this connection, the Group has obtained legal advice from an
independent Argentinian legal counsel that based on
communication with Formosa SOE, the Group has a right to
maintain the exploitation in the Palmar Largo concession for a
period of one year and has good chances to obtain the extension of
the exploitation rights for a period of 10 years. The Company are of
the view that the aforesaid extension can be obtained within a
reasonable period from the relevant government authorities.

Pursuant to Palmar Largo UTE agreement, all the participants in the
joint operation approve the operating and capital budgets and
therefore the Group has joint control over the relevant activities of
Palmar Largo UTE. According to Palmar Largo UTE agreement, the
participants in Palmar Largo UTE have joint control over the rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to Palmar
Largo UTE. Accordingly, Palmar Largo UTE Interest is accounted for
as a joint operation in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 2(e).

At 31 December 2017, the Group recognised its share of assets and
liabilities held jointly in the Palmar Largo UTE, including property,
plant and equipment of HK$590,000, intangible assets of
HK$16,296,000 and goodwill of HK$234,000.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

Upon completion of Transaction | on 24 February 2015, convertible
notes were issued from Blue Sky to the Group with the principal
amount of HK$77,805,000 with the maturity date on 24 February
2018. All these convertible notes were converted into 205,290,521
ordinary shares of Blue Sky at the exercise price of HK$0.379 per
share.

Upon completion of Transaction Il on 4 July 2016, convertible notes
were issued from Blue Sky to the Group with the principal amount
of HK$132,535,000, and the maturity date on 4 July 2019. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, convertible notes in principal
amount of HK$44,500,000 was sold out and convertible notes in
principal amount of HK$88,035,000 was converted into
232,283,240 ordinary shares of Blue Sky at the exercise price of
HK$0.379 per share.

The above convertible notes were interest free.

20 REREK 2R B

21

FEmME  AEBEDME—BBIULMR
EEEBEREERRR  RTERER
EEAERIRNER AEEERE
Palmar Largo frafiER AR IR —F - B
RN REIE R 10 F A AT BEIEBR K © AR
ARG Lt EH AT 2 & IR IR ) A 4B
BRI BB PTERAS o

1B 4% Palmar Largo UTE 3% © & L %EB&
SHEFHELEREATRE Al AE
B 7 Palmar Largo UTE fHREE/E B A B KA
78 ) 4 o 4R 4% Palmar Largo UTE 13 7% -
Palmar Largo UTE£* £2 J5 5t Palmar Largo
UTEMRBIEERBE 2 EFTZH HRE
HRE - B RIBRHEE2(e) M ETBUR -
Palmar Largo UTE#Ezx A BRFIVEHFIALE -

N—EBE—+F+-_A=+—8 A&£H
HRE DGR Palmar Largo UTE 2L E#EH
WEEMBE BEDE - BEREE
590,000/ Jt - & 2 & & 16,296,000 7
JC K P28 234,000/ 7T °

FEW TR IR R &

RZE—RAF A FTMHHETEXE B
RP%&  EXAAEERTACEES
77,805,000 T AT AR = 4% - BIHAR
B_E—N\E_A_-+MWH-- a[x=E
BEERTFEESR0379E T2 &EHR
/205,290,521 iR & X EiRA% -

R-E—ARELANBZERE_BRS
B ERXAASBEETASESEA
132,535,0008 THY AT AR =% - 2 HA A
AT —NFEtANBE HE-ZT—X
F+_A=+—HIEFE BE2HEL
K 4 4 544,500,000 T 7 7] ik =
% - R4 4 %E88,035,0005% T 2 Al # %
EZERERITHEESR0379E THIRE
232,283,240 % B K E 5@ A% o

B MERIER TS

HESRERERA A
T LFFER
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21 CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Summarised movements in the carrying amount of the convertible
notes receivables during the year ended 31 December 2016 were
set out below:

21 EWTRKRERE )

BE-T-—AE+-A=+—AILEE
TGETES T Rd DS
W

Embedded

Loan financial
receivable derivative Total

BAR
EBWER <SRTETIAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2016 R=ZE—X"F—H—H - = =
Additions NE 79,383 137,969 217,352
Disposals k= (27,460) (46,325) (73,785)
Interest credited during the year FREFTAFIE 3,445 - 3,445
Fair value adjustments NREEARE - 3,267 3,267
Converted during the year FR SR (55,368) (94,911) (150,279)

At 31 December 2016 N-ZE—RE

+=—A=+—8 - - -

Note: No convertible notes receivables were held by the Group as at 31 December
2017.

22 PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

Promissory note receivable e H, AR

M . ARER-_F—tF+-A=1—AfEH
BRI RRRE -

22 EWERERE

2017 2016
—g—t5 LB
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl Tt

42,687 35,786

The promissory note was issued by Foothills and guaranteed by
Foothills Exploration as part of the considerations of the US Business
Disposal and is bearing no interest and repayable on 30 June 2018
(see note 5(b)(iii)), The promissory note carries effective interest rate
of 19.18% per annum (see note 36(c)(i)).

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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# W 22 4% A Foothills 2 T 3¢ F8 Foothills
Exploration 4R - REREH HEE1E
ZEARE  TEBELEAR-ZT—N\F
NA =1+ BEERE(RMEESb)X)) o AR
EEREFERFE19.18% 5 2 (R M
FE36()()) °
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
— NordAq Energy Inc. (“NordAg”)

— Foothills Exploration (note (b))

(note (a))

JEETRIERE - AR
— NordAqg Energy Inc.
(INordAq ) (FiE (a))

— Foothills Exploration (Fff &£ (b))

23 AIHHERE

EfE

Total

5T

Notes:

The equity interest in NordAq is carried at fair value. At 31 December 2017, the
fair value was determined by the directors with reference to a valuation report
issued by an independent appraisal firm, Roma Appraisal Limited using the
market approach with reference to the private placing of shares and warrants
by NordAq during the year and the average share price fluctuations of
comparable companies between the dates of private placing of shares and
warrants and the reporting period end date. At 31 December 2016, the fair
value was determined by the directors with reference to a valuation report
issued by an independent appraisal firm, Roma Appraisal Limited using the
market approach with reference to the private placing of shares by NordAqg
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 2(m)(iv), impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available-for-sale investments in NordAq of HK$1,698,000 were
recognised in profit or loss (see note 7(c)). The increase of fair value in respect
of available-for-sale investments in NordAq of HK$8,393,000 in the remainder
of the annual period of 2016 was recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised a loss on the
change in fair value in respect of available-for-sale investments in NordAqg of
approximately HK$2,383,000 in other comprehensive income.

On 30 December 2016, the Group received the Common Stock as part of the
considerations of the US Business Disposal (see note 5(b)). The equity interest in
Foothills Exploration is carried at fair value. At 31 December 2017, the fair value
was determined with reference to the market price of shares of Foothills
Exploration. At 31 December 2016, the fair value was determined with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent appraisal firm, Roma
Appraisal Limited. Using the market price of shares of Foothills Exploration with
a marketability discount to account for the lock up period of 12 months from
the date of issuance.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was a decline in the fair value
of the equity interest in Foothills Exploration and such decline indicated that the
available-for-sale investments have been impaired. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of HK$19,429,000 has been recognised in the profit or loss (see note 7(c)).

GEX

(a)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FA&T
31,244 33,627
5,373 24,802
36,617 58,429

NordAq 2[R R AR BEDK - =T —+
FH-—A=t—0 ZARBEHEEZR
B ARESERTEERARNEHZ
HE®RS  ERMHE2RAFEANordAq
TLER & B KRB RAEE AR AT B A AR
LB E B MR ERE B S E AR E R
ZFPHRERBMETE - R=F—RF+=
A=1+—H AREEHEFS2ZBHITHE
RAESERTEERRARAZELAFER
NordAq Fi A B & B (5 5R A T 504 H A RO il B
WEMEE °

BE-Z—RF+-_A=+—BHLFE 1B
MR 2(m)v) 2 &SR - FEIRZ A
AR NordAq el #1854 2 R B /E518 1,698,000
BITERBHERER(RMETCQ) R=F
—NEEHTHIR - ARM NordAq AT #EH &
W& 2 A EEEAN18,393,00058 7T B R H
fth 2 EURESTER o

HE-"Z—+F+-_A=+—HLFE XK
SERNE A2 E R AR HERNordAq 2 AT
EREQNEBEEHEEL 2,383,000 T °

RZZE—AE+ZA=1+8  AEEKRERE
BRIEAEHEEBHEREZ BHRE (LK
5 5(b)) ° Foothills Exploration 2 % # A 2% 7t
BEFAE - R=2T—tF+=-A=+—8"
% A 7t (BB T3 2 % Foothills Exploration % {3
MEMEE - R=T—A~"E+=-A=+—
B ZAABESBE T HARESBRE
AEAERARBELZEEREEE - FH
Foothills Exploration i3 2 T {8 ¥ 5 #17H
He 12 @A LS RB ER MG mmIEiT

RBEE_T—+tF+-_A=+—HLFE "
Foothills Exploration &) iR # A /it BB 2> 48
BREXRTAHEEREERE - Bt - &
{EE51819,429,000/8 T E N B R R (R
MiEE7(0) °

H R AR ERA T
—TtEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

24 INVENTORIES

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise:
Oil products BHEm
Consumables 5% m

24

2017

e
HK$'000
FiER

1,127
16,017

VAL

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

BEHEFEZEEE
(FI=E7(e))

Carrying amount of inventories sold
(note 7(e))

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T

1,635
15,880

17,515

(b) EERRAXLFABRRZEE

SRZANT

2017
—F—tF
HK$'000
TR

280,651

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUE 2 B K (BT RE (D))

Trade receivables (note (b))

25 EWESRAR

IR

2017

e
HK$'000
FE

7,461
45,176
330
48,396
8,484
5,098

114,945

Other receivables e Y 5RIE

Amount due from a joint venture e —M & & ERIR

VAT recoverable AT B (E R

Other tax recoverable Hoth AT Y Bl FEIE

Other prepayment and deposits HEfh A RIBE RIS

Reconciliation to the consolidated REEMBRR R
statement of financial position: ZHER

Non-current ERED

Current (note (a)) B (M5 (a))

40,286
74,659

114,945
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2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
T

48,689

H ftb f& I

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T

15,838
52,565
7,524
51,622
9,637
5,865

143,051

18,684
124,367

143,051



Notes:

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

. +
25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 BWESERRREAENR
=h =
FRIE ()
Bt st
All of the current trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or (a) P BN EAFE U B 5 BR 7k Kz £ th 8 Uk 7108 78 B
recognised as expense within one year. R—F AR K ER AR -
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, presented based on the (b) BWESRAIZEZAH(EZEKRIER
invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates: HEIEE) 25 2 BREEDHTAT
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 7,461 7,690
31 -60 days 31&260H 7,797
61 —90 days 61£90H 1
Over 90 days 90 H M E 350
15,838
Trade receivables are due within 30 days (2016: 30 days) from the date of EWESEFEREREBHR308 (=2
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 36(a). —"F30H)NEH - AARKEFEER
R — LR BER R 36(a) ©
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired S 45 580 B SR (E 7,461 7,690
Past due but not impaired (31 days — 90 days) BEREERREGIBEE0RH) 7,798
Past due but not impaired (over 90 days) BEEEERRE (90 BIA L) 350
15,838

None of the trade receivables is individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired. Receivable that was neither past due nor impaired related to
customer for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold and collateral over these balances.

I 4% B W 5 BR B Bl sk R RAR EIR (B - 3
2280 H SR 2 B LK RO T £ % 3T A 3
RIS EFHR

W iia R E R SGR AR AR EHE R R
FERRENEFEH FREFEERYE
BEAEE  BZRARDER/A 2EKD -
HERBREERAZSERERERE -
AEBEWEBASBREEET®

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

26 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 26 Hite@EE
2017 2016
Sl -—= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Listed equity securities at fair value (note (a)) AR R EEFER 2 _EHIAE S
(Kft5E (a)) 198,972 242,281
Unlisted investment funds at fair value AAREBEEZIELMIEEES
(note (b)) (FF&E (b)) 100,778 =
Unlisted equity linked securities (note ()  FE_ETARAEMAE S (M+E (c)) 29,860 =
329,610 242,281
Notes: Bt &E -
(@)  The listed equity securities at fair value represented Blue Sky’s listed shares from (a) AARBESIERZ EMRAFSFRERET
conversion of convertible notes issued by Blue Sky (see note 21). R R EREREREMNER EMRG (R
21) °
(b)  The unlisted investment funds at fair value invested in wide ranges of equity or (b) RAABEHFEZILTREESREET
debt investment products. R ERIREEM °
© During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired unlisted equity- (© HE-ZT—+tFT-A=1T—HILFE &
linked securities which contain embedded derivative, the return of which are SEKEESHRARITELR 2 3E EHRA
determined with reference to the closing prices of certain equity securities listed BES - HERHSEE TR LM
on the Stock Exchange. The unlisted equity-linked securities are designated as ZRAFEH BT EERE - FF EHIRAEH
at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition. BERVSEREIEEREBIERIRANE
B35k -
27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27 BEeERBATEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () BeRkELEZEYEIE:
2017 2016
Sl -—= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHExT FHT
Cash and cash equivalents in the A BT
consolidated statement of financial Rz REHREKT
position and consolidated cash flow 2SS RIHSEEY
statement 843,948 398,633
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(9]

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement

as cash flows from financing activities.

27 BERBEEEY @)

(b)

MEETHELRBEZHK

TREFJINEEREETDELZA
EEE(BRERES MR ET)F
B RETHEENABEARER
EXRKRERESEERAEE
RARSRER FRAREEHH
EREMNARE -

Other borrowings

Hitifg &
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2017 HN=-=—+t%—H—H 331,759
Change from financing cash flows: RMERSRBE :
Repayment of other borrowings BREAMEE (111,843)
Other changes: HAth & 5 :
Decrease in interest payable JE A5 A1 2R (6,555)
Others EHAth 419
Total other changes HmEgh@st (6,136)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—t+t&E+=HA=+—H 213,780

Significant non-cash transactions:

(i) In 2016, the Group disposed of 49% equity interest in
Shine Great Group by receiving convertible notes in
principle amount of HK$132,535,000 (see note 5(a)).

(ii)

In 2016, the convertible notes from Blue Sky in the

principal amount of HK$88,035,000 were converted
into 232,283,240 ordinary shares of Blue Sky at a
conversion price of HK$0.379 per share (see note 21).

(iii)

On 30 December 2016, the Group disposed of the US

Business Group by receiving Common Stock of
HK$24,802,000 and a Promissory Note of
HK$35,769,000 as part of considerations (see notes

23(b) and 22).

(c)

BAIBEERS :

i)y RZZTE—AF AEEES
U BN AN 4 4 %8 4 132,535,000
BT ATREEE - HER
% 7= 6= B 1) 49% R% #E ( 5 Bt
s£5()) °

RZB—RF  A&2BEH
88,035,000 8 JT 2 B X A] #4
IREFEARIRE T 037978
T 5 232,283,240 iR EE
LimAx (RHEE21) o

(ii)

RZE—ARF+=ZA=F
H @ ANEESBKREERRK
24,802,000 7T & # X E IR
35,769,000 JT1E & H & =
BEBER 2 BHRE(RKH
F£23(b) }22) o

(iii)

#785 (L AL R IR A A
ST EER
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BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 ENEZRRRAEMER
=h IE
TA
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Trade payables (note (b)) JERHE 5 BRFk (BEE (b)) 28,077 29,183
Accrued expenses FEEtR Y 9,461 11,982
Deposit received (note (c)) B iR (K (c)) 48,880 -
Others Hih 1,724 3,113
Financial liabilities measured amortised cost LA IS AT 22 £ R B & 88,142 44,278
Notes: B sE
(@) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year (a) FrE R E 2R R E R IETE SR
or are repayable on demand. —FRGEENBIREKERE -
(b) The following is an ageing analysis of the trade payables presented based on (b) TR ABEMNESERNRREBRIEEHZAH
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: 25| 7 BREe DT -
2017 2016
—E—t% S PN =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 15,050 17,398
31 -60 days 31£60H 10,342 2,322
61 - 90 days 61290H 1,393 3,683
Over 90 days 90 B E 1,292 5,780
28,077 29,183
(© During the year ended 31 December 2017, a total deposit of HK$48,880,000 © HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE #
has been received from two independent third parties which appointed a M 2 MBI 5 = 77 Y B4 $£ 48,880,000 7 7T Y
subsidiary of the Company as trustee to pursue an acquisition, which was under Re  ZEFE=FEEARFR—HWBAA
negotiation as at 31 December 2017. REFZTAANSRK—HKE R_T—+F

TZA=+—R  ZWBERNT
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29 OTHER BORROWINGS

Term loans due for repayment within

Term loans due for repayment after 1 year:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

29 Hibfg &

—FRIMEEZEFHEN

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEA
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBERFA
After 5 years h &
Reconciliation to the consolidated REEHBRRARER
statement of financial position: 2R
Current liabilities mENBE
Non-current liabilities EmEaE

Notes:

(©

The loan from a related party, China Venturetechno International Co., Ltd. (see
note 37(b)), was bearing interest at 6% per annum and was repaid on 13 July
2016.

Certain of the Group’s other borrowings are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the Group's assets/liabilities ratio and consolidated
adjusted tangible net assets, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the other
borrowings would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 36(b). As at 31 December
2017, none of the covenants relating to other borrowings had been breached.

On 30 June 2017, the Group repaid a loan with interest bearing at 4% p.a. to
a third party.

On 4 August 2017, the Group repaid loan and interest expense to a third party
of HK$78,000,000 and 7,937,000 respectively. The loan was originally
repayable on 30 April 2018.

PR

(a)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FA&T
2,380 37,605
54,400 82,754
157,000 208,400
- 3,000
211,400 294,154
213,780 331,759
2,380 37,605
211,400 294,154
213,780 331,759

—H B 7 h BRI A X BB A R A R R
TZER(RHFE370) REFNE6EER
ER=F—ARFLtAT=AFEE-

AEBEZETEMERARERNAEERE
E/ABLEURGAERAEESVEESRE
BRANRERR  BRRET LR EDS R
BIEL 2 fEERHE - AKERRZ S &
EERREREE - AEEEHEELE
THEZENERL c ARAKEERRBE
SRBRAE— FF BN 360b) - R=F
—tF+-A=+—H BEEREWEH
HAEE 2 225 »

R-Z—tFRA=+R ARERA—ZE
ZHEE-SRFFNEAEABHER -

R-Z—+t&N\ANA  "EBRAFE=HE
BEERKF B X5 578,000,000 T &
7,937,000 T - ZERRER =T —/\FH
A=+AEE-

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% SA #BA5N FiE & 5B TTIIR)

30 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

31

Amount due to a joint venture (note)

30 HibERBERE

FEft—R & &R (FEE)

2017 2016
—2—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
21,361

Note: The amount due to a joint venture represented a payable for purchase of a
drilling equipment of HK$21,361,000 from Shuguang with a payment term of
2 years. The amount was settled with the use of consideration received from
the Partial Disposal (see note 19).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 17 May 2011
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any eligible person,
including employees, directors, consultants, supplier and customer
of the Group, to take up options for a nominal consideration to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
on the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
The exercise price (subscription price) shall be such price as
determined by the board of directors in its absolute discretion at
the time of the making of the offer but in any case the exercise
price shall not be lower than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant of such share options, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of such share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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Misk : ENAEEMERBENIERELESEIRERE
21,361,000 T FERT 3R B - KB A M
F o ZERBEEAA DS HESHKRA
RELE (RHFE19) -

URAGEE 2RSS

ARRR-F——FRAAT+EARK—
TR AR 8 ([RERRERT &1 1) - Rtk
ARREFERENBAFTANAER
AL BRAGEZEE EF E
B HEBLEF  NEEREENE
BAEARRBA R B

REBF N TRO 2B BREETE
BRABTZRNBHTFTBEAARERN
RWBEREEZERERTRNAZ
10% -

RIZBEAERT 8 - PMEM2E A BT
FERTEAEBALZERE(RECTT
R HARITERBEE) & TET2RNE
BT EHEAC BTRMDBE1% - 17
BERBEB BRAEFENFERLEKR
BRISETE 2B ERTEERT

TEENSERUATERSE  \RZE
BREXLBEH (VARSI H)ARQF
B B X P B RERMIIKTIE :
(NBEZEERERL BMAAERS
AARRBIRMDER e R RERA
ZFHWHE - R (i) AR R EE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 31 URALZLEZROIZIARS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&

(a) At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no share option under the (a) RZZE—+HER-_ZT—F+-H
Share Option Scheme was outstanding and exercisable. There =+—HB  BEERESEETE
was no share option granted under the Share Option Scheme A% HE M ARITIERA] FITE - B2 =
during the year ended 31 December 2017. T—+HE+_A=+—HILEFE

AR IR B AR 51 &% I AR AT B AR
-
The terms and conditions of the grants that existed as at 1 RZE—ARNF—A—HEFEEZEBRK
January 2016 were as follows: R R R
Number of shares
issuable under  Exercise price Vesting Contractual life
options HK$ conditions of options
REBRE
CRic 54 BB Bl
BEG] BT BREN BHEH
Options granted to consultants BB ERE
—on 8 June 2015 —RZE-R%,~ANR 3,510,000 0375 Immediate from 2 years
date of grant
BRI AHAEEE 2E
Options granted to employees: BTES 2 MiRE -
— on 24 January 2013 (note) —WZE-=%-A-1MmH 445,600 0.889  Immediate from 3 years
(FtsE) date of grant
BEL PR SE 3F
Total share options granted BRLBRELY 3,955,600
Note: With reference to the provision of the Share Option Scheme, Rule Mzt - R2ZBRE G - ETHARRIE
17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued 17.03(13) G KB R FTR =TT hF N
by the Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005 regarding the ARBH ETRAZE17.03(13) 22
interpretation of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules, the exercise price RN ZHAIES - MARITEBRE
of the outstanding share options and the number of the shares that can ZATHEE R M ARIT BRI TR
be subscribed for upon the exercise of the outstanding share options AHREZRNEE EERTHA
have been adjusted as a result of the completion of the open offer. HEE FLAFAEE -

SR AR A A
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BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 31 URAEZEEZROEINARS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)
(b) The number and the weighted average exercise prices of (b) BENSHE Z 8B MINEFEITEEW
share options are as follows: T
2016
—E—RF
Number of

Weighted  shares issuable
average under options
exercise price granted
RBEERT

INHEFS EERRER] T 31T
17(EE Z R # B

HK$
BIT
Outstanding at the beginning of REFHEARITE
the year 0.433 3,955,600
Exercised during the year RERNTTHE 0.375 (3,296,000)
Lapsed during the year (note) TAE R (B 5E) 0.722 (659,600)
Outstanding at the end of the year REREKRITEE = -
Exercisable at the end of the year RERA FIT{E - -
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2016, 659,600 shares options were e : BE2=F—A"F+-A=1+—HLHF
lapsed due to the resignation of consultants and employees or & + 659,600 17 & % # 2 A B i K (B
expiration of the vesting period. B B 5055 8 B E R T KR ©
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the number of shares in RIE—+FR_E—RF+A
respect of options under the Share Option Scheme that had =+—H  BEERESIERY
been granted and remained outstanding was nil, representing RADRITEBEIRE S & 2 IR(DEH
0% of the shares of the Company in issue. RER  HERARAA B EITRG
Z0% °
Each option gives the grantee the right to subscribe for one B BIRER T AR AR RE AR
ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross on shares. Nal—REBR - WA BB
% o
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PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9]

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated in the models.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions
Fair value of share options at measurement

Share price A&

I8

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modeling
under Black-Scholes option pricing model)

Option life (expressed as weighted average

31 URAEEZROXARS

(%)

() BR

BREZDABERRER

AEZEREAR(EER

HARE A B (AR AR 2\ (8 1 2 pn g

life used in the modeling) T FHIRT)
Expected dividends TEHAAR B

Risk-free interest rate (based on exchange
fund notes)

B2 ARBEREBR
RTESERES

AR T R IR B 2 IRT5 2
NRABEZDEOBRED
RABEAE - DRHBR
BZEARAREBERAIR
HRATHEEERAE-
BERENSOFRIRER
ZBEAZBABIE - ZFR
ACBRERFITE A -

24 January
2013
—E-=F
—A=+mH

HK$0.40
0.407%7T

HK$0.99
0.99787C

HK$0.99
0.997&7T

TEHR R (CARRIBAR ) 7o &F #R A 234
EEEAERZ IR IERR)

92.87%
1.499 years
1.499 F

EERN X (ERINEEERE)

0.14%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

TEHLR 18 IR LR iR (1R
Pt ok ™ 2z N 19 F B At
B)REESH  YKHAR
FE R M EBRRRE ZE
M TREE B T IARE - TAH
BRETDEBECREHEE
B - TBREHABERR

SHPAHAARBEMTE
RERFE -

#785 (L AL R IR A A
ST EER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% SA #BA5N FiE & 5B TTIIR)

31

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(Continued)

— Granted to consultants
The fair value for share options granted is measured using
the market-based approach, by reference to the
discounted cash flow projections, to estimate the fair value
of the professional fees that should have been paid. The
value was developed by discounting future cash flows
from the services to be provided by the consultants, taking
into account the unigueness of the services provided by
the consultants, historical monthly payments to similar
services provided by the consultants and the service period,
along with other out-of-pocket expenses.

32 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

33

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2016: HK$30,000). Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the
respective municipal governments in various places (including Argentina)
where the Group operates. The Group makes monthly contributions
calculated as a percentage of the monthly basic salary and the relevant
municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retirees of the Group.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

A= BN EATR IR

Current tax recoverable
— Argentina Corporate Income Tax

— PIRE B RS

31

URAEE 2RO TR
()
(© BWREZAAEERBRG)
— ETEM
B R A% AT
ERATBERAHE L
SEBIRIR S M E TR A
HESN 2 BEBA Y AR
B8 - B2 = R
IR ULIRIS 2 B - BRI PR
RUELRBE 2 EL S AN
R RIS BB UL R KA E
B - e BE LR 46 o AP
BT R ARBSRE
B -

32 BERKEF

33

AEERBERBEBIRAAEELRERE
BHIENE SR EME AR SRS E R TE
SETEI([REBEEFTE]) - RESFEA
BBV EEAEE 2 FHEMITERK
g IRIERESFE BEEREEED
AL EREES 2 WA5% R EIE L #
P B A A LR A30000%8m(=
T—7X4F 1 30,000/87T) © sHEIH KBNS
SR o

AEE TS EREEEEMENS B
B (BREMRE) /& @i 5 BRI E R
RERE - AREFAFELHEK &
MRS AEAHENXEa LLAE
mARRE T BT R AR EERBERE
RARFGRIRE B HRKBRI R ©

mE BRI RA ZFEHR

(a) g%ﬂﬁﬁ}iﬁ?ﬂ%wz&ﬂ HABIE

2017 2016
—2—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT THAT
133 394
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BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

33 ZMEMBRRARAZAEH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (&)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities): (b) EEHBEEE (BE) :
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities RERE AR R FER 2 IR I8
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position BEMBEEKIDEREAFEZ
and the movements during the year are as follows: BEYEH WO -
Fair value
adjustment
on business
Tax losses combination Total
EBest
HIESE AREERAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 3,626 (8,665) (5,039)
Credited to profit or loss RiEEmRETA 6,032 = 6,032
US Business Disposal EREBLESE - 8,665 8,665
Exchange adjustments D 5, 5 B (3,418) = (3,418)
At 31 December 2016 MR_T—RF
+t-A=+—H 6,240 - 6,240
At 1 January 2017 AZE—+F—HA—H
Credited to profit or loss RIBERFTA
Exchange adjustments M H
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F
tT-A=1—

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(t),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$69,516,000 (2016:
HK$19,745,000) and impairment of non-current assets of
HK$53,291,000 (2016: HK$53,291,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax

legislation.

WERBRELEREEE

RBEM 20 T 2 5T R - K
SETYTERRFHEERE
69,516,000/ ;o ( = T — X F -
19,745,000 7T ) M IETREN & E R
853,291,000 (=T — /< F :
53,291,000 7T ) iR IEEFL IBE
E TR ER AR AR
REBEN - TAKAIREH K R E R
i ) AR SE P R B A 2 R IE A 1R o

RIBERITHRBRO - HEBRILR
A
MR ERARAR

—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% SA #BA5N FiE & 5B TTIIR)

34 PROVISIONS 34 B

The carrying amount of the Group’s provision mainly represents the AEBEREZFRAEEZEEEERES
provision for asset retirement obligations. {ERBE o

FREBESHI AT

Movements of provisions during the year are set out as follows:

2017
—E—+tHF
HK$'000
FET

—H—H 16,766
FARE 493
bEE 5 B (2,848)

At 1 January
Provision during the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December +=—A=+—H 14,411

192

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations and the
agreements with the surface owners, the Group is obliged to accrue
the costs related to the future costs of plugging and abandoning its
oil and gas properties, the removal of equipment and facilities from
lease acreage and returning such land to its original condition, and
indemnification of surface owners for the damages caused by the
exploration activities. These costs reflect the estimated legal and
contractual obligations associated with the normal operation of oil
and gas properties and were capitalised by increasing the carrying
amounts of the related assets. The provisions have been determined
by the directors based on their best estimates of the level of
expenditure and extent of work required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

35 X - RERRE

Movements in components of equity (a) HEELDEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBGEERZ WO N EYT K& H
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set REBZEHBRINGEAERED
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. o AARMEAREREB DR EY R
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FREZEIEEBWOT -
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
The Company AAT
Share-based
Share Share  compensation Capital ~ Contributed Warrants ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses equity
BE  ROEE ROBERE  EARE  B4RR IWEIEE 0 RiEE EREE
HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
Thn A FhT Fhm THL THT FhT i
Balance at 1 January 2016 RoF—E—A-REH 1970 3649214 813 9,591 740,830 1801 (2338773 2,088526
Changes in equity for 2016 ZE2-REZEEED
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - - (140,698) (140,698)
Shares issued under subscription REDERTLRG
(note 35(c)v) (HtEE35(c)() 34,100 523,133 - - - - - 557,233
Shares issued under share option REBRETEBTZRG
scheme (note 35(c)(ii) (GREE0) 3 1843 (640) = = = = 1236
Lapse of share options granted BEERETERE
under share option scheme L BERERR - - (203) - - - - (203)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
t-A=+-R&k 59103 4174190 - 9,591 740,830 1801 (479471) 2,506,094

Balance at 1 January 2017

RZF-tF—A-BE&H

Changes in equity for 2017 Z2-tEZEEEE
Profitfor the year FRER|
Shares issued under open REARRERT RN
offer (note 35(c)i) (3£ 35(0)i)
Lapse of warrants (note 35(d)vii) BRI (5 35(cvi))
Balance at 31 December 2017 RoB—+F
TZA=t-R&#H

Share
capital
RA&
HK$'000
TER

59,103

29,552

Share
premium
RGEE
HK$'000

THT

4,174,190

706,845

4,881,035

Share-based
compensation
reserve
RORRER
HK$'000
TER

Capital
reserve
BRGfE
HK$'000
Tihn

9,591

9,591

Contributed Accumulated
surplus
B4ER
HK$'000
TR

Warrants
losses
ZitER
HK$'000
TER

reserve
ARERGEE
HK$'000
Tin

740,880 1801 (2.479471)

229410 29410

- 736,397
(1,801) -

740,880 -

(2,248,260)

3,471,901

KRR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR MY AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends
There is no dividend declared attributable to the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

(0

(b)

There is no dividend payable to owners of the Company
attributable to previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Share capital
Authorised and issued share capital

0]

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

EE
ERAEBEBTZ LER

Ordinary shares, issued and

LER CRORMR:

fully paid:
At 1 January R—RA—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SREE0.01/8 T2 EER
Shares issued under open offer  RIEARBEEETREG
(note 35(c)i) (B3E 35(c)(il))
Shares issued under share option  1RIFERE 227N
scheme (note 35(c)ii) (Bt 35(c)ii))
Shares issued under subscription 1B REE B TR
(note 35(c)(iv) (B2 35(c)(v)
At 31 December W+=-RA=1+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ BREE0.01 AT L RAR

(0

2017
t- et of 3
No. of shares

R##A
'000

TR’

200,000,000

5,910,322

2,955,161

8,865,483

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company's residual assets.
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RN ENARBEREAZRE(Z

T—NE ) o

B2
() ZEERESBRITRE

2016
“E—RE

No. of shares

BROEE
HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TER T THAL
2,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000
59,103 2,497,026 24,970
29,552 - -
3,296 33
3,410,000 34,100
5,910,322 59,103
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Shares issued under open offer

In April 2017, the Company completed an open offer of
2,955,160,996 ordinary shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.25 per share for net
proceeds of approximately HK$736,397,000, of which
approximately HK$29,552,000 and approximately
HK$706,845,000 were credited to the share capital and
the share premium account respectively.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During 2017, no options under the Share Option
Scheme were exercised. At 31 December 2017 and
2016, there were no options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme (31 December 2016: Options
under the Share Option Scheme were exercised to
subscribe for 3,296,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at a consideration of HK$1,236,000, of which
HK$33,000 was credited to the share capital and the
balance of HK$1,203,000 was credited to the share
premium account. An amount of HK$640,000 was
transferred from share-based compensation reserve to
the share premium account in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy set out in note 2(s)).

Shares issued under subscription

On 20 July 2016, the Company completed a
subscription and issued 2,910,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company to a subscriber, at a consideration of
HK$447,233,000 of which HK$29,100,000 was
credited to the share capital and the balance of
HK$418,133,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

On 4 November 2016, the Company completed a
subscription and issued 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company to a subscriber, at a consideration of
HK$110,000,000 of which HK$5,000,000 was credited
to the share capital and the balance of
HK$105,000,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

35 X - HEERKRE #)

() BRA&(#)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BREARBERTRS
R-ZZE—+FMMA KARaA
BRER02SB T2 RE BT
X A F 3 & 2,955,160,996 fi%
KAREBI - FIEREF
¥ #4)736,397,00078 7T © He
4729,552,000% Tt K %
706,845,000 78 7t 7 BT AR
KR IRERR °

REBRETERTRG
RZZT—tF - BREE
THERERETE - R=
TZ—+ER T —RF+=
A=+—8 BEERE
BIETERERMRITHE(ZE
—RNE+-_A=+—H: B
e w5t 8118 T RS IR AETT (2 A
208 3,296,000 f% AN A A 8
% - K18 1,236,000/8 7T * H
# 33,0008 TTET ABRAS - &
#: 1,203,000 & 75T AR 1D 5%
fEBR ° 640,000 7 T E AR K
26 FTE A S E TR R
IRin i E R HEERE RGOS
BR) o

REBZBRITRAG

R-E—XR"ELtA=-+H"
RARTEHR—BREIL W —
% R A %£172,910,000,000
BARR LB REA
447,233,000 T H &
29,100,000 T E & A &
7K - $4%8418,133,000/8 T2
ARG R ER o

R=F—X"F+—A@A -
AARTER—IBREILE—
£ R8% A %17 500,000,000 A%
ApraEdak REAR
110,000,000 J©°@ H &
5,000,000%8 7T 2 5T ARRA -
#4:%8 105,000,000 7T 2 51 A
A& = B R o

R eelR B R A A
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Share-based compensation reserve

This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised
share options granted to eligible participants of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(s).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the
difference between the amount by which non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid upon acquisition of additional
interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and (ii) the difference
between the nominal value of ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the aggregate of the share capital
and share premiums of subsidiaries acquired through a
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange in October
1998.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(w).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the change in fair value
of the available-for-sale investments of the Group. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(g).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
represented the credit arising from capital reduction in
prior years.

Under Section 54 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is available for distribution as
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Company’s bye-laws and provided that immediately
following the distribution, the Company is able to pay
its liabilities as and when they fall due or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.

Warrants reserve

On 16 July 2012, pursuant to the conditional warrant
subscription agreement dated 29 May 2012 entered
into between the Company and Max Sun Enterprises
Limited (“Max Sun”), a total of 100,000,000 unlisted
warrants was issued by the Company to Max Sun at an
issue price of HK$0.02 conferring the rights to subscribe
for an aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$1.05 per share.
The issuance costs of the unlisted warrants were
approximately HK$199,000. Upon the completion of
open offer in January 2015, the exercise price of the
unlisted warrants was adjusted from HK$1.05 to
HK$0.86 per share. As at result, the rights attached to
the unlisted warrants to subscribe ordinary shares of the
Company were adjusted from 100,000,000 ordinary
shares to 122,093,023 ordinary shares. On 15 July
2017, all unlisted warrants in issue were lapsed and
accordingly warrants reserve of HK$1,801,000 has been
released to accumulated losses.

35 EXR - HERKRE ®)
(d) BEZMHERENGE)

(vi)

(vii)

BERER
AEBERARRZEBAG
EBREFRERARRAEE L
HERREE

REARE-NN—FRA
RESAR - ARBIZERA
FRAERABER D IRRE -
AXHRBARE TR
R BEREBEDIKE AR
ANARIXNEIHE
B RARBEEZAER
BETEENEGE 28
1T BRI B A0 O (B RR AR F01B
SR ADRAS e

RRER R
RZZE——FtA+/,8"
BRIBEALNGHEENEERR
RR([EFERTHNBEHA
—E——_H#FA-tTAHHZ
EHRERIREZRE R E
AKRARIZ0.02B TTHEEITE
[ & #7217 251 100,000,000
MIELEMRRER BT E
LA 1.058 TR 1T EER
B2 |] 5T 100,000,000 A&
LTBERAER o FE LR
T 78 B 1T B AN 49 4 199,000
BT - HE-_ZE—RAE—AK
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fRiEFENITEEBRSR.05
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

()

At 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company’s
contributed surplus in the amount of HK$740,880,000 (2016:
HK$740,880,000) is currently not available for distribution.
The Company’s share premium account in the amount of
HK$4,881,035,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$4,174,190,000) may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing its capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is the balance as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2016, was to maintain the ratio at a reasonable level. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

35 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 35 B - fERRKRE (2

(f) Capital management (Continued) ) BELEHEH (&)
The adjusted gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 RZE—+tFR_F—X"F+=A
was as follows: =+t HEARZEEAGBLERN
T
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Other borrowings (see note 29) HEmEE (RHE29) 213,780 331,759
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEY
(see note 27(a)) (RMsE27(@a)) (843,948) (398,633)
Net asset BEFRE (630,168) (66,874)
Total equity R AE 3,467,316 2,651,265
Adjusted gearing ratio KRR EREBELXR -18% -3%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to RATIREFAMNEA RS EREE
externally imposed capital requirements. TFHONTHERNEREK o

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 IEREEREMIARD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and price risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

(i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.

REE
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ERk - RBESAR  MEERAR- &8
B R EBRRER - $‘§I7TEEBAH§TE&§
N ELR & 7 B (B B2 & T 1o e A 1 L B

AEERMEBRZZERBREAEERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)~ The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk.
At the end of the reporting period, save for the
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.

The Group's credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group monitors closely the credit ratings
of these counterparties and will take appropriate action
when their ratings change.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customer’s
financial position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
taking into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Debts are usually due within 30 days (2016: 30 days)
from the date of billing.

(iv)  The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from promissory note receivable
and trade and other receivables are set out in notes 22 and
25.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with the relevant lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2017
ZB-tE
Within More than More than
1year 1yearbut 2yearsbut More
oron lessthan less than than Carrying
demand PAEH 5 years 5 years amount
R-F BB-F BERF
mER  BOR ASR
ZRK mE nE  BETF a8  KEfE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEx
Trade and other payables B ESEHR
EftEME 88,142 - - 88142 88,142
Other borrowings Hipfa s 18,202 68374 171,604 258,180 213,780
Other non-current liabilites ~ EfbIEREIAE = = - - -

106,344

68,374 171,604 346322 301,922

VAN
U

36 A
EE

=]

~

(b)

Within

1 year
oron
demand
i3
RETN
HK$'000
TAL

More than
1 year but

Ba—F

BEERESBMIAARD
(&)

3

s

REBESER

AREETENEERRATEALR
GHEEE  BRASBHNE
HRE - AEEZBR RS ERER
mnBESHERETHBERZ
o EREAREN RS MHEA
ERGEHENBERES  WneH

TREVAREZERAE(FH
BEDREBEEORMARSRE
(BREER A KM XK (EFEF
o ARBERKRER ZMR)
BABZMEFRR)FAE)REREH
RZHBHA DB BHMRUARAKEH
AREANFZZF A

2016
Z2RF
More than
2 years but
lessthan ~ More than

less than Carrying

2 years 5 years Total amount
RBME
BHR
1
HK$'000

TEL

5 years

BhR
k3
HK$'000
Thz

BAnE
HK$'000
Thz

L
HK§000
TERL

EaE
HK§000
TEL

100,099 241,200 3,001
21,361 = =

44,278
395,994
21,361

44,278
331,759
21,361

121,460 241,200 3001 461,633 397,398

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

36

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-

bearing borrowings.

o
7 E

(o)

2017

“E-tf

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.
Effective
interest rate
BBRAZ
%
Net fixed rate borrowings: EEFREEFH
Other borrowings HifEE 5.00%-8.00%
Less: Promissory note receivable  Jgi : FENA R Z 19.18%
(i) Sensitivity analysis

The directors of the Company considered that the
Group's exposure to interest rate risk is not significant,
no sensitivity analysis has been presented accordingly.

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
carrying out exploration and trading activities, and possessing
promissory note receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables and other
borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. Presently, there is no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.
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(d)

ﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬂ

?

WHH

[2
B
FIRER

AEEZFERREEFGTSEE
MEL e

(i) F=EAE
TRFAVAEEZ EER®
HFHRZFEIER ©

2016
—ERF
Effective
interest rate

HK$'000 BRA= HK$'000

TER % THBL

A ENE 4.00%-8.00% 331,759

(42,687) 19.18% (35,786)

171,093 295,973

(i) BREDN
ARAEERBAEEEY
ZHMERBIYAEKR - B
I 258 = @ e 2 BRRE
DA o

E¥RR

AEETZRETHRIEZED
EFEBEZXSHBEAREINES
BN EE T EZRPE R RE -

RekReHEY  BREZER
REMEWTIR - BB SRR

LAt A R TR DA e EL b A8 1T T B
BH¥RER - BA - NEBEL TS

FEE /2 BRER R BUR



36 FINANC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

IAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

Promissory note receivable FEWUE R R &
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

& W B 5 Rk e EL A FE MR TR
RERASEED
JE A5 58 55 Bl SR B LA P A5 5RIR

36 BiEMEERESMIARN
REE®

(d) BE¥EEE)
() ZAEHzE¥ER

TRAARNEER RS K
HERAANERERBNERR
Moz ERHEZ ERBE
ESBREMELZE¥RE
e MERE R - BBRAE
THEABTEN  RAFE
HERZAHEXRNTE - &
INEBHBRRIBERAE
BE2INEBELZENZH
TREER -

Exposure to foreign currency

Other borrowings HibgE

Other financial assets Hit e gl &E

Net exposure arising from EHREERBEMES
recognised assets and liabilities R\ B FRE

Sensitivity analysis (ii)

The directors of the Company considered that the
Group's exposure to currency risk is not significant and
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been presented.
It is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would not be
materially affected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against other
currencies.

(expressed in HK$)

SRR (BT 25)
2017 2016
= —EF-RF
uss$ uss$
E e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT
42,687 35,786
12,852 10,002
112,229 128,099
(50,387) (129)
- (82,754)
40,228 -
157,609 91,004

BRED

ARAREERD AKEE
HZHNERRI TEKR W
EE2JHRESN - AKE
REBTEITZENBE
EXTGEXTHABEME
KEEND ZEMESH T
NERTE -

R ARERA T
bt SRR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e) Price risk

(f)

The Group is engaged in petroleum-related and commodities
trading activities. Prices of crude oil and commodities are be
affected by a wide range of factors including but not limited
to global and domestic political, economic and military factors
which are beyond the control of the Group. A decrease in
such prices could adversely affect the Group’s performance.
The Group has not used any derivative instruments to hedge
against potential price fluctuations of crude oil and
commodities. The management will consider appropriate
hedging policy in future when necessary.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as other financial assets (see note
26) and available-for-sale investments (see note 23).

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the prices of respective financial
instruments, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
other comprehensive income by HK$18,311,000 (2016:
decreased/increased the Group's loss after tax and other
comprehensive income by HK$15,036,000) as a result of the
change in fair value of other financial assets and available-for-
sale investments.
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36 FINANC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

IAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(g) Fair values measurement

0}

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group'’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

36

NS
I

7Y

~
c

EREEERE@MITARN
S {H (4)

(9) AREEFFE

(i)

BRARBEFEZEREE
KAk

R BEFR
TRENANEERREHR
REFHEEEAEZERT
AZRnBE REFEM
BREENE13HFAAER
AEZEEDBR=ZEAR
BEER 2AEBEAEZ
EBRS BT 2EMERIM
FERAZBABEBZAIBE
UREZEEEMNT

.« E-REfE: BRAE
—ERABSHEZ A
fBE - EDREHE A
EERTS CARAAE
o8 2 A B

s FEME:FRAFZ
B ABEANTTA
E—RARBEZAE
EWMABBIFEZR
AEE - MIEKMEKX
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AEEEABBETE
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ABIE

s FZEME:KRKAEX

TR ERE ARIEBTE
ZRRBEFR

H (B RAR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 KERAKREERESMIALD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS REE®E
(Continued)
(9) Fair values measurement (Continued) (90 2AREEEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAREEFEZSREE
value (Continued) RER(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AR EEER ()

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2017 categorised into

REE-tF+ZA=t-H2EZAABENE

Fair value at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2 5F E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThRL ThEL AR
Recurring fair value measurement ~ EE#A L EENE
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale investments: ARERE -
~ Unlisted equity investments - ETRERE
Other financial assets: B epEE -
— Listed equity securities at fair value - LA BIESBRE)
kA ES 198,972 198,972
- Unlisted investment funds - RS BEFERR
at fair value FEmEEES 100,778 100,778
- Unlisted equity-linked securities oF Al ¢ 3= Fer 29,860
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Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 H
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

RS
I

EREEREMIAN
5B (&)

Ju
(Continued)
(g) Fair values measurement (Continued) (9) A2REEFE#E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAOREEFEZEMEE
value (Continued) REE&E#E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AABEZR(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2016 categorised into

RE-NE+-A=+-HPEZ A BENE

Fair value at
31 December
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZT—RE
+-A=1-H
LANEE FE F°E EZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THT TAL
Recurring fair value measurement ~ EE# A AEEH B
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale investments: AREERE
- Unlisted equity investments - EMRERE 58,429 - 58,429 -
Other financial assets: At ppEE -
~ Listed equity securities - AR BESERH
at fair value IikAES 242,281 242,81 - =
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, HE-_ZT—tFR-ZT—X
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or F+_A=+—HILFE"
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to E—EBEHE_EZ Fﬁiﬁﬁﬁf
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy S N )
as at the end of the reporting period in which they o REBBUR AR E H
occur. RARBESHE EE B

HRAEEE -

?"\ﬂﬂ ‘Tﬁﬂq/w 207

—tFFER
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BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 ERAKREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AEEE)
(Continued)
(g) Fair values measurement (Continued) (9) A2REEFE#E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAREBEFEZEHREE
value (Continued) ka&(#E)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair EEBARBHEITAERAZ
value measurements 1 E R RN R
The equity interest in NordAq is classified as available- 7 NordAq 2 IR 14 5 8 7% °]
for-sale equity investment and carried at fair value. The HLEREKRE  WEAR
fair value is valued using the market approach with BEARER  AABEIKR
reference to the private placing of shares and warrants & NordAq 2 B 10 K R &
by NordAq and the average share price fluctuations of FLERE AR E LA T
comparable companies (2016: the private placing of Z R E R BB B T 504
shares by NordAg). ETHH(ZE — XF:
NordAq FA S AL &E /R 1)
The equity interest in Foothills Exploration is classified as Foothills Exploration 2 & # 5
available-for-sale equity investment and carried at fair BAAHEERERE I
value. The fair value is valued using the market BAREBEAKR - AREE
approach with reference to the market price of shares Ty #8222 Foothills Exploration
of Foothills Exploration (2016: the market price of 2R EBIXREETIS AR
shares of Foothills Exploration with a marketability B( = & — /X & : Foothills
discount to account for the lock up period of 12 months Exploration % 7 71 8 + # [A
form the date of issuance). S REZETHEET @
AEEHzm B RBEMEN
&) o
The unlisted equity-linked securities are classified as JE E AR SFE S T D 58
other financial assets and carried at fair value. The fair REMERMEENIRAAB
value is using quoted market prices provided by bank. BAR - AR EBEFRRT
RIS ]RE -
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) BOABEEUNNARARZ

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has a related party relationship with the following

parties during the year:

Name of party
BT AR

New World Tower Company Limited

CiF Solutions Limited

BIERRERAT

China Venturetechno International Co., Ltd.

REFTRIRIXER AR AR

Blue Sky

EX

Shuguang
BE
Max Sun

P

g5

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions:

37 EXRBEBAIRS

AEBFENETIATHEGREE SRR -

Relationship
&

The company is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, an
intermediate parent of the Company

Z AR RARRREFRBEARE(EBR)BRARZHE AT

The company is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, an
intermediate parent of the Company

ZARRARRREFRREAR (R BRAR 2B E QT

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, the Chairman and executive director of
the Company, is a common director

ARBETERATEZTHBRBELESHAES

Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, who was the executive director of the Company
and has been re-designated as the non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 30 June 2017, is a common director
HERGEAEE (BARARMTESER - —tFA=THARA
RAFIBERITES) RHAES

The company is a subsidiary of Full Charming Limited, which is a joint
venture of the Group
ZNTEANER A D2 Full Charming Limited 2 Fff B A &)

The company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited, an intermediate parent of the Company
ZARB/ARBREF AR EAANE (B BR AR 2 HEIEEEM
2N

BiRaMBRREMB I FAHKESEIN
AEBETZERNBYIZZMT

R BERA R A A
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 EXBEBAIXRZ &)

(Continued)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration () TEEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBTEECERAEMS (BIF
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as E,1—J':’T’|Zﬁuf9ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ$ REEK
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid employees W10 EE TEaHMES
as disclosed in note 10, is as follows: BT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Short-term employee benefits HHEEERA 9,596 8,193

Post-employment benefits BERL 12127 105 72

9,701 8,265
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 7(b)). & @mEat A B IAA] (R

7(b)) °
(b) Financing arrangement (b) BEZRHE
Amount due to related party Related interest expense
A 5 7R0E HEFSEX

2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+F —T-RF —E—tF —T-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THL TR THT

Loans from China Venturetechno 788 R Bl #T T Al £ B

International Co., Ltd. BEBRARZER - 525
The loan due to a related party, China Venturetechno F’gﬁﬁéﬂ?zﬁqﬂ BT T Bl B A
International Co., Ltd. were fully repaid on 13 July 2016. NEWMERRZZT— X FtH

+_ H /&\%1%& °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

()

Other related party transactions

Related parties

B REME

(i) New World Tower Company
Limited

(i) CiF Solutions Limited
BlIERGARAA

HekEES

B ER RXIE

(iii)  Blue Sky Disposal of associate/
subsidiaries*
(5 HERBAT, WBAR
(iv)  Shuguang Purchase of equipment and
spare parts
B BEREBRTEMH
(v)  Max Sun Underwriting commission
=¥ BiEME
* On 4 July 2016, Transaction Il has been completed and a gain on

disposal of associate of HK$86,399,000 has been recognised.

(d) Applicability of Listing Rules relating to connected

transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 37(c)(i), (ii), (i) and (v)
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in the directors’ report as contained
in the annual report. Certain amounts of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 37(c)(i) and (ii) above are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as the relevant amounts are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

37

Nature of transactions

Rent and management fee

IT management and support

BEXBEBAIRS ®)

()

(d)

HittBAH 5 X 5
2017 2016
==& NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
2,166 1,926
113 108
86,399
32,422

@ RZF—ARFLANB  BEEKE=
BRE  WEHERHEHSARZIK
%586,399,000 % 7T

REXZHEB LRI ZER
%
BE_Z—tFR-_ZT—X"F+=
A=+—HIFE  EXHFE37(0)
(i) ~ (i) ~ (i) B (v #E BE 2 B 5 R
SEK EHBRNEVAERE 2
ERSGHIFEBERS - LA
FUAZBRZ BEHNFRATH
EFEREN - EXHFE37(06) &
(if) 3 55 2 BAEE 5 X 5 50 FOEER
R B 14A.76(1) 1§ 2 K IKE
EMERRET ETHRRE14AE
ZHWERE

FRREERER AR
—T—tFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B AFB5N Fra S EEABTTIIR)

38 COMMITMENTS 38 HiE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not @ MZZE—tF+—BA=+—HiERK
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as BRERERGEVBERREE
follows: BAAENT -
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FHT
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL 175,393 174,033
(b) At 31 December 2017, total future minimum lease payments by MNZZTE—+F+-_A=+—8 &
under non-cancellable operating leases payable were as BRI RS E A BEM R R
follows: He@ENT -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year —&R 2,599 943
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 3,119 =
5,718 943
The Group leases its offices under operating lease AREERBERLLHRLY LR EH I
arrangements. The leases for properties are negotiated for a NE o SEAYEBL ZHRET S
term of one to three years. None of the leases includes NFE—F=F « FHEBLHB S KA
contingent rentals. g o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAR AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB FiE & EBHAETIIIR)

39 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39 A TEBEMEERRE
POSITION

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —F—X
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NB AT ZHE 2,031,767 1,783,727
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 2,031,767 1,783,727
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TARFIE - ke RHEM
other receivables e FRTE 764,983 600,482
Other financial assets HEthorEE 130,638 =
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MREEEY 814,555 380,125
Total current assets RBEEAE yWATR /] 980,607
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables Hith pE 1~ B 56,262 9,235
Other borrowings HEMEE 2,380 37,605
Total current liabilities REBAEHEE 58,642 46,840
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,651,534 933,767
Total assets less current liabilities #EER AT EE 3,683,301 2,717,494
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Other borrowings HEMES 211,400 211,400
Total non-current liabilities BB EAE 211,400 211,400
NET ASSETS EEZRE 3,471,901 2,506,094
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR R f i
Share capital [N 35(c) 88,655 59,103
Reserves E 1 3,383,246 2,446,991
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 3,471,901 2,506,094

HE R AR AR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

40 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Max Sun and
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which are incorporated
in the BVI.

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

EEMBREENFEIN  2MTA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

ERUBMEERE 155 - EEEAMA

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions

40 EERBREHTR

41

RZZE—+tF+—A=1+—0 EZR
RAEE 2 BEBRE R&BESTT 5
RIRNREBRE LB EMAL 2B R
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited °

BEAPBHRRTEEHAL BES
AHEAGERMG TIRBE_FT—LF
TZA=+—BLEFERRERRER
RAF B RMERRA 2 ZRIERT - Fal £
AR - ZFHER - ZRIRRERR
THAI e AR EBREE o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
BUTHHRz &R Z
R EES

1 January 2018
—ZEZ-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF—HA—AH
1 January 2018

BEMBMERFE 2R 2ETT  RIOXN : DBERABURN NS —ZE-N\F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
ERGHERIE AR ZER]  REYF BEREYFE —T-N\F¥—HA—H
HK (IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
T8 (AR BRE2RREE])RBFE 2%  JMEBRERANAE —FE-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BB BMEERE 165 HE —ZE-hF—HA—H
HK (IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
EF (HEMBREREZER)REF 235 - iEHFEZ THE T —ZE-h&F—HA—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MY =L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June 2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including the
measurement of impairment for financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the
exemption from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (: A AN FiE & RS ITIIR)

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's financial
statements are as follows:

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security will
be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements upon the adoption

of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

With respect to the Group's financial assets currently classified
as "available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity
securities which the Group has the option to irrevocably
designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on transition to
HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet decided whether it will
irrevocably designate these investments held on or after 1
January 2018 as FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL. Either
classification would give rise to a change in accounting policy
as currently the Group recognises the fair value changes of
available-for-sale equity investments in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or losses are
recycled to profit or loss in accordance with the Group’s
policies set out in notes 2(g) and 2(m). If the Group plans not
to elect the designation option for any of the investments
held on or after 1 January 2018, the Group will recognise any
fair value changes in respect of these investments in profit or
loss as they arise. This change in policy will have no impact on
the Group’s net assets and total comprehensive income, but
will increase volatility in profit or loss.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a
financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised
in other comprehensive income (without reclassification to
profit or loss). The Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this new
requirement will not have any impact on the Group on
adoption of HKFRS 9.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit
loss depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances.
The Group expects that the application of the expected credit
loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit losses.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group anticipates that
the adoption of HKFRs 9 would not have material impact on
the results and financial position of the Group. The
assessment made by the entity is preliminary.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA HERYN - BT S EEABITTIIR)

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the following areas which are expected to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group'’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2(v). Currently, revenue arising from the sale of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred
over time:

(i)  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(b) Significant financing component
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether the
payments from customers are received significantly in advance
or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance and advance payments are
not common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.

The Group has assessed that under the transfer-of-control approach
in the new standard, revenue from sales of goods will generally be
recognised when the official release of the legal title of goods is
completed, which is the point in time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the goods and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits of the goods.

The Group is now in the process of performing a detailed
assessment of the impact resulting from the application of HKFRS
15 on the consolidated financial statements. Based on the
preliminary assessment, the Group expects that the initial
application of HKFRS 15 would not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. The assessment made by the
entity is preliminary.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a
similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As
a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is
12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case
the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is expected to affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 38(b), at 31
December 2017, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to HK$5,718,000
for properties, the majority of which is payable either between 1
and 3 years after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The standard offers different transition options and
practical expedients, including the practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient is
chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of
initial application. If the practical expedient is not chosen, the Group
will need to reassess all of its decisions about which existing
contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new definition.
Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt the standard
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective method of
recognising a cumulative — effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group may
or may not need to restate comparative information for any
changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.

As the Group does not enter into a significant amount of lease
arrangement, the Group expects that the transition adjustment to
be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material.
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Set out below is a summary of the results and a statement of net assets
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate.

RESULTS
REVENUE Wz
Continuing operations B
Discontinued operations BRI
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRBATEF(BR)
TAXATION
Continuing operations SEICE RS
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER
INCOME TAX FREH
Continuing operations REREEK
Discontinued operations BRIl
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO FE{L %K/ (B518)
Owners of the Company RRFEBA
Non-controlling interests FEIE R
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENVEE
Total assets EEHE
Current liabilities TEAE
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Total liabilities BEAE
NET ASSETS EERE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2017
—2-tF
HK$'000
TERT

287,557

287,557

95,260

95,260

6,437

6,437

101,710
(13)

101,697

2017
—g—t%
HK$'000
T

2,475,468
1,308,181
3,783,649

90,522
225,811

316,333

3,467,316

FFHHRE

TXRAEENAERLEMRFRE 2 EERE
EFEREME - TRXEEBERGREMHR
RUYBHEBERRTERDE

ES

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t—HLEFE

2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RE —E-RF —_T-NFE —T-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FET FHT
57,108 66,725 81,105 321,770

53 2,582 7,633 1,085

57,161 69,307 88,738 322,855
(229,615) (1,549,322) (88,254) (14,119)
(7,055) (198,399) (29,657) (17,304)
(236,670) (1,747,721) (117,911) (31,423)
6,021 3,371 (6,352) (400)

(1) 38,656 2,140 -
6,020 42,027 (4,212) (400)
(123,349) (1,666,254) (120,448) 3,771
(1,672) (21,280) (1,675) (35,594)
(125,021) (1,687,534) (122,123) (31,823)
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+-—H

2016 2015 2014 2013
“T-XF —Z-HF —T-NF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FET FHET
2,282,239 2,404,147 4,015,938 4,209,999
783,190 336,550 491,178 201,959
3,065,429 2,740,697 4,507,116 4,411,958
81,883 186,415 298,684 298,024
332,281 311,927 387,457 163,035
414,164 498,342 686,141 461,059
2,651,265 2,242,355 3,820,975 3,950,899
HEREREGRAA

—T—tFFR
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GLOSSARY

i

“BBL"
[BBL

“BCF"
[BCF

“BOPD”
[BOPD |

“km?2"
[km2]

“MBBL"
[ MBBL

“MMBBL"
[MMBBLJ

“MMBOE’
[MMBOE |

“MMCF"
[MMCF]

“Prospective Resources”

[(REERE ]

“Probable Reserves”

[BE S 2

“Proven Reserves”

[RAAFE]

"2P Reserves”
[2PfEE]

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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Barrel
I

Billion cubic feet

TEIZAR

Barrels of oil per day
fwam/ &H

Square kilometers

FHAR

Thousand barrels of oil

T

Million barrels of oil

BEHOH

Million barrels of oil equivalent
BERBES

Million cubic feet

BEIZAR

Quantities of petroleum which are estimated to be potentially recovered
from undiscovered accumulations

AT AT BE RS IR m AT AR A E

Additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than Proven
Reserves but which, together with Proven Reserves, are as likely as not
to be recovered

ML RBARE T KA LR S MEh R EIMA R - HEH BRI
EHF T AREBER

Proven oil and gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas which, by
analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with
reasonable certainty to be economically producible

KRR FEE BB E R TIRENSIT - AIUEE N & IR HTE L
PR AERHRHEE

Proven Reserves+Probable Reserves

RAFE RS
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